
Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



BUDGET AMENDMENTS AND TRANSFERS

1413
1413

C

0701
3036

FY2O1O

7/27/2010

FUND TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS

0

.-~
0

BA#
Ti 501

501

c)
.~

635
635

Dept. Line Item Increase Decrease
Facilities Reg Sal-Permnt $ 12,200
Facilities Inst Equip/Furn $ 12,200

-.‘
C?

HBA#~ç~
FT1 WPNOO2 737

FT2 WPNOO3

Line Item Increase Decrease Pg #
$ 13,214.43 30000

001 4945
737 0000
001 4945

FT3 WPNOO4 737 0000
001 4945

FT4 WPNOO8 737 0000
001 4945

FT5 WPNO1O 737 0000
001 4945

FT6 WPSOO3 737 0000
001 4945

FT7 WPNO13 737 0000
001 4945

FT8 N/A 737 0000
001 4945

C

3101
2010
3102
2010
3103
2010
3104
2010
3105
2010
3106
2010
3107
2010
4000
2010

255
339
255
339
255
339
255
339
255
339
255
339
255
339
256
339

Dept.
LCRA Escrow
TNR
LCRA Escrow
TNR
LCRA Escrow
TNR
LCRA Escrow
TNR
LCRA Escrow
TNR
LCRA Escrow
TNR
LCRA Escrow
TNR
LCRA Escrow
TNR

Arkansas Bend
Park Fees
Bob Wentz
Park Fees
Cypress Creek
Park Fees
Hippie Hollow
Park Fees
Mansfield Dam
Park Fees
Pace Bend
Park Fees
Sandy Creek
Park Fees
Interest
Park Fees

$ 13,214.43

$ 75,571.28

$ 32,091.29

$ 123,429.81

$ 116,460.14

$ 226,268.16

$ 17,017.33

$ 1,561.38

$ 75,571.28

$ 32,091.29

$ 123,429.81

$ 116,460.14

$ 226,268.16

$ 17,017.33

$ 1,561.38

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Budget Adjustment: 22129

Fyr — Budget Type: 201 0-Reg

PBQ Category: Transfer

Author: 14 - DRAPER, AMY

Court Date: Tuesday, Jul 27 2010

Created: 7/14/2010 7:20:07AM

Dept: FACILITIES MANAGEMENT

Just: Negbal

From Account
50 1-1413-635-0701

Acct Desc
REG SALARIES-PERMNT EMPL

3aL@L-4~ ~ 4t5 aC c7Ot~t~~ (L€

J2V //

Amount
12,200

12,200

Project Proj Desc

To Account Project Amount

501-1413-635-3036 INSTITUTNL EQUIP & FURN 12,200

12,200

Approvals Dept Approved By Date Approved

Originator 14 AMY DRAPER 7/14/2010 07:20:19 AM

DepOffice 14 AMY DRAPER 7/14/2010 07:20:20 AM

171~xD

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FACILITIES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director

1010 Lavaca Street. Suite 400 • P.O. Box 1748. Austin. Texas 78767 • Phone: (512) 854-9661 e Fax: (512) 854-9226

MEMORANDUM Project No: Expo General
File: 102

TO: Rodney Rhoades, Executive Manager, ~1

VIA: Roger A. El Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director

FROM: John F. Carr, Administrative Director

DATE: July 16, 2010

SUBJECT: Funding Issue - Exposition Center Banquet Tables

Facilities Management Department (FMD) requests your assistance in obtaining approval to use
salary savings from the Exposition Center personnel account to fund the purchase of 75 round
banquet tables. These tables will be made available to promoters for events booked at the Exposition
Center for a fee, and will limit the lost revenue from promoters going to local rental firms for tables
due to the lack of round tables available from Travis County. Cost of the 75 tables including
shipping is estimated at $12,200. Funding is available in the Exposition Center personnel budget
due to vacancies that have occurred this fiscal year. FMD therefore requests approval of a budget
adjustment to move $12,200 from line item 501-1413-635-0701 to 501-141 3-635-3036. Please
direct any questions on this request to John at 44772.

COPY TO:
Amy Draper, CPA, Financial Manager, FMD
Diana Ramirez, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



~ Page 1 of 2

Department Name: T.N.R. Department N~rpber:

Is this request related to a separate agenda item other than Budget Amendments and Transfers?
If yes, please check the appropriate blank below and attach copies of the agenda re~eyL,Lnd ~‘J PM 3: I 7
supporting documentation submitted to the County Judge’s Office.

TR/~\/~3 CDIJNTY
p,L.AN~VLr& BUDGET OFFICE

I ALL AMOUNTS MUST BE IN WHOLE DOLLARS I

Item

#
I

Object
Title

LCRA Escrow

________ Arkansas Bend_______ Park Fees

LCRA Escrow

_______ Bob Wentz________ Park Fees

LCRA Escrow

________ Cypress Creek________ Park Fees

LCRA Escrow
Hinoie Hollow

Reduction
Amount

$13,214.43

For PBO Use Only:
PBO Approval

Type Analyst/Manager

~

TO: 001 - 4945 - 339 - 2010 _______

5 FROM: 737 - 0000 - 255 - 3105 WPNOIO

TO: 001 - 4945 - 339 - 2010

Park Fees
LCRA Escrow
Mansfield Dam

Park Fees

$116,460.14 f.i_ .~4:~’

JUSTIFICATION:

Item #‘s:

x

Needs rebudgeting to meet commodity
code requirements
Other, please specify:

Types of Transfer - TR
Requests Amendment - AM

Discussion - DS
Automatic - AU

FY 2010 3rd Qtr park revenue & interest transfer totaling $605,613.82 from the LCRA Escrow Fund to the County’s General Fund.
This submission is in accordance with CC approval of May 17, 1999 considering and approving such quarterly transfers under agenda
“Budget Transfers and Amendments”.

Signature o~Tected/Appointed Official
ol q iz’

Date

________ Contract Pending_______ Personnel Amendment________ Other, Please Specify:

49

Account Number Project
Fund Dept/Div. Act. Ele/Obj. Number

FROM: 737 - 0000 - 255 - 3101 WPNOO2

TO: 001 - 4945 - 339 - 2010 _______

2 FROM: 737 - 0000 - 255 - 3102 WPNOO3

TO: 001 - 4945 - 339 - 2010 _______

3 FROM: 737 - 0000 - 255 - 3103 WPNOO4

TO: 001 - 4945 - 339 - 2010 _______

4 FROM: 737 - 0000 - 255 - 3104 WPNOO8

$75,571.28

$32,091.29

$123,429.81

Please refer to budget rules for instructions on filling out Budget Adjustment Form Rev 12/93

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Object
Title

LCRA Escrow
Pace Bend

Park Fees
LCRA Escrow
Sandy Creek

Park Fees
LCRA Escrow
Interest

Park Fees

Page 2 of 2

Types of Transfer - TR
Requests Amendment - AM

Discussion - DS
Automatic - AU

Signature on page 1
Signature of Elected/Appointed Official

Please refer to budget rules for instructions on filling out Budget Adjustment Form

Date

‘z.::~ .z:i
Department Name: T.N.R. Department Number:

Is this request related to a separate agenda item other than Budget Amendments and Transfers?
If yes, please check the appropriate blank below and attach copies of the agenda request and all
supporting documentation submitted to the County Judge’s Office.

________ Contract Pending________ Personnel Amendment_______ Other, Please Specify:

I ALL AMOUNTS MUST BE IN WHOLE DOLLARS I

49

Account Number
Item Fund Dept/Div. Act. EIe/Obj.

6 FROM: 737 - 0000 - 255 - 3106

TO: 001 - 4945 - 339 - 2010

7 FROM: 737 - 0000 - 255 - 3107

TO: 001 - 4945 - 339 - 2010

8 FROM: 737 - 0000 - 256 - 4000

TO: 001 - 4945 - 339 - 2010

9 FROM:____ - - -

TO: ____ - - -

10 FROM:____ - - -

TO: - - -

Project
Number

WPSOO3

WPNO13

N/A

For PBO Use Only:
Reduction PBO Approval
Amount Type Analyst/Manager

$226,268.16 ~pr

$17,017.33 ~J

$1,561.38 .ZL 1’

JUSTIFICATION:

Item #‘s:

x

Needs rebudgeting to meet commodity
code requirements
Other, please specify:

Rev 12/93

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Transportation & Natural Resources
LCRAITravis County Parks
30-Jun-I 0

FY 2010-3rd Qtr. Transfer to General Fund & CIP

Less:
3rd Qtr Pending Less: Amount to

Revenues FY2OIO Pending Transfer to
LCRA Parks 411/2010 LCRA 3rd Qtr General Fund
Escrow Fund through Admin. Fee Trsfr. to the Account No.
Account Number Park 6/30/2010 Adjust. 3rd Qtr CIP Fund 029 001-4945-339-2010

Estimated
737-0000-255-3101 Arkansas Bend 15,751.00 - (173.92) (2,362.65) 13,214.43
737-0000-255-3102 Bob Wentz 89,998.00 - (927.02) (13,499.70) 75,571.28
737-0000-255-3103 Cypress Creek 38,252.00 - (422.91) (5,737.80) 32,091.29
737-0000-255-3104 Hippie Hollow 147,009.75 - (1,528.48) (22,051.46) 123,429.81
737-0000-255-3105 Mansfield Dam 138,738.00 8.29 (1,475.45) (20,810.70) 116,460.14
737-0000-255-3106 Pace Bend 269,619.00 (8.29) (2,899.70) (40,442.85) 226,268.16
737-0000-255-3107 Sandy Creek 20,273.00 - (214.72) (3,040.95) 17,017.33

Total: 719,640.75 - (7,642.20) (107,946.11) 604,052.44

737-0000-256-4000 Interest 1,561.38 - - 1,561.38

Total: 721,202.13 - ($7,642.20) ($107,946.11) $605,613.82

Adjustment due to reclass in May from PB to MD for March 2010 receipt

Prepared by: lsabel/e Lopez
Financial Services Division

7/16/2010

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Allocated Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9892)

$6,639,865
$6,170

($2,132)
$26,483

$1,388
($2,578,800)

($250,000)
($93,003)

($516,000)
($16,000)

($325,000)
($25,000)
($20,000)

($250,000)
($485,009)
($11,177)
($43,497)

($1,200)
($29,771)
$11,375

($93,565)
($42,907)
$99,688

($32,055)
$1,940

$914
$12,999

($562,902)
($55,000)

($405,000)
($9,638)
$11,675
$20,940

$765
($4,729)

$98
$4

($5,000)
($2,500)

($600,000)
($50,000)

$4,816

TNR
Cons. Pct. 1
Various Dept

TNR
TNR
TNR

Sheriff
Juvenile Probation

Facilities
Facilities

TNR
Facilities
Facilities
Facilities
Facilities

Purchasing
Purchasing

PBO
HHS

County Attorney
General Adminstration

Various Dept.
Gen. Admin

Various Dept.
TNR

Various Dept.
County Clerk

TNR
Facilities
JP Pct. 3

Various Dept.
Various Dept.

Facilities
General Adminstration

TNR
HHS
TNR
PBO

Civil Courts
Records Mngt.

10/13/09
10/7/09
9/25/09
10/23/09
10/28/09
11/17/09
11/24/09
12/1/09

12/22/09
12/22/09
3/23/10
3/23/10
3/30/10
3/30/10
3/30/10
4/6/10
4/6/10

4/13/10
4/16/10
4/27/10
4/27/10

4/22/2010
5/4/2010
5/3/2010
5/3/2010

5/1 7/2010
5/25/2010
5/25/2010
5/25/2010
5/25/2010
5/27/2010
6/4/2010

6/10/2010
6/22/2010

6/28/2010
7/1/2010
7/6/2010
7/6/2010

7/13/2010
7/20/2010
7/19/2010

Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

Beginning Balance
Canceled Purchase Orders
Accruals
Canceled Purchase Orders
Canceled Purchase Orders
Reimbursement Resolution for Vehicles
Comprehensive Plan
SWAP
Family Preservation Contract
Real Estate
Reimbursement Resolution - Real Estate
Envision Central Texas
Reimbursement Resolution-Due Diligence lnsp
Reimbursement Res.- 700 Lavaca Bldg
Construction/FEE/ITS/moves for HHS Lease
New HHS lease for one month
FTE - Purchasing Agent IV
FTE - Office Equip, Furn & Supp
Broaddus Mod.6
Canceled Purchase Orders
New Atty. & Legal Secretary/Land Use Issues
WaIler Creek TIE
Canceled Purchase Orders
Bond Issuance Cost
Canceled Purchase Orders
Canceled Purchase Orders
Canceled Purchase Orders
Expenses - Primary Election Runoff
Utilities
Professional Services - 700 Lavaca
Temporary Salaries
Canceled Purchase Orders
Canceled Purchase Orders
Liquidate Prior Year Purchase Order
Terminal Pay & Temp backfill for Admin.
Position in the Intergovernmental Office
Liquidate Prior Year Purchase Order
Liquidate Prior Year Purchase Order
Wild Basin Preserve Mgmt Fee to St. Ed’s
Court direction; related to item #28, 6/29/10
Legal Mandated Fees
Postage
Liquidate Prior Year Purchase OrderSheriff

$329,235 Current Balance

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Allocated Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9892)

Possible Future Expenses Against Allocated Reserve Previously Identified:
Amount Explanation

($25,000) Grant Match MHPD
($26,185) Grant Match Second Chance
($20,000) Hazmat
($28,748) Armored Car Service
($25,000) Records Storage
($60,000) Deaf Services Temporary Interpreters

($158,855) Family Drug Treatment Grant
($1 00,000) Court Appointed Attorney Fees
($200,000) Court Appointed Attorney Fees-Capital Cases

($12,877) Overtime for FACTS Training/Implementation
($8,268) Overtime for FACTS Training/Implementation
($7,300) Miscellaneous Recurring Expenses-Operating

($672,233) Total Possible Future Expenses (Earmarks)
($342,998) Remaining Allocated Reserve Balance After Possible Future Expenditures

$3,173,800 Projected Reversal of Reimbursement Resolutions
$2,830,802 Projected Allocated Reserve Balance After Earmarks and RR Reversals

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Capital Acquisition Resources Account Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9891)

Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation
$454,223 Beginning Balance
($11,205) Sheriff 11/24/09 SWAP
($2,215) Facilities 12/22/09 Real Estate

($29,995) TNR 12/22/09 Sidewalk Maintenance Program
($13,395) TNR 1/8/10 Motorcycle Replacement

($2,403) ITS 4/6/10 Office Equip, Furn & Supp - Purchasing FTE
($357) ITS 4/6/10 Educ,Com, Eq & Supp - Purchasing FTE

($5,495) Facilities 7/20/10 Law Enforcement Equipment
($460) Facilities 7/20/10 Law Enforcement Equipment

$388,698 Current Reserve Balance

Possible Future Expenses Against CAR Identified During the FY09 Budget Process:
Amount Explanation

($95,500) Failing Vehicles

($95,500) Total Possible Future Expenses (Earmarks)
$293,198 Remaining CAR Balance After Possible Future Expenditures

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Emergency Reserve Status (00 1-9800-981-9814)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation
$4,950,000 Beginning Balance

$4,950,000 Current Reserve Balance

Fuel & Utility Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9819)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation
$1,000,000 Beginning Balance

$1,000,000 Current Reserve Balance

Juvenile Justice TYC (001-9800-981-9829)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

$250,000 Beginning Balance

$250,000 Current Reserve Balance

Future Grant Requirements Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9837)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

$500,000 Beginning Balance

$500,000 Current Reserve Balance

Smart Bldg. Facility Maintenance Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9838)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

$43,092 Beginning Balance
($22,288) Facilities 5/25/10 Maintenance of Bldg.

$20,804 Current Reserve Balance

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Unallocated Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9898)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

$43,812,685 Beginning Balance
($2,161,824) ITS 12/15/09 Reimbursement Resolution-Computer

Equip.
($50,000) Tax 12/15/09 Reimbursement Resolution - Web

Browser Software
($2,264,000) Facilities 12/15/09 Reimbursement Resolution -

AHU/HVAC upgrades at Gault and
EOB

($7,189,337) EMS 2/23/10 Reimbursement Resolution -

purchase & completion of new SF
aircraft and 2 aircraft contracts

($735,000) Facilities 4/6/10 Reimbursement Resolution - Airport
Blvd. Property Purchase

$50,000 Tax 6/28/10 Web Browser Software-Reverse
Reimbursement Resolution

$7,189,337 EMS 7/19/10 Reimbursement Resolution -

procurement of helicopter

$38,651,861 Current Reserve Balance

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



z
-<

-1
N

)
>

0
C C Cl’

)
1•

11
11

1•

ru
1

N
)’
O C’D :ê

~
CD

C
0)

C
,

(0
m Co

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



I ( JJkJJfJ’~’fJ~Jf £~5:. rft)( £~f!

Minimum of $11 M needed annually for
75% - 80% Goo to Fair

ext 5 years: o erlays and surface
treatme ts
6 10 years: increased reconstruction
Precin 1 nd4:examinesubgrade

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



I I

J I

Total Budget= $1LOM per Vearfor S Years

* Rvc~rn~truct on

*Sur~cL Frea m~t

Precinct .1 Precinct 2 Prec nct3 Precnct4

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Tr~vi’ ro in v Pr~erte~j P~ivern~n1 Cond ~n Surnrn~r~ i~ ~i1~ /~r

2014 F~ir or setter —

2009 Fair ~r Better —
i q.~pii~-~ ~ii4P~

Tp.w k fot’n~ - 2.1114

Cl

-~ 10

~ ~. ~ ~ ‘.~i1.~C~h ~ cr c

~rerf~- it .riii~r,~n~ccfi ~

.~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ .~. .~.• ~

~ ,~er c’i ir~i~ ~ ~~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ tIiIL~

.n r.~ .~ii:~ ~-c’i £

I) * Iii 14? 0 ~& ~i? 3’) ~u 40 .14? ~ SO !I* Lu &0 4,0 tu 70 ‘0 ti~ i~ri ~41 Lu ~l ~4} *~i I 04J

.ave~Ieiit Co~drnon Score (CCI}

Fig re 21 — Pr ected Paveme t Condition for the County

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



I

100

(J

a)

0

0)
D.C
4-

0)

a)

70

60

50

20

—Preanct 1

—Preciii.t 2

— Precinct 3

— Precinct 4

1985 1990 1995 2000

Year

2005 2010 2015

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



~- Dad !‘I’~ ~ud ~ IJEJI1&fic ~ii

Struggling economy
FYI I vehicle s les tax revenue to GF
estimated at $2.9M; additional 10%
every year through 2015
Operating costs continue to increase
annually
Resultin. decline in fund balance

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



sees~seuldieioi

UO!~BJ~S!6OdO~flV

eoueie~puns6e~
enue~e~pe~e6png

J

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



/riliLJaEJ Y~EJJ r~J≤OE~f ~IcLJJ’~j

Budgeted Re’~enue

Budgeted
Expenditures

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Li ~ F 5~ffiF~th~JtI[if

Notice of Violation received i 2009 due to
serious leachate i s
Preliminary cost esti ates:
—Low: $1,752 128
— Me . $2,696,685
— High: $4,205,463
Proj cttim l’neis 0 1—2 1
Can.idatef. Bo I- ti.n

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



2011

2011 -2012

Remedial Work Reason Required* Preliminary Cost Range Fiscal Year(s)

(actual costs could vary) of Expense

1. Add clay liner to Eliminate ponding and infiltration of rainwater into the $225,100 - $319,500 2011 - 2012
repair western portion landfill. Reduce production of leachate that must be (depending on availability of clay on-
of landfill cap routed to the sewer at a cost based on volume disposed. site)

2. Demolish and remove The existing flea market structures and operation of the
flea market structures business are incompatible with cap remediation.

Demolition will ensure the least possible interference
with remedial work. TNR cannot currently determine
how much or when the landowner will contribute to this
cost, so the entire cost needs to be budgeted as a
contingency.

3. Add clay liner to Same as item 1 except that areas of subsidence & poncling $676,550 - $1,132,150
repair flea market are much worse (depending on availability of clay on-
portion of landfill cap site)

Ownership maybe necessary to maintain future site $0 - $944,857 - $1,795,335
control and protection of the improved cap, so purchase (Upper end is 2010 TCAD
of the property needs to be budgeted as an option.” preliminary value; mid-range is

negotiated cost to compensate
County for demolition cost)

Contingent effort in the event that leachate production is
not substantially reduced by the clay cap (items 1 and 3).
The investigation would determine if groundwater from
off-site flows into the landfill (and subsequently is
pumped for disposal)

6. Perimeter methane TNR needs further information from consultant to
gas control confirm that the risk of improper methane emissions has

been eliminated. If risk remains, a control system may
need to be installed

4. Purchase of property

5. Groundwater
investigation

$1,752,128 - $2,696,985 - $4,205,463**

2011 -2012

$850,478

2011

$31,000 2013

$77,000

TOTAL

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



~OI1VGMThII4JO~m

ofid

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Transportation & Natural Resources (49) — General Fund (001)

Jessica Abril Rio, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget
7/20/2010

Operating_Budget —

One- Total with

On-going time Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments fg~
FY 11 Target Budget

Submission $ 25,321,179 $ - $ 25,321,179 $ - $ 25,321,179 — —

P80 recommends an increase to the —

BCP transfer related to FY 11 new
BCP Transfer Increase 670,098 - 670,098 - 670,098 0 construction.

Fuel and maintenance for Sheriff’s Office —

PBO Correction 3,213 - 3,213 - 3,213 0 vehicle retained in FY11. -

Recommended Requests

PBO recommends $55,000 and an —

NREQ - Landfill Leachate earmark for the remaining portion of the
Discharge Abatement 55,000 - 55,000 - 55,000 0 request. —

Child Safety Program
Crossing Guards 8,495 - 8,495 - 8,495 0 Temp funds for School Crossing Guards.

Capital recommendations
( recommendations also include $200,000
in the LCRA Fund and $977,533 in the

Capital Requests - - - 9,340,787 9,340,787 0 Road & Bridge Fund). —

Recommended Reductions

None

Total FY11 Preliminary f
Budget j $ 26,057,985 $ - $ 26,057,985 $ 9,340,787 $ 35,398,772 - —

TNR
Page 1 of 7

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



TNR (49) — Road & Bridge Fund (099)
Orerating_Budget Total with —

On-going One-time Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments Pg#

Department’s budget submission was
at the Target Level. FY 11 revenue is

FY 11 Target Budget estimated to have $3.2 million in
Submission $ 19,011,566 $ 19,011,566 $ - $ 19,011,566 beginning fund balance (one-time).

This reserve is for health insurance —

cost increases and possible
compensation increases. These are on

Benefit Reserve $ 462,095 462,095 462,095 going costs. —

Capital recommendation within the
Asphaltic Materials $ - $ 977,533 977,533 977,533 Road and Bridge Fund.
P80 corrections (102,106) (102,106) (102,106) Changes to transfer based on fines. —

Total FY11
Preliminary Budget 19,371,555 977,533 20,349,088 - 20,349,088 - —

Jessica Abril Rio, FY 2011 Preliminaiy Budget
7/20/2010

TNR
Page 2 of 7

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Budget and Programmatic Issue Analysis

Vacancy Report:
TNR provided the following information on its vacancies that have been vacant 180 days or longer as of May. These
vacancies are listed in the following table along with TNR’s comments.

Fund Dpt Slot Pos Title Div_FTE DaysVacant Dept Notes
001 49 54 ADMINISTRATIVE ASST II 0.4 1489 On hold - pending 5% cut
099 49 54 ADMINISTRATIVE ASST II 0.6 1489 On hold - pending 5% cut

ENGINEERING INSPECTOR
001 49 81 SPEC 0.8 185 Not posted

ENGINEERING INSPECTOR
001 49 81 SPEC 0.2 185 Not posted
001 49 109 OFFICE SPECIALIST SR 0.5 240 On hold - pending revenue estimate
099 49 109 OFFICE SPECIALIST SR — 0.5 240 On hold - pending revenue estimate
001 49 143 FINANCIAL ANALYST SR 0.4 385 Interviewing
099 49 143 FINANCIAL ANALYST SR 0.6 385 Interviewing
099 49 151 EQUIPMENT OPERATOR — 1 249 On hold - pending revenue estimate
099 49 164 EQUIPMENT OPERATOR SR 1 414 On hold - pending 5% cut
099 49 191 ROAD MAINT WORKER 1 328 On hold - pending revenue estimate
099 49 209 ROAD MAINT WORKER — 1 301 On hold - pending revenue estimate

To be filled once Sr. Financial Analyst
001 49 211 ACCOUNTANT 0.2 992 position is hired.
Fund Opt Slot Pos Title - Div FTE DaysVacant Dept Notes

To be filled once Sr. Financial Analyst
099 49 211 ACCOUNTANT - 0.8 992 position is hired.
099 49 222 ROAD MAINT WORKER 1 208 On hold - pending revenue estimate
099 49 241 ROAD MAINT WORKER SR 1 428 On hold - pending revenue estimate

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING
001 49 327 MGR 0.5 1765 Interviewing

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING
099 49 327 MGR 0.5 1765 Interviewing
001 49 328 PARK RANGER 1 616 On hold - pending 5% cut
099 49 340 ROAD MAINT WORKER 1 343 On hold - pending revenue estimate

Jessica Abril Rio, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget TNR
7/20/2010 Page3of7

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



099 I 49 354 EQUIPMENT OPERATOR 1 219 On hold - pending revenue estimate
099 49 358 ROAD MAINT WORKER — 1 256 On hold - pending revenue estimate
001 49 360 PLANNER 0.9 275 Not posted
001 49 360 PLANNER 0.05 275 Not posted
099 49 360 PLANNER 0.05 275 On hold - pending revenue estimate
099 49 442 ROAD MAINT WORKER — 1 370 On hold - pending revenue estimate
099 49 447 ROAD MAINT WORKER SR 1 419 On hold - pending revenue estimate

To be filled once Comprehensive
001 49 456 PLANNER SR 0.5 2139 Planning Mgr is hired

To be filled once Comprehensive
099 49 456 PLANNER SR 0.5 2139 Planning Mgr is hired

DEVELOPMENT SVCS PRGM
001 49 496 MGR — 0.9 956 On hold - pending reclass

DEVELOPMENT SVCS PRGM
001 49 496 MGR 0.1 956 On hold - pending reclass
001 49 561 PARK MAINT WORKER 1 274 On hold - pending 5% cut
001 49 595 PARK MAINT WORKER 1 429 On hold - pending 5% cut
001 49 597 PARK MAINT WORKER 1 223 On hold - pending 5% cut
001 49 605 OFFICE SPECIALIST 1 205 Posting pending

Road & Bridge Budget and Programmatic Issue Analysis

~ TNR submitted its FY 11 Road & Bridge budget at the Budget Target Level of $19,011,566.
• The Third Revenue Estimate totals $20,349,088.
• PBO has made various capital recommendations totaling $8,000,787 in alternative capital funding for Road & Bridge

eligible projects.
• An additional $977,533 is included within the Road & Bridge Fund for asphaltic materials.
• PBO has included $462,095 for health insurance increases, other benefit increases and possible compensation

increases in an Allocated Reserve.
• PBO will work with the department to ensure that the Road & Bridge Fund is balanced to the Revenue Estimate as the

budget process progresses.

Jessica Abril Rio, FY 2011 Prelimina,y Budget TNR
7/20/2010 Page 4 of 7

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



The Road & Bridge Fund is projected to have a $4,167,494 beginning fund balance. A total of $76,200 is expected in
intergovernmental revenue; $9,750,000 in charges for services; $6,270,268 for fines; $35,126 for interest income and
$50,000 for miscellaneous revenue. The total FY 11 revenue estimated totals $20,349,088.

Road & Bridge Fund Balance:
The Third Revenue Estimate includes $16,181,594 in new revenue and $4,167,494 in beginning fund balance. This is in
comparison to $19 million in on-going recommendations in the Preliminary Budget and the shifting of the department’s
paving program to the General Fund and Certificates of Obligation during the FY 10 budget process. This imbalance will
need to be addressed in the coming years. The following table provides a summary of the Road & Bridge fund balance since
FY 03:

FY FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 FY 10 FY11
Fund
Balance 4,908,458 7,782,140 7,259,277 5,045,215 4,588,924 4,169,968 5,265,248 2,762,131 4,167,494

Difference 1,260,083 2,873,682 (522,863) (2,214,062) (456,291) (418,956) 1,095,280 (2,503,117) 1,405,363
% Change
from prey.
Yr. 34.538% 58.546% -6.719% -30.500% -9.044% -9.130% 26.27% -47.54% 50.88%

Currently, the Road & Bridge Fund includes a $2,342,036 transfer to the General Fund. PBO has established an Allocated
Reserve that includes $462,095 based on the following estimated amounts:

o Health Insurance increases ($1 72,630)
o Compensation increases ($260,680)
o Retiree increases ($28,785)

History of Relationship between General Fund and Road & Brid.ge Fund
Prior to FY 98, the General Fund supplemented the Road & Bridge Fund through transfers. In FY 96, the transfer from the
General Fund to the Road and Bridge Fund was $1,950,684. In FY 97 the transfer was budgeted at $391,161. In FY 98
there was not a transfer from the General Fund into the Road and Bridge Fund. However, in FY99, there was a $3,790,151
transfer to the Road & Bridge Fund as a result of a one-cent General Fund tax increase dedicated to road and bridge
improvements. In FY 00, the transfer to the Road & Bridge Fund was reduced by $2,024,745 in order to leave the Road &
Bridge Fund’s share of the Unallocated Reserve in the General Fund. The Road & Bridge Unallocated Reserve was
budgeted directly in the Special Fund in FY 99. This allowed the General Fund to carry the Unallocated Reserve for the
Road & Bridge Fund, as it did previous to FY99. The FY01 transfer was $1,857,168.

Jessica Abril Rio, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget TNR
7/20/2010 Page 5 of 7

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



In FY02, the gross supplement from the General Fund to the Road & Bridge Fund was $3,790,151, as was approved in FY
99. However, due to changes in the recording of fine revenue collected under Title VII of the Transportation Code, the Road
& Bridge Fund received in FY 02 additional revenue from highway fines of $3,667,864 above and beyond its own historical
revenue sources. This money was deposited into the County’s General Fund in previous fiscal years. Therefore, the FY 02
net transfer from the General Fund to the Road & Bridge Fund was only $122,287 (equal to $3,790,151 less $3,667,864). In
FY 03, the fines increased to $4,004,901 and the transfer was eliminated. In FY 04, the fines increased again to $4,978,086
and the transfer remained eliminated; however, the Road & Bridge Fund again carried a total of $916,306 as an Unallocated
Reserve for increased reserve requirements in this special fund. The net effect was that the benefit to the Road & Bridge
Fund was estimated at $3,790,151.

Since FY 05, a portion of the fine revenue was transferred from the Road & Bridge Fund to the General Fund due to
improved systems that allow the County to identify individual funds by offense conviction statute. In FY 05, FY 06, FY 07 and
FY08, FY09 and FY10 the transfer varied but had a net benefit of $3,790,151 to the Road & Bridge Fund. In FY11, the
transfer is $2,342,036 given fine revenue estimates of $6,270,268.

Jessica Abril Rio, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget TNR
7/20/2010 Page 6 of 7

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Req. #2: Landfill Leachate Discharge Abatement & Priority 2 (General Fund)
FY 11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost

FTEs 0 0 0
Personnel $0 $0 $0
Operating $74,240 $55,000 $55,000
Subtotal $74,240 $55,000 $55,000
Capital $0 $0 $0
Total Request $74,2401 55,000*1 $55,000
*plus $19,240 earmark on Allocated Reserve.

Dept. Summary of Request:

“Additional funds are necessary to pay expected utility expenditures associated with the pumping of landfill leachate at the
Travis County US 290 closed landfill. Leachate is discharged into the City of Austin sanitary sewer to prevent unauthorized
discharge of leachate and water pollution in a tributary of Walnut Creek.”

PBO Recommendations & Comments:

TNR has estimated that the average monthly amount billed in first six months of FY 10 was $7,212. Therefore, TNR is
recommending an FY 11 budget of $8,000 per month or $96,000 for F’( 12. Given the current budget of $21,760, the
department is requesting $74,240. PBO notes that it appears that TNR has a budget totaling $32,500 for these expenditures.

Given that TNR reduced its General Fund budget (personnel and operating) by over $350,000 in FY 10, it has therefore
limited much of its flexibility to internally fund such a maintenance of current effort increase. The Commissioners Court
approved an additional $55,000 related to this issue in May of 2010. PBO recommends approval of the appropriate funding
level for this request. However, we will not know the extent of the funding gap until FY 11 since the summer months are
generally not as wet as the spring months used to estimate this request. Therefore, PBO recommends $55,000 as well as a
19,240 earmark on the Allocated Reserve in FY 11 in the event that it is needed.

Budget Request Performance Measures:

The department did not submit performance measures for this request.

Jessica Abril Rio, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget
7/20/2010

TNR
Page 7 of 7

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

RE:

CC:

MEMORANDUM
Rodney Rhoades, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget Office

John K. Dietz, Local Administrative Judge, Civil Courts

July 15, 2010

Request for Abbreviated Budget Hearing — Civil Courts

Diana Ramirez, Planning and Budget
Peg Liedtke, Civil Courts

At our request, the Sheriff’s Office conducted a security assessment of the Civil Courts and the
Security Committee has approved their recommendations in the amount of $530,485. We
included a placeholder in the Civil Courts FY 2011 budget submission for this security
recommendation.

The Civil Courts wish to request an abbreviated budget hearing with Commissioners’ Court in
Executive Session to discuss this security assessment and the recommendations. Additionally,
we plan on bringing to the budget hearing a proposal for implementation for the Court’s
consideration.

Please let us know if you have any questions or require any additional documentation in this
regard. Thank you very much.

Sincerely yours,

John K. Dietz
Local Administrative Judge
Travis County, Texas

Office of the District Judges
Travis County Courthouse

P.O. 8ox 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET SUBMISSION
BUDGET REQUEST PROPOSAL

Name of Budget Request & Priority #: Security for Judges (Priority #3 — Dept. 22)
Fund/Department/Division: 001/22/10 & 20
Total Amount Requested: Place Holder Until A Security Assessment Is

Conducted by the Sheriff’s Qffice
Collaborating Departments/Agencies: Sheriffs Office and Facilities Management Dept.
Contact Information (Name/Phone): Peg Liedtke/854-93 64

1. Sununary Statement: Include one or two sentences to be included in Commissioners’
Court materials.

The Civil Courts request an assessment by the Sheriffs Office of the security in the Heman
Marion Sweatt Courthouse to help the courts minimize the risks involved in court building
operations and to fmd better ways to protect all those who work in or visit the courthouse using
the recently published “Best Practices for Court Building Security” from the National Center for
State Courts (February 2010).
2. Description of Request: Describe the request, including current issues and how the

request relates to the mission and services provided by the department. Include
historical information related to the request where relevant.

The risks involved in court building operations are great and varied, and they can never be
eliminated, however, we have discussed specifics ofour request in a preliminary meeting with
the Travis County Sheriffs Office and Facilities Management Department. Based on this
meeting, we wish to have the Sheriffs Office conduct a security assessment of the Judges/court
staff in their chambers and courtrooms using the best practices document published in February
2010 by the National Center for State Courts entitled, “Steps to Best Practices for Court Building
Security “. A copy of this document is attached to this expanded package request. We will be
happy to discuss the specifics with Commissioners’ Court in executive session.
3a. Pros: Describe the arguments in favor of this proposal.
The findings of the Sheriffs Office, based on the best practices recommended by the National
Center for State Courts (NCSC), will assist Travis County in finding better ways to protect
judges, staff and jurors in the Heman Marion Sweatt Courthouse. Acknowledging that
implementing best practices in court building security will require increasingly scarce budgetary
resources, the report from NCSC outlines steps in phases that can be taken toward achieving best
practices in various areas of court building security.
3b. Cons: Describe the arguments against this proposal.
Not addressing security deficiencies may ultimately result in a serious incident occurring in the
Heman Marion Sweatt Courthouse.
4. Anticipated Outcome of Request and Proposed Timeline: Timeline should include

the expected dates of results and may extend past FY 11.
If the recommendations of the security assessment is approved and funded by Commissioners’
Court, the Civil Courts will work with the Sheriffs Office and Facilities Management to
implement the proposed security changes during FY 2011 and beyond.

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



5. Description of Program Measurement and Evaluation: Describe how the proposal
will be measured and evaluated and if this includes an independent evaluation
component. In addition, indicate whether a comparative analysis of similar local
programs is available.

6a. Performance Measures: List applicable current and new performance measures
related to the request and note the changes for FY 11 should this request be
implemented.

6b. Impact on Performance: Describe the impact of funding the request on departmental
performance measures, service levels, and program outcomes:

Measure Name Actual FY 09
Measure

Revised FY
10 Measure

Projected FY 11
Measure at

Target Level

Projected FY 11
Measure with

Added Funding

7. Impact of Not Funding: Describe the impact of not funding the request in FY 11.

8. Leveraged Resources: If proposal leverages other resources such as existing internal
resources or grant funding, list and describe impact. If resources from similar
existing program(s) will not be reallocated, give reasons and include analysis.

9. Additional Revenue: If this proposal generates additional revenue, list the amount
and the assumptions used for the estimate. (Attach a copy of the form submitted to
the Auditor’s Office).

Not applicable.

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



10. Collaboration: If this proposal was discussed with other departments/agencies that
provide similar or supporting services that could be impacted, describe impact and
list the other departments/agencies and their points of contact. Suggest ways all
departments/agencies can collaborate to ensure success of the proposaL

A collaborative meeting was held in early 2010 with the Civil Courts (Judge Orlinda Naranjo
and Peg Liedtke), the Sheriff’s Office (Lt. Gottner and Sgt. Hirsch) and Facilities Management
(Lloyd Evans) to discuss possible ways to improve security for the Civil Judges in their
courtrooms and in the Judges’ chambers.
11. If requesting a new position(s), is office space currently available? Y/N j Unknown

If no, attach plan from Facilities Mgmt. explaining how to acquire space for this
proposal. Identify proposed position location below:

Building Address Floor #
Suite/Office # Workstation #

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



~ationa1 Center for State Courts

STEPS TO BEST PRACTICES
FOR COURT BUILDING SECURITY

FEBRUARY 2010

Timothy F. Fautsko
Steven V. Berson
James F. O’Neil

Kevin W. Sheehan

Daniel J. Hall, Vice President
Court Consulting Services

707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 2900
Denver, Colorado 80202-3429

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Entry Screening — A Court’s First Line ofDefense

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Acknowledgements

The development and publication of this report has been made possible by the

support and hard work of many people. The National Center for State Courts (NCSC)

wishes to acknowledge the four authors of this document, Timothy Fautsko, Principal

Staff at the NCSC and especially security consultants Steven Berson, James O’Neil, and

Kevin Sheehan for their work in identifying the categories, topics and steps to best

practices in court security contained in this document. The NCSC also extends its

appreciation to three practitioners in the field who carefully reviewed this document and

made important recommendations that have improved the final product. They are

Malcolm Franklin, Senior Manager, Emergency Response and Security from the

Administrative Office of Courts in California; Frank Lalley, Judicial Security

Administrator from the Administrative Office of Pennsylvania Courts; and Carol Price,

Court Security Director from the Administrative Office of Courts in Utah. Their many

years of experience in the field of court security and emergency preparedness proved

invaluable in validating the many steps to best practice. Without their assistance, the

quality and usefulness of information contained in this report would not have been

possible. Finally, the NCSC extends thanks to its editorial staff Ephanie Blair, Judy

Amidon, and Lone Gomez for the many hours they spent providing quality assurance in

the conformation and final editing of the report.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Introduction

The National Center for State Courts (NCSC), through its Court Consulting

Division, has conducted security assessments of court buildings as well as personal

security and safety training throughout the country. In conducting court building

assessments, the NCSC assessment team has evaluated court security in terms of “best

practices” — guidelines describing those security measures that should be in place with

respect to a comprehensive set of topics covering court buildings and court operations.

These best practices are not only based on the considerable experience of NCSC

assessment team members, but are also a compilation of various guidelines from the U.S.

Marshals Service, National Sheriffs’ Association, International Association of Chiefs of

Police, the Transportation Safety Administration, the Department of Homeland Security,

and the National Association for Court Management. The NCSC assessment team

recommends that leadership in every court building strive to achieve best practices in all

topic areas to provide a suitable level of security for all those who work in or visit the

court building.

Acknowledging that implementing best practices in court building security will

require increasingly scarce budgetaiy resources, the NCSC assessment team has also

developed steps in phases that can be taken toward achieving best practices in various

areas of court building security. These steps may be a useful approach to courts as they

strive to implement improvements in court building security. The NC SC assessment

team wishes to emphasize that a fully effective integrated level of security will be

reached only when all the measures at the best practices level are incorporated. The

NCSC assessment team has provided these steps in phases, so that a court at its discretion

can adopt incremental improvements before reaching the level of best practices. These

steps in phases are plateaus along an ascending path to improvement — improvement the

NCSC assessment team recommends that courts achieve over time.

It is important to note that Steps to Best Practices focuses almost exclusively on

security matters. With rare exception, issues of emergency preparedness, continuity of

operations, and disaster recovery are not within the scope of this document.

National Centerfor State Courts 1

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buildinc’ Security February 2010

Security is not a one-time achievement. It is a serious and continuous goal and

requires constant vigilance. Further, it must be a number one priority every single day

for all those interested and involved in the process. The risks involved in court building

operations are great and varied, and they can never be eliminated. But with proper

attention and care, they can be minimized. Paying close attention to the

recommendations contained in Steps to Best Practices will help courts minimize the

risks.

Steps to Best Practices is organized by steps, phases, topics, and categories. It

will be helpful for the reader at the outset to have a working understanding of each of

these terms:

• Steps: These are specific buildings blocks, specific actions that courts can
take to improve security.

• Phases: These are logical groupings of steps forming a temporary plateau in
terms of security measures in place.

• Topics: These are the subject areas into which steps in phases are organized.
• Categories: These are sets of topics. There are four categories listed in

priority order. (Note: Topics within each category are listed in alphabetical
rather than priority order.)
o Category A. These are fundamental topics that must be addressed first in

order to provide a base on which to place all of the others.
o Category B: These are topics that are extremely important to address.
o Category C: These are topics that are very important to address.
o Category D: These are topics that are important to address.

National Centerfor State Courts 2

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buildjn~ Security February 2010

CATEGORIES AND TOPICS

Topic #

Category A: Fundamental
One Command and control center
Two Policies and procedures
Three Security committee

Category B: Extremely Important
One Access of people into court building
Two After-hours access to court building
Three Chambers
Four Courtrooms
Five Court security officer (CSO) staffing levels
Six Duress alarms
Seven Threat and incident reporting
Eight In-custody defendants
Nine Training

Category C: Very Important
One Closed circuit television (CCTV)
Two Emergency equipment and procedures
Three Interior access during business hours (circulation zones)
Four Intrusion alarms
Five Jurors
Six Parking (particularly for judges)
Seven Public counters and offices

Category D: Important
One Cash handling
Two Exterior/interior patrols
Three Perimeter issues
Four Public lobbies, hallways, stairwells, and elevators
Five Screening mail and packages

National Centerfor State Courts 3

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Category A: Fundamental

The three topics in this category provide an essential foundation for all the other topics in

Steps to Best Practices.

• Command and control center. Without such a center, the necessary and vital
technological tools for court building security — closed circuit televisions (CCTV*),
duress alarms, and intrusion alarms — cannot be utilized or monitored in an effective
manner.

• Policies and procedures. Without these, there is no way to assure a thorough and
consistent application of security measures aimed at making a court building
reasonably safe. The development of policies and procedures is an iterative process.
Reference will need to be made to the information included in Steps to Best Practices
to inform the process of developing a comprehensive and cohesive set of policies and
procedures.

• Security committee. Without such a committee, meeting regularly and empowered
to exercise rigorous oversight on all matters relating to security within the court
building, it is difficult, if not impossible, to properly assess and address the myriad of
security challenges facing court leadership.

*CCTV as used in this document, refers to a variety ofold and new technologies. For detail, see
topic C-].

TOPIC A-i: COMMAND AND CONTROL CENTER

Phase One

1. Establish a command and control center in the lobby area of the court building
with an assigned court security officer (CSO*). For smaller court buildings, the
monitoring function of a command and control center can take place at the front
entrance screening station.

2. Provide for telephone/radio communication as a point of contact between a CSO
and potentially vulnerable areas of the court building, such as courtrooms.

*Note.. CSO is defined as an individual trained in court security and cert~fIed to use a
firearm. The C’SO should also be armed with a triple-retention holster and a radio that
can communicate with the command and control center. The C’SO at the command and
control center does not necessarily need to be armed.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

3. Design and construct a command and control center that is isolated from the main
lobby of the court building.

National Centerfor State Couits 4

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practicesfor
Court Buj/djn~’ Security February 2010

4. Design a control panel that will provide space for administrative activity and
equipment to monitor CCTV cameras, duress alarms, fire alarms or alerts,
intrusion detection systems, and radio dispatches.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phase One and Two, plus add the following:

5. Install control panels and monitoring equipment for CCTV surveillance cameras,
duress alarms, fire alarms or alerts, intrusion detection systems, and telephone and
radio communication and dispatch.

6. Provide additional security personnel as required to supervise and monitor
command and control center activities.

TOPIC A-2: POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Phase One

1. Judicial branch leadership understands the need for and commits to the
implementation of effective, comprehensive security based on best practice models
and establishes orders directing court security policies and procedures.

Phase Two

Continue with the step in Phase One, plus add the following:

2. Establish a task force under the direction of the court security committee (see
Topic A-3) and with the cooperation of the appropriate law enforcement
agency(s), to draft essential documents for the establishment of the policies and
procedures on court building security. The task force on policies arid procedures
should include:

• Court administration
• Security personnel
• Facilities management
• Fire and rescue personnel
• Others responsible for and impacted by court security

3. Create the package of essential documents to include:
• Policies and procedures

o Overall court security operations
o Screening protocols

• Define contraband that cannot be brought into the court
building and confiscate it at the door.

o Procedures to govern courtrooms and other areas in the event of a
security incident

• Risk and resource assessment instruments and protocols for use
• Incident reporting instruments and protocols for use

National Centerfor State Courts 5

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

• Operations manuals and materials
• Training manuals and materials
• Administrative orders with authority to revise

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

4. Establish communication to stakeholders that allows for feedback and adjustments
as follows:

• Assign a liaison between task force and stakeholders.
• Provide periodic briefings in various formats to stakeholders.
• Solicit formal feedback from stakeholders.
• Adjust package (e.g., policies, procedures, manuals, materials) as

necessary.

Phase Four

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

5. Provide training and evaluate the package as follows:
• Train everyone with a direct role in court security.
• Conduct drills to test procedures.
• Evaluate results of the drills.
• Evaluate results of response to actual incidents.
• Modify the package to improve practice.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, Three, and Four, plus add the following:

6. Review and update policies and procedures at least every other year.
7. Analyze Phases Two through Four for operational effectiveness.

TOPIC A-3: SECURITY COMMITTEE

Phase One

1. Establish a court security committee at the court building, which is chaired by a
judge (preferably presiding) and has a membership of at least the primary security
provider, such as the sheriff or CSO, the clerk of court, and the court
administrator.

2. The judge or court administrator should meet regularly with la~ enforcement
officials to discuss security concerns and improve security at the court building.

National Centerfor State Courts 6

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

3. Add the district attorney and public defender or representative from the state bar to
the court security committee.

4. Add tenants as members of the security committee as appropriate.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

5. Add elected officials to the court security committee.
6. Add an ad hoc member to the court security committee to serve on a task force for

the committee.
7. Undertake a self-assessment of the security in place within the court building.

Checklists with which to conduct these assessments are available from various
sources, such as the National Sheriff’s Association. Assistance in conducting
assessments is also available from the NC SC.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

8. Establish an integrated court security committee and use task forces to provide the
committee with additional research and information gathering capacity.
Additional members added to the committee or task forces should include:

• Court staff members working in the court building
• Local and state government officials
• Local and state subject matter experts

9. Reconstitute the court security committee to be additionally responsible for
emergency preparedness, disaster recovery/continuity of operations plan (COOP),
and response to pandemic flu, and add members with this expertise as appropriate.
Rename the committee the court security and emergency preparedness committee.

10. Add planning responsibility for building new or improving culTent court facilities
to the newly named committee.

National Centerfor State Courts 7

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Bui1din~’ Security February 2010

Category B: Extremely Important

TOPIC B-i: ACCESS OF PEOPLE INTO COURT BUILDING

Phase One

1. Establish only one main door through which the public can enter the court building
and display a sign at the entrance clearly listing those items that cannot be brought
into the court building.

• Designate one or more of the doors to the building to be used only for one
or more of the following: judges, court staff, and other building tenants, to
enter with an access card or key. Lawyers and jurors should not be
permitted to use this door but should enter through public entrances.

• Keep all other exterior doors locked during business hours.
• Emergency exit bars should be installed on all external exit doors. All exit

doors should be alarmed, with ten second delay consistent with local codes.
Establish signage that explains the “Exit Only” requirement.

2. Establish protocols for entry through locked doors.
• Tailgating* or bringing in family members/friends through these doors

should not be allowed.
• Delivery people and contractors should enter through the main door and be

verified by an authorized representative requesting the delivery or service.
The same procedure should be followed after verification at the main door
to the court building for delivery people and contractors needing to use
other external doors for service or delivery. These individuals should be
escorted and supervised while in the building.

*Note. In this context, tailgating is when an individual(s) enters a court building
with a person who is authorized to properly gain entry with an access card or key.

3. Assign one CSO to guard the public entrance to the court building on a full-time
basis.

4. Set up a table or other physical structure at the public entrance to serve as a
screening station.

5. Screen people coming in the public entrance for weapons by use of a hand wand
and physical search of personal items.

• Provide screener with a weapons ID chart.
• Provide screener with a list of contraband items.

6. Train the CSO for all Phase One tasks described above.
7. Provide basic court security orientation training for judges and staff.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

8. Add a magnetometer at the main door (public entrance) to the court building.

National Center for State Courts 8

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buildi,w Security February 2010

9. Conduct a daily calibration and inspection of magnetometer, preferably by an
authorized and trained supervisor.

10. Train CSO(s) in all tasks added in Phase Two, plus provide additional security
training for judges, staff, jurors, and others.

11. Replace keys to the court building with access cards for judges, authorized court
staff, and other building tenants’ staff.

12. Install a CCTV camera at the main door (public entrance) to the court building.
13. Assign a second CSO* to assist with screening at the main entrance during high-

traffic times of the day. During the day, a second CSO occasionally should
conduct internal and external walk-around patrols and assist with courtroom
security and security monitoring at the judge and authorized staff entrances.

14. Establish a code notification procedure between law enforcement and the court so
screeners are aware if a dangerous person is likely to enter the building.

15. Add a duress alarm at the screening station.
16. Establish a policy that law enforcement officers entering the building on personal

business may not bring in a weapon.

*Note: Staffing level in Phase Two is one full-time CSO at the screening station, plus
one additional CSOfor high-volume times.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

17. Install an x-ray machine at the public entrance screening station.
18. The second CSO referenced in step 13 should be assigned as a full-time,

permanent CSO~ to operate the public screening station. During slow periods, this
second CSO can still be available for additional duties as described in step 13.

19. Establish additional policies and procedures for Phase Three operations as follows:
• Conduct an annual inspection and certification of x-ray machines.
• Provide a detailed, step-by-step manual and training on screening

procedures.
20. Train CSOs in all tasks and provide security orientation training for judges and

staff.
21. Add a CCTV camera at the judge/staff entrance door.

*Note.. Staffing level in Phase Three is twofull-time CSOs at the screening station.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

22. Assign a third CSO* to operate the public screening station: one CSO to operate
the magnetometer, one to operate the x-ray machine, and one to handle problems.
During low traffic times, the third CSO can assume another assignment. Ideally,

National Centerfor State Courts 9

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buildjn~ Security February 2010

all three CSOs should be armed, but at least one should be armed. (Armed CSOs
should use a triple-retention holster.)

23. If two or more public screening stations are in operation, assign a fourth CSO as a
supervisor to oversee operations.

24. Install a magnetometer, x-ray machine, duress alann, and CCTV camera to the
judge/staff entrance. Consider allowing jurors to use this entrance.

25. Assign at least two CSOs to the judges/staff entrance if staff or jurors use this
entrance and at peak hours during the day. Otherwise, assign at least one CSO.

26. Establish a universal screening policy. Universal screening means everyone
entering the building is screened.

27. When everything is in place, establish a policy that only law enforcement officers
with responsibility for court security inside the building may bring a weapon into
the building. Other law enforcement officers should be required to check their
weapons in a lock box at the screening station(s).

*Note.. Staffing level in Best Practice is three full-time C’SOs for each public screening
station, plus one additional CSO to supervise multiple stations, and two CSOs assigned
to judge/staff/juror entrance.

TOPIC B-2: AFTER-HOURS ACCESS TO COURT BUILDING

Phase One

1. Permit access into all areas of the court building via key or electronic card access.
Keys and cards should be issued and controlled pursuant to a comprehensive
accountability system that has been approved by the court’s security committee.

2. Conduct background checks prior to issuing a key or access card to any person.
3. Conduct background checks for cleaning crews and any vendors granted after-

hours access to the building. Cleaning crews and vendors should be supervised at
all times by a person who is accountable to the court.

4. Monitor the activities of the public while in the building after hours.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

5. Eliminate the use of keys and implement the use of an access card system. As
necessary, issue keys to a limited number of people only for emergencies, building
maintenance purposes, and building security responsibilities.

6. Create a single access point into the court building that is guarded by a CSO who
checks IDs and signs in all people entering the building after regular hours. As
time permits, the CSO should periodically patrol the interior and exterior of the
court building.

7. Update background checks periodically (at least annually).

National Centerfor State Courts 10

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

8. Conduct a full screening requiring everyone to go through the magnetometer and
x-ray station.

TOPIC B-3: CHAMBERS

Phase One

1. Install a duress alarm at the judge’s desk and in the chamber’s reception area.
2. Test duress alarms regularly — at least monthly.
3. Provide training to judges regarding personal security and safety in chambers.
4. Escort judges when leaving a chambers area for a courtroom if chambers hail is

unsecured.
5. Keep existing chambers window coverings adjusted so activities cannot be

observed from outside the court building.
6. Conduct daily sweeps of chambers in the morning and at the end of the day.
7. Keep entrance doors to chambers area locked. Keep doors to individual chambers

locked when judge is not present, especially at night.
8. Assign at least one CSO or transport deputy to be present whenever an in-custody

defendant is escorted through chambers hallway.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

9. Install vertical blinds as interior window coverings in all chambers.
10. Install duress alarms in conference room(s).
11. Plan for and conduct drills regarding emergency situations in chambers area.
12. Escort judges when leaving secure chambers and courtroom area.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

13. Assign at least two CSOs or transport deputies to escort in-custody defendants
through chambers hallway, with one to clear the path ahead. The transport officer
closest to the prisoner should be unarmed; the other officer should be armed.

14. Install ballistic-resistant material in all accessible windows (e.g., ground level, first
floor). The recommended ballistic-resistant material should meet UL Standard
752, Level IV, unless a lower level can be justified by an assessment of the risks
based on such factors as adjacent structures and geographic features associated

National Center for State Courts 1]

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

with the location of chambers. This level may be reduced based on specific
security assessments.

15. Request cleaning crews to clean chambers at the end of the day when court staff is
present, rather than at night.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

16. Install CCTV cameras in chambers hallways that lead to the entrance to chambers
areas.

17. If feasible given the existing structure of the court building, establish a secure path
for judges to go from chambers to courtroom (no escorting of in-custody
defendants). If feasible, establish a secure path to escort in-custody defendants
from holding cells to the courtroom without going through chambers hallways.

18. Install ballistic-resistant material in all chambers windows that are located on
floors above ground level.

19. Prohibit cleaning crews from entering chambers unsupervised at any time.
Require cleaning during the day or leave waste baskets outside locked chambers
area doors at night. The judge or court staff should be present when cleaning
crews are physically cleaning/dusting chambers during the day.

TOPIC B-4: COURTROOMS

Phase One

1. Assign at least one CSO on every floor that has one or more courtrooms, dedicated
as a “rover” from one courtroom to the next (unless local or state rules require
additional coverage). There must be at least one CSO or transport officer present
throughout the entire court proceeding whenever an in-custody defendant is
involved.

2. Install duress alarms in the courtroom at accessible locations:
• On top or under the working surface of the bench, plainly marked
• At the CSO station
• At the clerk’s station

Train judges and staff on the functionality of duress alarms and on the protocols
for use.

3. Test duress alarms regularly (at least monthly).
4. Conduct a sweep in the morning before a proceeding is held and at the end of the

day for all trials to court and trials to jury. (For high visibility trials, use a dog
trained with the ability to detect guns, bomb materials, and other explosive
contraband.)

5. Secure or remove all metal and glass items inside the courtroom that can be used
as weapons (e.g., scissors, staplers, metal water pitchers, glasses). As substitutes
for these items use Styrofoam or paper products. Use snub nose scissors, bendable
pens for defendants, and smaller staplers.

National Centerfor State Courts 12

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buj/djnc’ Security February 2010

6. Install and then regularly test emergency lighting/fire equipment in courtrooms.
7. Always keep front and back doors to courtrooms locked when courtroom is not in

use.
8. Use proper and acceptable restraints per state law on in-custody defendants.
9. Prohibit use of camera/cell phones in the courtroom and prohibit other items that

could be used as weapons.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

10. Assign at least one CSO to be present in the courtroom whenever there is any court
proceeding being held in the courtroom. A second CSO or transport officer should
be assigned when there is an in-custody defendant present.

11. Install one CCTV camera in criminal and family courtrooms.
• The camera should be installed in the back of the courtroom in order to

monitor activities in the courtroom up to and including the well and bench
area.

12. Holding cells in the courtroom should be properly constructed and escape-proof.
13. Every three or four months, debrief incidents that have occurred in the courtrooms

and review procedures related to courtroom security. This de-briefing should take
place in the courtroom. There should be an immediate debriefing on any serious
security incident.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

14. A second CSO should be assigned to a courtroom whenever any court proceeding
is being held. Whether or not there is an in-custody defendant, one CSO should be
assigned for the judge and one for the courtroom. A second CSO is not ordinarily
needed for civil cases, unless specifically requested by a judge based on a
determination of a higher risk involved in a particular case.

15. Install one CCTV camera in all remaining courtrooms.
• The camera should be installed in the back of the courtroom to monitor

activities in the courtroom up to and including the well and bench area.
16. Install two CCTV cameras in criminal and family courtrooms.

• One camera should be installed in the back of the courtroom to monitor
activities in the courtroom up to and including the well and bench area.

• One camera should be installed on the wall in back of the bench to monitor
activities in the courtroom.

17. Begin the process necessary to establish a courtroom in the jail for
advisements/arraignments and other hearings. Use video arraignment* originating
from the jail for in-custody hearings as much as permitted by state law.

*Note. Video arraignment is the preferred solution to bringing in-custody defendants
back and forth for settings and briefhearings.

National Centerfor State Courts 13

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

18. For high-visibility trials, an additional CSO should be assigned to be present in the
courtroom.

19. Use video or a courtroom in the detention center for all arraignments or hearings to
set dates of next appearance.*

*Note.. Use of video is the preferred solution to personal appearance by in-custody
defendants whenever legallyfeasible by state law.

20. Conduct sweeps of all courtrooms, including the random use of trained dogs.
21. Provide separate working offices (not in the courtroom) for clerks and others to

use afier courtroom proceedings have been completed.
22. Use bullet-resistant materials when constructing or retrofitting the bench and

workstations inside the courtroom. The most recent recommended standard for
these materials is UL Standard 752 Level III.

23. Install two CCTV cameras in all courtrooms.
• One camera should be installed in the back of the courtroom to monitor

activities in the courtroom up to and including the well and bench area.
• One camera should be installed on the wall in back of the bench to monitor

activities in the courtroom.

TOPIC B-5: COURT SECURITY OFFICER (CSO) STAFFING LEVELS

Phase One

1. One CSO* should be permanently assigned to the main entrance of the court
building during business hours.

2. One CSO or transport deputy should be assigned to the courtroom while there is an
in-custody defendant in the courtroom.

3. Assign at least one CSO on every floor that has one or more courtrooms, dedicated
as a rover from one courtroom to the next. There must be at least one CSO or
transport officer present throughout the entire court proceeding whenever an in-
custody defendant is involved.

*Note.. It is estimated that each CSO post requires approximately 1.33 full-time
employees to coverfor sick and annual vacation, training, etc.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. As additional CSOs become available, assign in the following priority per
recommended phases leading up to Best Practices in each relevant topic:

National Centerfor State Courts 14

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buildinc’ Security February 2010

• To meet recommended staffing guidelines at screening station (see
Topic B-i)

• To meet recommended staffing guidelines for the courtroom (see
Topic B-4)

• To meet recommended ratios for transporting in-custody defendants (see
Topic B-8)

• To assign patrols for the interior and exterior of the building (see
Topic D-2)

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phase One and Two, plus add the following:

5. Achieve full recommended staffing guidelines for the following topics:
• Screening stations (see Topic B- 1)
• Courtrooms (see Topic B-4)
• Transporting in-custody defendants (see Topic B-8)
• Regular patrols of building interior and exterior (see Topic D-2)

TOPIC B-6: DURESS ALARMS

Phase One

1. Install duress alarms in the courtroom and at the bench, clerk’s station, and CSO
station. Training should be provided on the functionality of duress alarms and on
the protocols for use.

Phase Two

Continue step in Phase One, plus add the following:

2. Install alarms in each chamber and reception area.
3. Install alarms at public counters, cash areas, and other offices where the public has

access, including those without counters.
4. Install alarms in the interview and mediation rooms.
5. Install alarms and 911 contact ability at the childcare center, if the court building

includes such a center.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

6. Install alarms at screening stations.
7. Install an alarm in the jury assembly room.

National Centerfor State Courts 15

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Bui1c1in~ Seen ritv February 2010

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

8. Install duress alarms in the holding cell area.
9. Install a duress alarm in the loading dock area.
10. Install a duress alarm in the mailroom.

TOPIC B-7: THREAT AND INCIDENT REPORTING

Phase One

1. Establish a policy requiring incidents to be reported to the appropriate law
enforcement agency and to court administration as soon as feasible. The more
serious the incident, the more quickly it should be reported.

2. Train CSOs and staff in the court building on how to define what an incident is
and how to report incidents verbally and in writing.

3. Develop and use an incident reporting form and submit forms in writing to the
proper authorities, at least on a monthly basis.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. Implement a practice for periodically evaluating incident reports and making
improvements based on lessons learned from reports with law enforcement
officials and the chairperson of the court security committee (and the committee’s
incident reporting task force).

5. Provide general feedback to staff on incidents, particularly to those who reported
them (e.g., complete the feedback loop).

TOPIC B-8: IN-CUSTODY DEFENDANTS

Phase One

1. Assign at least one CSO or transport deputy to escort in-custody defendant(s)
through all non-secure areas and to clear the path ahead of civilians.

2. Assign one CSO or transport deputy to remain with defendant(s) in the courtroom
at all times.

3. Efforts should be made to modify schedules so in-custody defendants are escorted
through public areas when the presence of people is at a minimum.

4. When transporting in-custody defendant(s) in public hallways, bystanders should
be moved to one side of the hall. When transporting in-custody defendant(s) in a
public elevator, the elevator should be cleared of all other people.

National Centerfor State Courts 16

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Bui1din~ Security February 2010

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

5. Assign a second CSO or transport deputy to escort an in-custody defendant and
clear a pathway. The transport officer closest to the prisoner should be unarmed;
the other officer should be armed.

6. Make sure all holding cells and areas within the court building are appropriately
structured, secured, staffed, and searched daily.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

7. Install CCTV cameras along entire in-custody defendants’ escort route.
8. Establish a secure sally port for in-custody defendants entering the building.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

9. Establish a secure pathway for a defendant from the transport bus, through the
sally port, to the holding cell and the courtroom to avoid crossing the path of
judges, staff, or public.

TOPIC B-9: TRAINING

Phase One

1. CSOs should be trained in court security responsibilities. CSOs should receive
initial classroom instruction on courtroom security techniques, judicial and staff
protection, security screening activities, firearm operation, and safety and weapons
certification.

2. New judges and court staff should receive an initial court security orientation
briefing that includes emergency procedures, building evacuation routes, building
emergency color code system, and personal safety procedures for work and home.

3. Judges and court staff should be provided with detailed instructions on reporting
threats and incidents received at home or in the court building.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. All CSOs should receive at least 16 hours of mandatory in-service training on
court security each year.

National Centerfor State Courts 17

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Bui1din~ Security February 2010

5. Establish a judge and staff security education program that deals with workplace
violence and personal safety techniques, courtroom security and protection, and
personal safety while at work and at home.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

6. In addition to annual qualification with firearms, establish mandatory refresher
court security training programs for C SOs, to include such topics as emergency
response, first-aid, defensive tactics, handcuffing, courtroom security, hostage,
shooter-in-place, and judicial protection.

7. Establish mandatory, ongoing security and safety education programs for judges
and court staff that include such topics as handling difficult people, home safety
techniques, safety practices for inside and outside the court building, hostage
incidents, and emergency evacuation from the court building.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

8. In addition to annual qualification with firearms, establish annual mandatory
refresher court security training programs for CSOs to include first-aid, defensive
tactics, handcuffing, courtroom security, and judicial protection.

9. Establish mandatory ongoing security and safety education programs for judges
and court staff that include handling difficult people, high-profile trials, home
safety techniques, safety practices inside and outside the court building, hostage
incidents, travel safety tips, threats, and emergency evacuation from the court
building.

10. Train judges and court staff in self-defense and techniques for hostage-taking
situations.

National Centerfor State Courts 18

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Category C: Very Important

TOPIC C-i: Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

Phase One

1. Install a digital and color CCTV camera system* at the entry screening station and
in the courtroom(s) facing the gallery.

*Note: CCTV systems can utilize various kinds of technology to transmit video images
and to provide for system access and control. Cables have been the traditional means of
system connectivity. Newer technologies have emerged over time. Some systems now
utilize an internet protocol (IF,) to transmit data and control signals over afast Ethernet
link. Another technology, virtual local area network (VLAN), allows authorized
personnel to access cameras or a recorderfrom a remote setting. Courts are encouraged
to explore and adopt the technologies that best suit their needs and budgets.

CCTV cameras should have the following functional capacity:
• Fixed or pan, tilt, zoom. These types of CCTV cameras are typically used

by most courts. Fixed cameras with a wide-angle lens allow for a
stationary focus on areas of interest. The capacity to tilt and pan allows
each camera to maximize its area of coverage, thereby minimizing blind
spots and the number of cameras needed. The ability to zoom allows each
camera to capture a more accurate and close-up picture of what is actually
transpiring in a particular scene.

• Color. This is standard in current systems. Black-and-white images cannot
tell the full story. Important features are indistinguishable. Only with a
color monitor can faces and other specific objects be clearly identified.

• Recording capacity. The CCTV system should have digital video
recording capacity enabling a CSO to view incidences at a later time. This
recording function is essential for identifying perpetrators for the purpose
of apprehension as well as conviction. Recordings should be retained for at
least ten working days.

• Activation issues. The operation and recording function of a camera can be
set to activate by either motion or sound, or by the setting off of duress or
intrusion alarms.

• Signs. Notices should be conspicuously placed to inform the public that
CCTV cameras are operating and recording activity in the area.

Phase Two

Continue the step in Phase One, plus add the following:

2. Install CCTV cameras in detention areas to monitor activities in holding cells.
3. Install CCTV cameras on building perimeters and secure parking lots.
4. Install CCTV cameras to monitor activity at public counters and in offices where

the public may visit.

National Center for State Courts 19

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Bui1din~ Security February 2010

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

5. Install CCTV cameras at the loading dock.
6. Install CCTV cameras in hallways.
7. Install CCTV cameras in each courtroom.

Phase Four

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

8. Install CCTV cameras in elevators and stairwells.
9. Install CCTV cameras at screening stations.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, Three, and Four, plus add the following:

10. Install CCTV cameras in hallways that access chambers.
11. Install CCTV cameras in the mailroom.
12. Install CCTV cameras in the childcare area, if such an area exists.
13. Install CCTV cameras to cover all pathways through which an in-custody

defendant may be escorted.
14. Install CCTV cameras to cover the interior areas of all doors to the court building

and to all accessible windows.

TOPIC: C-2 EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT AND PROCEDURES

Phase One

1. Use emergency color codes to designate emergency procedures for evacuation.
An example of such a code system is attached as part of the Appendix.

2. Have an emergency, battery-generated lighting system in courtrooms, offices, and
public areas.

3. Have a fire extinguisher on each floor, with egress floor plans posted.
4. Have fire alarms placed on each floor.
5. Have an elevator(s) that meets state and local fire codes, i.e., MGM fire code.

National Center for State Courts 20

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
court Buildi~.~ Security February 2010

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

6. Have an emergency generator system that is properly fenced-in and protected.
7. Test generator system monthly; keep a log of tests.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

8. Have CCTV cameras installed in the elevator(s).
9. Have automated external defibrillators (AEDs) located accessibly on each floor

and designate a person(s) in the court building who is trained to respond to
medical emergencies (e.g., CPR and use of the AED) as 911 is called.

10. Designate a floor warden on each floor to ensure proper response to emergency
codes.

11. Have an enunciator fire alarm and extinguisher system.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

12. Have a floor warden identified and trained on each floor to respond to medical
emergencies (e.g., CPR and use of the AED) as 911 is called.

13. Designate a safe area for a command and control center during an emergency.
14. Consider advising judges and staff by public address system, bull horn, email, or

phone. One method of warning is the use of Court Building Warning Codes; a
sample can be found in the Appendix.

15. Have an evacuation plan that everyone in the court building has been familiarized
with.

16. Have a bomb-threat protocol and a lockdown plan in place.

TOPIC C-3: INTERIOR ACCESS DURING BUSINESS HOURS
(CIRCULATION ZONES)

Phase One

1. Establish the concept of circulation zones (separate areas and routes) for the
following:

• Judges and court staff (e.g., chambers, administration, jury deliberation
rooms, conference rooms, back of public counters, private elevators, secure
stairways)

• In-custody defendant transport (e.g., routes for entering and exiting the
building, to and from holding areas/courtrooms)

National centerfor State couns 21

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buildinc’ Security February 2010

• Public (e.g., restrict the public to public zones)
2. All doors that are required to be locked, in accordance with the court buildings

circulation zone concept, should be kept locked at all times. Such doors should
never be left propped open.

3. Have a key or access card system to control access based on a system approved by
the administrative authority of who needs to have access to which areas. Cards or
keys should be issued on the basis of need, not convenience. This system should

• Be under the control of a central authority.
• Require background checks for all card or key holders.
• Include effective procedures for retrieving keys or canceling cards when

situations change (e.g., employment termination).

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. Eliminate keys and require access cards. Maintenance staff and emergency
responders should retain keys.

5. Establish viewing ports (peepholes) to prevent non-authorized access through
secured courtroom doors.

6. Improve definition and enforcement of circulation zones.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

7. Establish some form of video recognition (phone) system to allow access into
secure areas.

8. Continue to improve definition and enforcement of circulation zones.
9. Install a CCTV camera system in all secure areas in the court building to monitor

activity.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

10. Establish and maintain maximum separation among zones (e.g., in-custody
defendants are not escorted through secure hallways; judges do not pass through
public areas when going to and from their cars, through screening, and to and from
chamber areas.)

National Center for State Courts 22

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

TOPIC C-4: INTRUSION ALARMS

Phase One

1. All exterior doors should have basic intrusion alarm devices, covering
• All locked doors after hours.
• Emergency exit doors during business hours.

Phase Two

Continue the step in Phase One, plus add the following:

2. Install intrusion devices on all accessible windows, either glass-break or motion
detector.

Phase Three

Continue the steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

3. Establish a fully integrated intrusion system with the following functionalities:
• When a court building is closed, every external door should be equipped

with a device that will trigger an alarm at the control center of the
appropriate responding agency and identify the intruded area.

• During business hours, every door that is kept locked should be equipped
with a device that will trigger an alarm that will identify the area intruded
at the command and control center within the building. Every locked door
with an emergency exit bar should trigger an alarm whenever anyone uses
it, with a ten-second delay consistent with local codes

• When the building is closed, this alarm should go to the control center of
the appropriate responding law enforcement agency; when the building is
open, the alarm should go to the building’s command and control center.

• All windows that are reasonably accessible from the exterior perimeter of
the building (e.g., first floor, basement, possibly second floor) should be
protected against intrusion. This can be accomplished with a passive
infrared motion detector (PR) in each room (or combination of rooms) that
has an accessible window or by attaching a motion sensor to each window.

Best Practice

Continue the steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

4. Integrate CCTV cameras into the system described above so that cameras will be
activated in the area(s) of intrusion.

National Centerfor State Courts 23

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security Februaiv 2010

TOPIC C-5: JURORS

Phase One

1. Provide jurors with court security information before they report for duty by
placing information on the jury summons they receive. For example:

• Where to enter the court building.
• What items (e.g., knives, nail files, scissors) should not be brought into the

court building.
• Not to discuss cases with anyone before and during jury service.
• Not to wear juror ID badges outside the court building.

2. Screen jurors as they enter the court building or before they report to the jury
assembly area.

3. Give a basic security and building evacuation orientation and ID badge to jurors at
the assembly area before going to the courtroom. Cover such matters as what to
do in case of an emergency and how to respond to a coded emergency
announcement.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. Assign a CSO to the jury room whenever juror payment is being made and when
juror funds are obtained and transported back and forth to the court building.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

5. Assign a CSO to provide security inside and outside the jury assembly room when
jurors are present.

6. Assign a CSO to escort jurors to and from the courtroom. If jurors who are
serving on a jury trial are dining as a group outside the court building, a CSO
should accompany them. If an elevator is used to transport jurors, one CSO should
supervisor the loading of jurors and another CSO should meet the jurors on the
floor on which they disembark.

7. Assign a CSO to remain with the jury during the entire trial/deliberation.

National Centerfor State Courts 24

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

TOPIC C-6: PARKING
(PARTICULARLY FOR JUDGES)

Phase One

1. Remove all signs in judges’ parking area that identify spots either by name or title
of judge. Any signs should simply say reserved along with a number as
appropriate.

2. Each judge should notify law enforcement officials or a CSO of their arrival in the
morning and be escorted into the court building if they park in an unprotected
public parking lot.

3. Judges should be escorted to the unprotected parking lot by a CSO when they
leave at night.

Phase Two

Continue the steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. Fence in the judges’ parking lot and require that an electronic card access system
is used for entrance into the court building. Install privacy slats if a chain-link
fence is used.

5. Judges and court staff should be escorted to their cars or other mode of
transportation after business hours.

Phase Three

Continue the steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

6. Provide secure parking for judges, court staff, and jurors.
7. Install CCTV cameras in secure parking lots.
8. Provide judges and court staff a regular patrol presence in the parking areas in the

morning, during the lunch hour, and at close of business.

Best Practice

Continue the steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

9. Provide a secure parking area, preferably covered, for judges where they can
proceed directly from their car, through screening, to their chambers without
traversing any public areas or main court building entrance areas.

National Centerfor State Courts 25

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

TOPIC C-7: PUBLIC COUNTERS AND OFFICES

Phase One

1. Install one or more duress alarms at the main public counter. Train staff on the
functionality of duress alarms and on the protocols for use.

2. Keep window coverings in offices (e.g., drapes, blinds) lowered to restrict
observation from outside.

3. Install Plexiglas-type enclosures at cash counters.
4. Keep cash and checks in a secure, locked area overnight.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

5. Install Plexiglas-type enclosures at all public counters.
6. Install duress alarms strategically in the back areas of offices.
7. Keep cash and checks and daily change locked in a safe overnight.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

8. Install CCTV cameras at all public counters.
9. Install an alarm on the safe.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

10. Install CCTV cameras overlooking the safe.
11. Provide regular security patrols by CSOs at the public counters.

National Center for State Courts 26

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Category D: Important

TOPIC D-l: CASH HANDLING

Phase One

1. Develop and train court staff on procedures for handling cash. The procedures
should

• Determine who should collect the money.
• Determine how to safeguard money during the daytime work hours and

overnight.
• Train staff on how to verify checks and reconcile fees.
• Determine industry standards for deposits.

2. Install protective barriers and duress alarms at cash counters.
3. Use an office safe for money storage.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. Install CCTV cameras at counters and in the office.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

5. Use an armored car service or the bank’s personnel to pick up funds daily.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

6. Require two people — one court staff and an armed CSO — when carrying cash.

TOPIC D-2: EXTERIORJINTERIOR PATROLS

Phase One

1. Request that the local law enforcement agency conduct exterior patrols,
particularly during times when the building is closed.

2. Develop a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with local law enforcement
regarding which agency is responsible to protect the exterior of the court building
during and after business hours.

National Centerfor State Courts 27

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

3. Conduct regular CSO interior patrols by CSOs assigned to work in the court
building, focusing on crowded hallways.

4. Assign CSO exterior patrols both regularly and randomly throughout the day.

Phase Three

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

5. Continue to increase both interior and exterior CSO patrols of the court building.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

6. Require scheduled patrols of all interior and exterior areas 24/7, either by CSOs
or local law enforcement officers.

TOPIC D-3: PERIMETER ISSUES

Phase One

1. Provide for sufficient lighting around the building perimeter, including parking
areas. Lighting should be sufficient to provide a reasonable level of safety for
judges and staff going to and from the court building during hours of darkness. It
should also be sufficient for perimeter CCTV cameras to capture images.

2. Keep doors locked after hours and allow access only via appropriately authorized
key or access cards.

3. Keep all shrubbery and trees properly trimmed to prevent hiding places or access
to the court building roof for persons or packages.

4. Conduct daily security checks around the perimeter.

Phase Two

Continue steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

5. Provide a secure parking area for judges with signs that do not indicate that the
space is being used by a judge (e.g., signs should not say for official use only).

6. Install intrusion alarms to cover all exterior doors and accessible windows.

National Center for State Courts 28

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Phase Three

Continue steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

7. Install CCTV cameras around the perimeter (at each corner of the court building).
8. Install bollards as necessary outside selected (main) entrance doors, ground floor

(accessible) windows, and other vulnerable areas.
9. Enclose and secure all exposed utilities.

Best Practice

Continue steps in Phases One, Two, and Three, plus add the following:

10. Replace keys with an electronic card access system (except for back-up
emergency) on exterior door entrances to the court building.

11. Provide secure parking for staff and jurors. Secure parking for judges and staff
should have the following attributes:

• Protected from public access
• Protected from public view
• Required electronic access, by way of card or other appropriate device
• CCTV cameras in place and operating

TOPIC D-4: PUBLIC LOBBIES, HALLWAYS, STAIRWELLS,
AND ELEVATORS

Phase One

1. Provide emergency lighting in the court building.
2. Establish egress/ingress standards regarding stairwells, hallways, and elevators.
3. Establish emergency procedure and evacuation diagrams.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. Designate secure and public elevators.
• Provide secure elevator(s) for judges.
• Provide secure elevator for prisoner transport.

5. Install appropriate signage to alert the public to what items cannot be brought into
the court building (i.e., guns, knives, scissors).

National Centerfor State Courts 29

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buildi,w Security February 2Q10

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

6. Install CCTV cameras in lobbies, hallways, stairwells, and elevators in the court
building and provide secure elevator(s) with electronic card access.

7. Assign a CSO to regularly patrol these areas in accordance with an assigned
schedule.

8. Install a public address system in the building to facilitate announcements and
emergency codes.

TOPIC D-5: SCREENING MAIL AND PACKAGES

Phase One

1. Provide routine visual inspection of all mail/packages coming into the court
building, to include addressee verification and examination of suspicious items.

2. Require staff to attend training on postal security and package identification
techniques provided by the United States Postal Service (USPS).

3. Develop and practice a response protocol with law enforcement when a package is
identified as suspicious or dangerous.

Phase Two

Continue all steps in Phase One, plus add the following:

4. Require all mail and packages to be processed through an x-ray machine.
5. Require everyone delivering mail or packages to pass through the magnetometer.

Best Practice

Continue all steps in Phases One and Two, plus add the following:

6. Best practice is to establish a single and separate offsite screening station or
location for all mail and packages delivered to the court building. It may not be
feasible for smaller courts to have an offsite location dedicated exclusively to its
use. Smaller courts may work with the USPS, county, or other local officials to
find shared offsite space for this purpose. Best practices for operating the
mailroom for larger courts include the following:

• All mail, packages, and parcels from USPS, FedEx, UPS, DHL, and other
carriers should be thoroughly screened (x-ray and explosive trace detector,
if suspicious) upon being received at the mailroom. This includes all
USPS mail delivered and picked up by court staff from the local post
office.

National Centerfor State Courts 30

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Buildj~g Security February 2010

• Deliveries of flowers, candy, food, gifts, etc., to any person located in a
court building should be cleared through the mailroom first, be verified and
vouched for by the recipient, screened as appropriate, and then delivered.

• Mailroom staff should sort incoming mail and packages off site by
building, division, and/or department and prepare them for acceptance by
designated representatives of each court office or division.

• Designated representatives of each court office or division should go to the
mailroom, pick up mail for distribution to their offices, and identify
questionable items. All authorized court and other staff mail handlers
should attend training on handling suspicious mail. Local USPS or postal
inspectors may conduct advanced training for state and local government
agencies.

National Centerfor State Courts 3]

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Steps to Best Practices for
Court Building Security February 2010

Sample Court Building Color Codes

Professional emergency responders advise that, as much as possible, communication
during an emergency should be clear, understandable, and simple. Presently, state and local
courts use different warning systems and language to advise court building occupants what to do
during an emergency. The decision whether to stay or leave a court building during an
emergency ofien can be the difference between life and death.

Realizing that clear communication and understandable instructions are vital, courts have
been advised by the NCSC to use universal color codes and practice drills to augment their
existing evacuation procedures. Using the same color-coded language in every court building
will ensure that employees will understand and react properly to emergencies.

• — Situational Awareness
o Cautionary: Be aware and prepared to react to danger.
o A dangerous situation may be developing in the court building.

• Code Red — Imminent Danger
o Stay put! An active shooter is in the court building or there is a hostage situation.
o Get into an emergency protective posture or in a safe haven.

• Code Green — Emergency — Evacuate Building
o Listen to instructions from your floor warden.
o Report to your assigned location away from court building.

• Code Blue — Emergency Team Responding
o An emergency team is responding to or is in the court building.
o Wait for further instructions from officials.

• Code White — Administrative/Informational
o Return to normal operations.
o All is well.

National Centerfor State Courts 32

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



PBO

RECOMMENDATION

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Civil Courts (#22) — General Fund
Operating_Budget Total with

On-going One-time Total Capital Capital FTE P80 Comments Pg#
FY 11 Target Budget The office submitted its budget at the
Submission $ 5,632,650 $ - $ 5,632,650 $ - $5,632,650 71.57 target budget level. —

F?ecommended Requests —

FY 1 1 Technology Replacement computers, printers, fax
Strategy - -. - 44,640 44,640 0 machines, and audio components

An additional blade server to the ITS Data —

Center to support current and future
Blade Server for computer applications for use by the
Courts Application - - - 20,600 20,600 0 Courts. —

Mail Server and
Housing - - - 8,700 8,700 0 A separate mail server plus additional rack. —

An Earmark on Allocated Reserve of
Family Drug $185,439 to consider continuing this
Treatment Court - - - - - 0 program in case the grant is not renewed.

Electronic Docket Equipment installation for the display of
Displays - 1 1,500 1 1 ,500 17,000 28,500 0 docket information at the HMS Courthouse. —

This request is for funding to begin the Civil
and Family Justice Center design phase
and the addition of 2 FTE in the
department to support the design,
development, implementation and ongoing
maintenance of the court technology
requirements. P80 has included
$2,100,000 in a Special Planning Reserve
in the FY 1 1 Preliminary Budget for this
project as was done with the initial planning

Civil and Family funding for the Downtown Campus Master
Justice Center - - - - - 0 Planning effort in the FY 09 budget. —

Diana Ramirez, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget
7/20/2010

Civil Courts
Page 1 of 6

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Operating_Budget Total with —

On-going One-time Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments Pg#
Fund ing for various pieces of

Furniture replacement furniture for Judges,
Replacement - - - 7,760 7,760 0 jurors, and staff. —

Recommended Reductions

None -1 - I

Total FY11
Preliminary Budget

PBO Recommended
IncreaselDecrease

S 5,632,650 5 11,500

11,500

$ 5,644,150

11,500

$ 98,700

98,700

$ 5,742,850

110,200

73.57

Budget Request On-going

BUDGET REQUESTS

Operating Budget
One-time Total

NOT PF(~OMMPNDED FOR FUNDING

Total Is-Is -Is -Is -Is -I-I I

Security for
Judqes

Capital

UNKNOWN

Total with
Capital FTE

0

PBO Comments
This request is not included in the
Preliminary Budget because the cost
figures for the security assessment
conducted by TCSO were finalized in mid
July. PBO expects that the
Commissioners Court will hold a Security
Budget Hearing in Executive Session to
discuss all of the Security Committee’s
recommendations.

Pg#

Diana Ramirez, FY 2011 Preliminaiy Budget
7/20/2010

Civil Courts
Page 2 of 6

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



ADULT PROBATION DEPARTMENT
ofTravis County

Central Unit North Unit Mental Health Unit South Unit SMART
411 W. 13th Street, 10409 Burnet Rd 4920 111 35 North 4011 McKinney Falls Pkwy 3404 S FM 973

Suite 400 Austin, TX 78758 Suite 110 Suite 1300 Del Valle, TX
Austin, TX 78701 512-854-9775 Austin, TX 78751 Austin, TX 78744 78617

512-854-4600 512-854-4533 Fax 512-854-1800 512-854-CSCD (2723) 512-854-3150
512-854-4606 Fax 512-854-4612 Fax 512-854-4612 Fax 512-247-5567 Fax

Mailing Address: P0 Box 2245 Austin, Texas 78768-2245
www.co.travis.tx~us/Adu ltProbation Dr. Geraldine Nagy, Director
Voice Response System: 512-495-6563 or 1-800-451-3887 Rosie RamOn-Durán, Assistant Director

July 15, 2010

Travis County Judge and Commissioners:

The Department is requesting that the County approve $89,425 annually to support transitional supportive
housing for prohationers. Due to decreased funding, the Adult Probation Department can no longer
contribute toward the cost of transitional housing for high need/high risk probationers.

The probationers that Burkes serves are those who have significant employment barriers, no
housing options, often cannot meet their daily basic needs, have no income while they are waiting for SSI
benefit approval and have no natural support system due to a disability (MH issues/Substance Abuse
issues) or offense, sex offenders. These individuals cannot go to the Salvation Army or ARCH or other
homeless shelters. They either remain in jail until they serve their sentence or get released to the street,
where in the case of the MH clients can be abused or, with sex offenders, cannot be monitored to ensure
public safety. Placement at Burkes provides the P0 with the ability to monitor as well as provide a safe,
secure environment for high need clients.

Typically, the homeless also require case management services which are costly. In the case of
probationers, the POs serve as case managers so do not over burden the Travis County HHS system as do
other homeless clients.

Burkes Supervised Living, a long-time Department vendor, has recently been awarded a Travis County
contract for transitional housing through Travis County Criminal Justice Planning for exiting State Jail
offenders. In an effort to provide equal access to transitional housing services for persons with criminal
histories, the County should also ensure that high need/high risk homeless probationers have access to
transitional housing. One option to secure housing for a limited number of probationers would be via a
contract modification to the existing Criminal Justice Planning housing contract.

The Department respectfully encourages the County to approve the attached budget request either directly
to Adult Probation or via the existing Criminal Justice Planning contract.

Dr. Geraldine Nagy
Director

Travis County Adult Probation Building Bridges, Not Walls

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET SUBMISSION
BUDGET REQUEST PROPOSAL

Name of Budget Request & Priority #: Emergency Beds for Special Needs Probationers - 2
Fund/Department/Division: 001/39/10
Total Amount Requested: $89,425
Collaborating Departments/Agencies:
Contact Information (Name/Phone): Lila Oshatz - 854-7602

1. Summary Statement: Include one or two sentences to be included in Commissioners
Court materials.

CSCD requests funding for emergency housing for probationers upon jail release who have
specialized needs and/or offenses, such as the homeless mentally ill, homeless sex offenders and
homeless substance abusers. These populations are at a very high risk of re-offending.

There is a need for residential stabilization services for special needs probationers. When high
risk/ high need probationers exit the County Jail with homeless status, it is critical that
emergency housing, defined as 90 day stabilization housing services, be provided to protect both
the community and the client. This is a population that cannot access Salvation Army or other
locally funded emergency shelter options due to their offense or mental health and co-occurring
disorder status. At the beginning of FY 2010, we contracted for nine transitional housing beds,
two of which are reserved for MH clients. Special needs Homeless Probationers are often
released from jail and cycle right back into jail due to lack of transitional housing, this is
especially true for MH probation population. This population may be eligible for SSI benefits
(disability benefits) but they need safe and secure housing while applying for these benefits.
Homeless status makes it nearly impossible for applications to be submitted and processed if the
client does not have a stable living situation. Continuing to house these probationers in the
county jail while waiting for appropriate housing options to become available can continue to
impact jail overcrowding.

TDCJ has not funded this service delivery strategy for several years and the Department has tried
to maintain some level of funding for emergency housing in order to meet court sentencing
needs. In FY 2009, the Department funded twelve transitional beds. For FY 2010, the
Department began by funding nine transitional beds but will have to reduce that to four
transitional beds for the fourth quarter of 2010 due to lack of funding. However, for FY 2011, the
Department can no longer continue to provide any funding for housing due to additional budget
constraints from TDCJ. Without support from the County, these special needs population will be
homeless upon jail release.

Funds requested: 7 regular beds @ $25/day = $63,875/year; 2 MH beds @ $35/day
$25,550/year. Total request is $89,425.

2. Description of Request: Describe the request, including current issues and how the
request relates to the mission and services provided by the department. Include
historical information related to the request where relevant.

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



3a. Pros: Describe the arguments in favor of this proposal.
Will reduce jail overcrowding and will facilitate appropriate placement of high risk/high need
probationers in a stable housing setting to transition to more permanent housing in a timely
manner. Will reduce re-cycling of homeless probationers through the revolving jail door with the
availability of transitional housing. Will maintain current community safety and client safety
practices.

3b. Cons: Describe the arguments against this proposal.
This is a relatively small population.

4. Anticipated Outcome of Request and Proposed Timeline: Timeline should include
the expected dates of results and may extend past FY 11.

Reduction in jail central booking of sex offender, MH and some substance abuse clients and
decrease of these populations contributing to jail overcrowding. The population numbers being
proposed are relatively small as they reflect only the severely high risk/high need probationers
for a total proposed population of approximately 36 clients. Results realized should be a
reduction in bookings of approximately nine homeless special needs probationers every 90 days
during FY 2011.

5. Description of Program Measurement and Evaluation: Describe how the proposal
will be measured and evaluated and if this includes an independent evaluation
component. In addition, indicate whether a comparative analysis of similar local
programs is available.

Department’s research section will monitor and track housing placements for return to jail for the
targeted populations. The Department is not aware of a similar local program that provides
emergency housing for strictly special needs probation populations.

6a. Performance Measures: List applicable current and new performance measures
related to the request and note the changes for FY 11 should this request be
implemented.

Projected FY 11
Measure at

Target Level

6b. Impact on Performance: Describe the impact of funding the request on departmental
performance measures, service levels, and program outcomes:

Projected FY 11
Measure with

Added Funding
Measure Name

Emergency Transitional Housing

Actual FY 09
Measure

48

Revised FY
10 Measure

27 0 36

Maintain FY 2010 initial service level by providing nine funded transitional housing beds every
90 days.

7. Impact of Not Funding: Describe the impact of not funding the request in FY 11.

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Court sentencing practices will be dramatically altered if housing stabilization option is no
longer funded. The Department cannot fund this strategy for FY 2011. Continuation of the
revolving jail door practice of releasing homeless special needs probationers who have no
housing. Community and clients will be at greater risk.
8. Leveraged Resources: If proposal leverages other resources such as existing internal

resources or grant funding, list and describe impact. If resources from similar
existing program(s) will not be reallocated, give reasons and include analysis.

TDCJ has never provided grant funding for housing services and the Department budget can no
longer sustain funding for these services. The County currently funds transitional housing for
offenders leaving the state jail. These offenders are not necessarily special needs offenders. The
probationers who would be served by this funding request are special needs offenders. The
Department has been an active member of Travis County and City of Austin collaboration
groups for supportive housing and has provided data as applicable to work groups to establish
the need for transitional supportive housing for the MH population county-wide. While some
progress has been made recently by the City of Austin to re-purpose federal housing funds for
supportive housing units, it may be 12-18 months before housing options can be accessed by the
probation population, if at all, as priority may be given initially to non-criminal justice MH
clients. Other special needs probationers such as sex offenders, who are extremely high risk, and
probationers with co-occurring disorders may experience even slower access to housing services.
The Department has attempted to apply for housing funding for probationers exiting the county
jail through a Second Chance grant application, but our target population was not selected to be
included as part of the grant application.

9. Additional Revenue: If this proposal generates additional revenue, list the amount
and the assumptions used for the estimate. (Attach a copy of the form submitted to
the Auditor’s Office).

This request would not generate additional revenue.

10. Collaboration: If this proposal was discussed with other departments/agencies that
provide similar or supporting services that could be impacted, describe impact and
list the other departments/agencies and their points of contact. Suggest ways all
departments/agencies can collaborate to ensure success of the proposal.

For transitional housing beds, if the probationer needs medication support they will be referred to
Travis County MHMR. For sex offenders, by having a residence, the probationer can begin court
ordered sex offender treatment upon release from jail. The Department works with contracted
sex offender therapists and polygraphers to provide sex offender treatment.

11. If requesting a new position(s), is office space currently available? V/N NA
If no, attach plan from Facilities Mgmt. explaining how to acquire space for this
proposal. identify proposed position location below:

Building Address Floor #
Suite/Office # Workstation #

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Name of Budget Request: lEmergency Beds for Special Needs Probationers
Budget Request Priority #: I 2 I Dept #: I 39 IName:I Community Supervision & Corrections

A. Personnel
Fund

%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Line
6024
6026

Position Title

TOTAL PERSONNEL

Description
Residential Services
Residenti Svcs-Spec Prog

Pay
Grade

Fund
001
001

FTE

Dpt
39
39

Fund

Div
10
10

Div

Act
585
585

Emp
Type

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

$
Salary

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

One-Time
Cost

Annual Cost
Benefits

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Ongoing
Cost

$ 63,875
$ 25,550

$
Total

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

B. Operating

TOTAL OPERATING
$
$

$
$ 89,425

Total
$ 63,875
$ 25,550
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$ 89,425

C._Computer/Telecommunication_and Capital Related to This Request
TOTAL COMPUTER/TELECOMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT FROM ITS FORMS -

TOTAL CAPITAL EQUIPMENT FROM CAPITAL BUDGET REQUEST (PB-6)
TOTAL ALL CAPITAL -

TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST One-Time $ Ongoing $ Total FY10
TOTAL REQUESTED NON-CAPITAL (A + B) $ - $ 89,425 $ 89,425
TOTAL REQUESTED (A + B + C) - $ 89,425 $ 89,425

Form Completed By: Bob Klepac

FY 2011 BUDGET SUBMISSION
Budget Request Details

Budget Request Details (PB-5)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



PBO

RECOMMENDATION

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Req. #2: Emergency Beds for Special Needs Probationers
FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost

FTEs 0 0 0
Personnel $0 $0 $0
Operating $89,425 $0 $0
Subtotal $89,425 $0 $0
Capital $0 $0 $0
Total Request $89,4251 $01 $0

Dept. Summary of Request:

Request to fund transitional housing beds for homeless and/or mentally ill probationers.

PBO Recommendations & Comments:

The department describes the problem as follows: “There is a need for residential stabilization services for special needs
probationers. When high risk! high need probationers exit the County Jail with homeless status, it is critical that emergency
housing, defined as 90 day stabilization housing services, be provided to protect both the community and the client. This is a
population that cannot access Salvation Army or other locally funded emergency shelter options due to their offense or
mental health and co-occurring disorder status. At the beginning of FY 2010, we contracted for nine transitional housing
beds, two of which are reserved for MH clients. Special needs Homeless Probationers are often released from jail and cycle
right back into jail due to lack of transitional housing, this is especially true for MH probation population. This population may
be eligible for SSI benefits (disability benefits) but they need safe and secure housing while applying for these benefits.
Homeless status makes it nearly impossible for applications to be submitted and processed if the client does not have a
stable living situation. Continuing to house these probationers in the county jail while waiting for appropriate housing options
to become available can continue to impact jail overcrowding.”

The department has internally funded this transitional housing program for several years, but cannot continue to do so due to
state budget cuts. While the County does have an obligation to fund space and equipment needs for the department, most
of the programmatic aspects of the department are funded by the TDCJ. (However, the General Fund does cover one
probation officer assigned to the drug court for misdemeanor defendants). Since Travis County does not have an obligation
to fund the programmatic expenditures within CSCD, this cannot be included in the Preliminary Budget at this time. PBO

Katie Petersen Gipson, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

CSCD
Page 7ofll

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



recommends that the department continue to explore grant opportunities for the housing as well as possibly partnering with
Criminal Justice Planning and their transitional housing program for recent graduates of the Commitment to Change program
in the state jail, as they use the same contractor as CSCD.

While this is an existing program, it would be a new program for the County to fund. The PBO guidelines approved by
Commissioners Court state that the maintaining existing programs take precedence over new programs or enhancements or
expansions to current programs. In addition, this will likely not be the last program to be affected by state budget cuts and
the Commissioners Court should be informed of the consequences of cuts at the state level and the trickle down impact on
the County.

Budget Request Performance Measures:

Actual Revised Projected FY 11 Revised FY 11
FY09 FY 10 Projected Measure at Target Measure with

Description Measure Measure Budget Level Additional Resources
Emergency Transitional Housing 48 27 0 36

The population that is being served is small but prone to frequent jail visits. The department at one time contracted for 12
transitional housing beds. Due to budget cut the number was reduced to nine beds. The budget request is to maintain the
nine beds currently funded by the department which serves 36 people a year. It is very likely that if this population does not
have any transitional housing, they will likely be held in jail until their sentence is completed.

Katie Petersen Gipson, F’~’ 2011 Preliminary Budget CSCD
7/19/2010 Page 8 of 11

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



TCSO Budget Hearing Request
Topics for Discussion

• Crime Trends and Jail Population rising

o Increased drug trafficking operations in the community

o Homicide rates increasing

o Traffic Issues accidents, speeding

• Jail Facility Conditions

• Medical and mental health issues in inmates and in the community

• Insufficient jail/community programs to address needs

• Staffing

o Growing need for more LE deputies

o Corrections Relief Factor

o Support personnel in many areas (within SO and County as a whole)

o Succession planning

• Support for expected technologies — keeping up with demand

• New county buildings and TCSO support for them

• Future vehicle transition

• Increasing complexity of grants and reduced funding levels

• Inmate welfare fund — what we do for the county

• Need to focus on providing services in an unstable and unpredictable economic
situation (at what point are you as efficient as you can be)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



JAMES SYLVESTER GREG HAMILTON
Chief Deputy TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF

P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

(512) 854-9770 MARK SAWA

www.tcsheriff.org Major - Administration & Support

April 21, 2010

Judge and County Commissioners of Travis County

Greetings,

Attached you wifl find the FY 2011 budget submission for the Travis County Sheriff’s Office.

For the past two years now our agency has been placed in the position of having to cut our expenses and
staffing levels in response to the continued economic downturn nationally as well as locally. In the early
phases of these cuts we were fortunately seeing downward trends in both crime in our county as well as
falling numbers in respect to our local jail population. Unfortunately, it would appear that those trends
have ended and we are beginning to see the opposite, especially when it comes to trends concerning
violent crime in the Austin area. I am very concerned in regards to this situation and the long-term
impact we will see on our citizens and community.

You will find that in accordance with the guidelines you have set for this budget year I have only
submitted requests that in short “keep the ship” afloat. This includes staffing designed to ensure that we
meet the growing number of statutes and regulations we find ourselves saddled with, as well as just the
number of support staff needed to support the growing number of technology improvements that have
now become baseline expectations in our industry. What was once considered “high-tech” is now
considered the norm and demanded by both internal operations arid outside entities. You will also find
requests for our considered demand for inmate medical and psychiatric care as despite attempts to get
the appropriate state and local agencies to step up and provide services to these persons, my agency Is
still a large provider in our community. Our inmates are coming in with more problems that require
treatment and I am legally required to provide for their care. We work diligently to comply with Jail
Standards and other legal mandates that are placed upon us. My staff also ensure that daily we work on
mandates that have been passed down by other entities without any tangible funding tied to those
statutes, or at least any funding that benefits those that are required to provide the services.

So, with that said, what you do not see in this budget are requests that would form a proactive response
to some of the crime trends that we see evolving in our community. The rules set forth for our
submissions really do not allow for this.

We are truly seeing our community changing before our very eyes. The Austin area is beginning to see
our homicide rates soar as evidenced with one of the highest homicide rates on record so far this year.
We have just been labeled a high-intensity drug trafficking area (HIDTA) by the federal government with
the revelations that we have organized drug cartel operations going on right here in our communities.
My law enforcement officers have had a series of high-profile cases in the last year where drug cases

DARREN LONG
Major — corrections

PHYLLIS CLAIR
Major — Law Enforcement

1

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



have taken on an industrial nature and not just Street trafficking. We are also seeing gang-related
activities rise in the community and these gangs are not simply street youths committing minor crimes.
These are organized groups who operate in our community with the tenacity of a growing Fortune 500
corporation. This is elevating our law enforcement activities to a whole new level. We continue to
attempt to address traffic matters and DWI’s in a community that continues to find elevated levels of
both of these issues. However, we continue to try and meet these trends with the same number of
officers and resources as county resources are not available or have been directed elsewhere.

I am concerned that any continued cuts to my agency would have a direct impact on the citizens of the
county. While on the surface it may seem “fair” that we all have to cut equally in an attempt to balance
the books, I am concerned that law enforcement is feeling the brunt of this simply because we have the
largest budget. There is a reason we have the largest budget, that being that we provide a direct
response to the calls of our constituents for help and that volume takes the most personnel and
equipment. These citizens are individuals who generally are victims of situations that they have been
forced into, or where they had very little control over the matter. Be it cases of child abuse, robbery,
burglary, or even homicide, I am concerned that lesser required programs seem to take precedence at
times over these basic response needs of our constituents.

I have patiently heard the words of the economists about how and when things are going to turn around
in our area. As a responsible steward of the taxpayer’s funds I have attempted to stretch that dollar as
far as I can and ensure that it goes towards the most basic of responses. Again, that places us largely in
a reactive mode of operation with little to no funds to go towards any proactive responses to either
prevent or correct these behaviors. As we all know this is not the best response possible. My goal
continues to focus on making our community as a whole the safest place not only in Texas but in the
United States and that will take resources, both today and in the future.

In closing, I continue to abide by the rules and regulations set by the governing financial body of Travis
County but am becoming increasingly concerned that future cuts and the ensuing reduction in services
levels for both our law enforcement and corrections duties will ultimately have consequences that will
have a direct impact on the safety and well-being of our citizens.

I appreciate your time and look forward to discussing these items with you as the budget considerations
progress.

pec,~~

S iff Greg Hamilton

2

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



PBO

RECOMMENDATION

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Department: Sheriff’s Office (37)
Fund: General Fund (001)

FY 2011 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Operating_Budget Total with
On-going One-time Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments Pg#

FY 11 Target Submitted at the Target Budget
Budget Submission $122,574,987 $ - $122,574,987 $ - $122,574,987 1,453.5 Funding Level. 6-8

Recommend Requests & PBC ~djustment
Phlebotomy Contract, May 1 1 & June 22, 2010 Interlo
Del Valle Contract & cal Agreements & County Contri
Grant Adjustments 92,271 800 93,071 3,757 93,071 1.0 bution to Grant Salary Changes 7
Corrections Support 3 Classification Staff FTE5, in lieu
Staff for Building 12 (5) - (5) - (5) 1.0 of 2 Corrections Officer FTE5 7
L E Project Manage- FTE is Funded by Eliminatingl
ment Dvsn Mngr Certified Nursing Assistant, and
f~ET Oprtng Bdgt) (707) 600 (107) 6,174 6,067 0.0 Reducing Overtime 16
Maintenance of Corrections Maintenance, Inmate 18-
Current Effort Items 468,708 - 468,708 - 468,708 0.0 Food and Medical Services 21
Corrections Life- Texas Commission on Jail
Safety & Security - - - 736,570 736,570 0.0 Standards & Security Projects 22

Corrections Projects & Equipment
Corrections Bureau for current Inmate Population
Maintenance Projects Requirements, Mental Health
& Central Booking Laptop, Kitchen and Central
Equipment - - - 996,974 996,974 0.0 Booking Equipment 23

LE Equipment - - - 61 000 61,000 0.0 See Page 25 24
Replacement 72 Patrol Vehicles & 12 other 25-
Vehicles—TNR - - - 3,146,100 3,146,100 0.0 Vehicles and Equipment 26
TCJ Extended Life
Projects - - - 1 365,000 1 365,000 0.0 2nd Year of Three-Year Program 27
Courthouse Security Balance to Auditor’s 2nd Revenue
Fund Transfer 11,627 - 11,627 - 1 1,627 0.0 Estimate 35

William Derryberry, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 1 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Operating Budget Total with

On-going One-time I Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments Pg#

Recommended Reductions

$1,849,317 Ongoing None beyond the Ongoing
Reductions in FY 11 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.00 Reductions from FY 10 4

Total FY11
Preliminary Budget $123,146,881 $ 1,400 $123,148,281 $6,315,575 $129,463,856 1,455.5

PBO Recommended
lncreasel(Decrease) $ 571,894 $ 1,400 $ 573,294 $6,315,575 $ 6,888,869 0.0

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 2 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



BUDGET REQUESTS NOT RECOMMENDED FOR FUNDING

Operating_Budget Total with
Budget Request On-going One-time Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments Pg#

Corrections Relief
Factor 3,552,622 49,598 3,602,220 - 3,602,220 68.0 9-12
Law Enforcement Project Management position funded by
Personnel 209,623 9,838 219,461 111,344 330,805 3.0 eliminating 1 existing FTE and Overtime 13-16
CTECC Security Request related to CTECC Security
Officer 54,793 2,018 56,811 2,757 59,568 1.0 Interlocal Agreement Proposal 17
Maintenance of
Current Effort Items 1,193,966 - 1,193,966 - 1,193,966 0.0 18-21

The following requests were not
considered for the Preliminary Budget
due to current economic conditions.

Administrative 3 Business Analyst l’s, 1 Fleet Services
Support Personnel 415,931 3,000 418,931 65,116 484,047 7.0 Coordinator, 2 HR Assts Sr, & 1 Painter
Corrections Support 3 Corrections Sergeants, 5 Security
Personnel 711,143 7,791 718,934 47,151 766,085 13.0 Coordinators, &4Office Specialists Sr.
Corrections Life
Safety & Security - - - 96,875 96,875 0.0 See page 22 on this Corrections capital.
Corrections Bureau
Maintenance - - - I ,595,000 I 595,000 0.0 See page 23 on this Corrections Capital.

Additional Vehicles - - - 209,502 209,502 0.0
TNR Replacement 5 Vehicles do not meet current criteria,
Vehicles - - - 227,000 227,000 0.0 and funds availability still pending 25-26

Total $ 6,138,078 $ 72,245 $6,210,323 $2,354,745 $8,565,068 92.0

William Derryberry, F)’ 2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 3 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



BUDGET REDUCTION PROPOSALS NOT ACCEPTED

FY11 5% Gross Reduction Target: $6,128,749
Net AdIustments (FY10 Accepted Reductions Less Restorations) ($1~849~317)
FY11 5% Net Reduction Target: $4,279,432

FY11 Net 5% Reduction Submitted: $ -0-

Note:
1. $4,279,432 of the Budget Reduction Proposals for the Sheriff’s Office were prepared by the Planning and Budget Office as required
by the FY 11 Budget Guidelines (Section D. Budget Submissions) approved by Commissioners Court on February 23, 2010.

Budget Operating Budget
Reduction Total with
Proposal On-going One-time Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments Pg#

Inmate
Medical 2 Licensed Vocational Nurses (PG
Services Staff (123,692) - (123,692) - (123,692) (2.00) 15) Replace w/Contract Nurses 29
Human
Resources 1 Human Resources Asst II (PG 13)
Staff (86,403) (86,403) - (86,403) (2.00) 1 Office Specialist Sr (PG 12) 29
Cold Case Unit
(LE) (174,829) - (174,829) - (174,829) (2.00) 2 LE Detectives (PG 75) 29
Training
Academy (126,838) - (126,838) - (126,838) (2.00) 1 Deputy & 1 Corrections Officer 29
Trans/CHS
mm ate ADP
Held Constant (189,214) - (189,214) - (189,214) (3.00) 3 Certified Peace Officers (PG 84) 29
Research &
Planning (65,544) - (65,544) - (65,544) (1.00) 1 Planner 29
Finance
Section Staff (46,613) - (46,613) - (46,613 (2.00) 2 Account Clerks (PG 1 1) 29
Community
Service 1 Community Liaison (PG 18)
Program Staff (244,624) - (244,624) - (244,624) (4.00) 3 Deputy Sheriffs (PG 72) 29
LE
Administrative 1 Law Enforcement Spclst. (PG 13)
Support (124,746) - (124,746) - (124,746) (3.00) 2 Office Specialist Srs (PG 12) 29

William Derryberry, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 4 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Reduction Operating Budget Total with
Proposal On-going One-time Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments Pg#

1 LE Sgt & 4 Deputy Sheriffs
LE Lake Patrol (342,072) - (342,072) - (342,072) (5.00) Continue Summer use of SROs 29
Medical
Services
Psychiatrist (120,244) - (120,244) - (120,244) (0.50) 0.5 Psychiatrist (PG 98) 29
Inmate 1 Paralegal (PG 17)
Services Staff (113,812) - (113,812) - (113,812) (2.00) 1 Counselor Sr (PG 16) 29
LE Estray Unit
Staff (62,614) - (62,614) - (62,614) (1.00) 1 Deputy Sheriff (PG 72) 29
Central
Records & 29
Warrants Staff (161,812) - (161,812) - (161,812) (3.00) 3 Records Analysts (PG 17)
Crisis
Intervention 29
Team Staff (63,271) - (63,271) - (63,271) (1.00) 1 Certified Peace Officer (PG 84)
Victim/Witness 2 Victim/Witness Counselors Sr (PG
Section (LE) (101,844) - (101,844) - (101,844) (2.00) 16) 29
TCSO POPS
Add Pay Savings due to Peace Officer Pay 29
Savings (199,918) - (199,918) - (199,918) 0.00 Scale (POPS) position reductions.
TCSO POPS
2.77% Pay 29
Scale Across the board TCSO Peace
Reduction (2,017,814) - (2,017,814) - (2,017,814) 0.00 Officer Pay Scale (POPS) reduction

Sub Total -

Pro posa Is
Not
Accepted $ (4,279,432) $ - $(4,279,432) $ - $(4,279,432) (35.50)

Sub Total -

Proposals Please see Summary Table for
Accepted $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.00 detailed information. 2

William Derryberry, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriff’s Office
7/19/2010 Page 5 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Budget and Programmatic Issue Analysis

The Sheriff’s Office submitted its budget at the Target Budget Funding Level of $122,574,987 which is $844,013 below their FY 10
Adopted Budget of $123,419,000. The $844,013 reduction is due to the following changes from the FY 10 Adopted Budget:

• $1,398,133 decrease to remove the Sheriff’s FY 10 capital costs;
• $ 386,000 increase to Corrections and Medical Services costs for an increase of 100 to the Inmate Average Daily

Population (ADP) estimate;
• $ 109,376 increase for the FY 10 Budget Amendment for 2 FTEs for the Sheriff’s Weekend Alternative Program (SWAP);
• $ 52,281 increase for a Medical Software Maintenance Contract approved by Commissioner’s Court;
• $ 28,743 increase in the Courthouse Security Fund Transfer to fund internal increased costs in FY 11 vis-á-vis the FY 10

Adopted Budget;
• $ 20,726 in net increases in 32 operating line-items throughout the Sheriff’s Office;
• $ 17,390 in increases for the allowed 5% increase in operating line items under the Central Booking Interlocal Agreement;
• $ 11,787 decrease for one-time costs related to FY 10 budget additions for Building 12 Staff;
• $ 9,135 net decrease for conversion of 2 - 0.5 Correction Officer FTEs to 1 - 1.0 Correction Officer FTE; and
• $ 39,474 decrease due to various personnel actions in the Sheriff’s Office during FY 10.

Outstanding/Pending Programmatic Issues:

The most important issue in the Sheriff’s Office budget for FY 11 is related to the inmate average daily population growth. The
transition to the new Building 12 (1,336 inmate beds) facility, at Del Valle, was started in November 2009.

It should be noted that in FY 10, with the elimination of the TCJS variance beds, the closing of TCCC Buildings 5-10 with 384 beds,
and the permanent closure of most of the TCCC Buildings CCA-CCG with 372 beds, the budgeted number of inmate beds in the
Travis County Jail System was 2,903 as compared to 3,056 beds in FY 09. That inmate bed capacity is recommended to
be maintained again in FY 11.

Average Daily Population (ADP) of inmates has been an ongoing issue since the jail overcrowding in FY 02. The annual Average
Daily Population (ADP) of inmates in the Travis County Jail System (TCJS) is as follows:

FY 2002 2,721 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,855
FY 2003 2,263 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,588
FY 2004 2,333 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,500
FY 2005 2,535 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,767

William Deriyberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 6 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2006 2,584 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,768
FY 2007 2,646 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,769
FY 2008 2,511 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,749
FY 2009 2,365 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,607
FY 2010 2,435 Projected with High Month ADP of 2,665

Given the trends experienced this year through the end of June, the inmate ADP for FY 11 is projected at 2,485. The highest ADP
projection for FY 11 by the Sheriff’s Research, Planning & Response Unit is 2,453. At the 2,485 level, there is not a FY 11
requirement for Out-of-County inmate housing with the availability of Building 12 and continuing the total number of inmate beds at
2,903.

Further because of the small year-to-year increase in the inmate ADP, and the fact that the inmate ADP for FY 10 was budgeted at
2,475 with a Corrections Relief Factor (CRF) of 1 .72Xs, it is recommended that the existing staffing level for Corrections be left
unchanged using the 1.72 CRF discussed on pages 9-12.

Other important issues related to the Sheriff’s request for FY 11 are:

• Corrections Relief Factors for Corrections Officers (57 FTE5) and Security Coordinators (11 FTEs) at a cost of $3,602,220;
• Law Enforcement staff consisting of a Project Management Division Director and Deputy Sheriffs at a cost of $355,734; and
• Corrections Operating Line-Item increases totaling $1 ,662,674.

There is a discussion on these three items under the Sheriff’s requests for Corrections Relief Factors on pages 9 - 12, Law
Enforcement Staff on pages 13-16, and Corrections Operating Line-Item increases on pages 18- 21.

Due to current economic conditions the Sheriff’s Office requests outside of these three issues were not considered for the
Preliminary Budget, with the following exceptions.

PBO is recommending from the Sheriff’s request for Corrections Support staff 3 Office Specialist Seniors, in lieu of eliminating 2
Corrections Officer positions (Slots 292 and 556). These position changes have a FY 11 cost and actual ongoing savings of ($5).
Additionally, the Commissioners Court approved on May 11, 2010 funding 25% of Phlebotomy Services in Central Booking in the
amount of $15,061 under an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Austin. Further, the Commissioners Court approved on June 22,
2010, under the Del Valle ISD Interlocal addition of a Senior Deputy Sheriff, as a School Resource Officer, at a FY 11 cost of
$70,507 along with $3,757 of capital outlay in the F& 11 CAR budget. Finally, there is a PBO adjustment of $7,503 to accommodate
salary and benefits changes for the long-standing grant matches in the Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Bureau.

William Derryber,y. FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 7 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



PBO compiled a list of Sheriff’s Office positions that have been vacant for 180 days or greater as of April26, 2010. There were 5.5
of these positions on the list. With exception of a Deputy Sheriff Sr position held open as an ongoing grant match, the Sheriff’s
Office indicated they are attempting to fill all these positions at this time. The Licensed Vocational Nurse positions vacancy funding
are used to backfill for like Contract Nursing staff.

These vacancies are summarized as follows:

Percent of Average Nr. of
Category or Type of Position Number Category Days Vacant Comments

Licensed Vocational Nurses 2.0 5.56% 351 Days Contract Backfills
Deputy Sheriff Sr 1.0 0.32% 481 Days Grant Match
Certified Nursing Assistant 1.0 1.00% 312 Days Actively Recruiting
Building Maintenance Worker 1.0 4.00% 227 Days New in FY 10
Psychiatrist 0.5 50.00% 827 Days Current Candidate
All 180 Day + Vacancies 5.5 0.37% 380 Days
As of June 30th none of these positions were filled. The Certified Nursing Assistant is recommended for elimination to provide
partial funding for the addition of a Project Management Div Mgr (PG 30) position in the Law Enforcement Bureau.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010 Sheriffs Office

Page 8 of36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Request 1: Corrections Relief Factor

FY 11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost
FTEs 68.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ 3,540,204 $ - $ -

Operating 62,016 0 0
Subtotal $ 3,602,220 $ - $ -

Capital - -

Total Request $ 3,602,2201 $ -I $ -

Dept. Summary of Request: Add staffing to move from a relief factor of 1.72 to 1.83, consisting of 57 Corrections Officers andli
Security Coordinators. The Sheriff’s Office provided the following information on this request.

TCSO has been using a 1.72 relief factor calculation since 1996. The 1.72 calculation is too low due to several
contributing time-used factors. However, the most significant increase in the factor can be contributed to the time-
used for shift breaks due to shift briefings. Two additional calculations conducted in 2007 and 2008 continue to
support the 2004 calculation. The Corrections RF committee supports using an average of the three calculations,
1.83, to mirror the recommendation of the 2004 study to use a sliding three year average; in the absence of a 2006
calculation 2004 is utilized.

P80 Recommendations & Comments: Due to the current economic conditions and under the criteria in the FY 11 Budget
Guidelines approved by Commissioners Court on February 23, 2010, PBO does not recommend this request for inclusion in the FY
11 Preliminary Budget.

Since the FY 02 jail overcrowding, annual Average Daily Population (ADP) of inmates in the Travis County Jail System has been:

FY 2002 2,721 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,855
FY 2003 2,263 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,588
FY 2004 2,333 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,500
FY 2005 2,535 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,767
FY 2006 2,584 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,768
FY 2007 2,646 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,769
FY 2008 2,511 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,749
FY 2009 2,365 Actual with High Month ADP of 2,607
FY 2010 2,435 Projected with High Month ADP of 2,665

William Derryberry, FV2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriff’s Office
7/19/2010 Page 9 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



In FY 04 TCSO’s Corrections Bureau was reduced by 42 Corrections Officers as a result of the inmate population decline.
However, part of the FY 04 reduction of 42 Officers was for 7 Officers related to elimination of the Convicted Offenders Re-entry
Effort (CORE) Program and for 4 Officers due to Food Services program efficiencies determined during an evaluation of that
program in FY 03. The balance of 31 Corrections Officers was related to the inmate population reduction.

In FY 06 TCSO’s Corrections Bureau was increased by 42 positions consisting of 36 Corrections Officers and 6 Security
Coordinators to staff an annual Average Daily Population (ADP) of inmates of 2,675 at a relief factor of 1.72

In FY 09 TCSO’s Corrections Bureau was increased by 29 positions consisting 1 Corrections Lieutenant, I Corrections Sergeant,
21 Corrections Officers and 6 Security Coordinators related for opening of the new Building 12 based on an annual ADP of 2,650 at
a relief factor of 1.72.

In FY 10 TCSO’s Corrections Bureau was increased $1.15 million for annualization of the Building 12 positions added in FY 09 and
another 9 positions consisting of 1 Captain, 1 Corrections Lieutenant, 3 Corrections Sergeant, 3 Security Coordinators and 1
Building Maintenance Worker were added to complete the approved incremental staffing for Building 12 at the relief factor of 1.72.

Further, in FY 10 based on a annual ADP of 2,475, which was a drop of 200 in estimated inmate ADP, and the elimination of the
TCJS variance beds, the closing of TCCC Buildings 5-10 with 384 beds, and the permanent closure of most of the TCCC Buildings
CCA-CCG with 372 beds, the budgeted number of inmate beds in the Travis County Jail System was reduce to 2,903 as compared
to 3,056 beds in FY 09. With these changes, it was possible to reduce the budgeted Corrections Bureau custody staff by a total of
20 positions consisting of I Corrections Lieutenant, I Corrections Sergeant and 18 Corrections Officers at the 1.72 relief factor. I
Building Maintenance Worker position was also eliminated related to the building closings.

The inmate bed capacity of 2,903 is recommended to be maintained again in FY 11 since the estimated ADP for FY 10 is
2,435, which if continued will result in a projected ADP for FY11, of 2,485. That FY11 projection is 10 higherthan the
2,475 budgeted for FY 10.

Relief Factor — What is it? and Discussion & Analysis

What is the Relief Factor? The relief factor represents the number of full-time equivalents (FTE’s) required to fill a single shift, 8
hours a day (3 shifts), 7 days a week, considering the average number of position vacancies and time an employee is absent due
to a variety of reasons. It may also be stated to represent requirements for staffing 12-hour shifts (2 shifts), 7 days per week. Both
types of relief factors are used in Travis County since the Travis County Jail (TCJ) and Building One at the Travis County
Correctional Complex (TCCC) use 12-hour schedules. The Relief Factor from the CJI Study used data, available at that time, for
the following categories using 2,080 hours per year for each employee:

• Vacation Time;

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 10 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



• Sick;
• Regular Holiday;
• Personal Holiday;
• Compensatory Time Used;
• Military WI Pay;
• Emergency Leave;
• Holiday Accrual Used;
• Dock Time;
• Military Leave w/o Pay;
• Suspension wlo Pay;
• Workers Compensation (WC) Leave with/Salary Continuation;
• Court Leave;
• Leave w/ Pay Employee Relations;
+ Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Leave Of Absence w/o Pay, Sick Used, Vacation Used, Personal Holiday Used,

Intermittent Leave Without Pay, WC Leave w/ Salary Continuation, and WC No Salary Continuation;
• Leave w/ Pay Health and Safety;
• Training Days;
• Light duty/Restricted Duty; and
• Shift Break Relief.

Additional Backaround

Over the past six years, the Sheriff’s Office has made the following budget requests related to the relief factor or inmate ADP vis-à
vis the current relief factor. In FY 06, 31 Corrections Officers and 6 Security Coordinators were recommended and approved in
response to inmate ADP growth, at a cost of $1.86 million.

Corrections Security Total FTE
Fiscal Year Request Cost Officers Coordinators Positions
2006ADP $1,986,305 31.0 13.0 44.0
2007 CRF $1,601,018 31.0 0.0 31.0
2008 CRF $2,407,758 33.0 18.0 51.0
2009 CRF $3,378,354 55.0 9.0 64.0
2010 CRF $1,877,781 23.0 15.0 38.0
2011 CRF $3,602,220 57.0 11.0 68.0

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 11 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Inmate ADP, Bed Capacity and Correction POPS positions for fiscal years 2006-11.
Travis County Corrections

Fiscal Year Inmate ADP Bed Capacity POPS Positions
2005 Actual 2,535 2,898 649.0
2006 Actual 2,584 2,960 685.0
2007 Actual 2,646 3,056 690.0
2008 Actual 2,511 3,056 696.0
2009 Actual 2,365 3,056 717.0
2010 Budget 2,475 2,903 700.0

2010 Estimate 2,440 2,903 702.0
2011 Estimate 2,490 2,903 702.0

Additionally, the following items are occurring in the current FY 10 budget year.
• As of June 1 1th overall Corrections Personnel spending was expected to be at least $591,000 below budget.
• Within the Personnel savings, overtime is projected to be $141,000, or 17.7%, over the budgeted overtime of $800,319.
• On June 30th, the inmate count was 2,434. That inmate count was 114 less than the average on that date for the past 5 years.
• As of June 1 1th the hours of leave balances for comp, sick and vacation in the Corrections Bureau for Corrections Officers and

Security Officers increased over the past two years by 17,126 hours or 4.59%. This is an average annual increase of about 11
hours. The average monthly accrual in the Corrections Bureau for these positions is currently about 9 hours per month.

• As of June 30th there were 7.0 POPS position vacancies in the Corrections Bureau out of 702 currently available positions or a
1.00% vacancy level. In general, economists believe full employment is reached at a range of 4% to 5%.

The following assumptions form the general basis for the FY 11 recommendation for Corrections staffing:
1. The projected ADP for FY 11 is 2,485, which is 50 more than the current FY 10 projection of 2,435. The 2,485 is 32 higher

than the highest FY 11 ADP estimate from the Sheriff’s Office.
2. Seasonal pattern and annual inmate ADP levels for FY 11 are based on the actual average patterns for the past five fiscal

years, adjusted to reflect the current inmate ADP trend over the first 9 months of FY 10.
3. The total FY 11 Jail Capacity remains at 2,903 as in FY 10.
4. The budgeted classification capacity for flex beds is at 90%, which results in no out-of-county housing cost in FY 11.

Budçjet Request Performance Measures:
Actual Revised Projected FY 11 Revised FY 11
FY09 FY10 Projected Measure at Target Measure with

Description Measure Measure Budget Level Additional Resources
Jail Standards Certification Yes Yes Yes Yes

William Derryberry, FV2OII Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

Sheriffs Office
Page 12 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Request 2: Law Enforcement Personnel

FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost
FTEs 3.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ 227,378 $ (707) $ (707)
Operating 10,838 600 600
Subtotal $ 238,216 $ (107) $ (107)
Capital 117,518 6,174 -

Total Request $ 355,7341 $ 6,0671 $ (107)

Dept. Summary of Request: The Sheriff’s request has requested 3 new positions for the Law Enforcement at a total FY 11 cost of
$355,734. The ongoing annual cost for this request is $230,186.

The Sheriff’s Office provided the following information in support of this request for 3 FTE positions.

1 — Project Management Div Mgr (PG 30) — The concentration of technology related to the forensic
sciences creates an opportunity to design a full-time position to fulfill the role of a Law Enforcement
Technology! Forensic Sciences Manager responsible for:

o Management of Law Enforcement IT Projects
o Supervision of Law Enforcement Mobile Data!Digital Video Technology Support
o Supervision of the Crime Lab and Evidence Warehouse
o Supervision of the Computer Forensic Unit

The Law Enforcement Bureau has at lease 30 unique technologies deployed for successful completion of
its mission. Implementation and maintenance of those systems is performed by a variety of employees,
mostly ad-hoc, but some professional. Many complicated and expensive technologies are currently being
managed by law enforcement managers and staff in addition to their regular duties. The Law
Enforcement Bureau also needs to expand its forensic ability by attaining status as a recognized forensic
laboratory. The skill set required to obtain that goal logically falls under the same scope as a Technology
Manager. In the past, having subject matter expertise, was a curse since not only would you be called on
during analysis phase of a project, but also they would find themselves directly responsible for imple
mentation and sustainability, while performing their regular duties.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 13 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



The Sheriff’s Office (SO) has a small staff of IT Business Consultants and a Manager (Lieutenant). They
support the Law Enforcement Records Management System, but do not have the resources to be
involved with the continuously growing list of Law Enforcement related technology requirements. The SO
has deployed many technologies that were less than successful and other technologies that currently
require dedicated IT project management. The best example was the recent $500,000 expenditure to
correct a failed in-car video system. A lesser example includes the seemingly simple process of racial
profiling scanning from traffic citations. The initial cost to purchase the scanners and software was
$20,733 in 2003. As of today, the implementation of the initial design has not been fully realized, due to
the lack of GAATN to the Commands. Professional project management would have identified this
system limitation during system analysis and offered other solutions.

The Major Crimes Lieutenant (a subject expert), a Technology Deputy (formerly a traffic officer), and one
County IT Business Analyst currently make up the Technology Unit. They are responsible for the
implementation and sustainability of the Digital Video Project (DVP) as well as Mobile Data Computer
(MDC) support, which includes continuous development upgrades to CAD and constant changes to
video archiving and retrieval. Computer Forensics and Crime Lab are also under the Major Crimes
Lieutenant. The Law Enforcement Technology/Science Manager would replace the Major Crimes
Lieutenant in the role of informal technology group leader and allow him to focus full-time on his 35
employees and diverse area of responsibility.

The Evidence Warehouse (currently under East Command) and Crime Lab should be reunited under
single management structure. The Crime Lab and Evidence Warehouse were managed by a civilian
Crime Lab Supervisor for many years. The increasing size of the Central Investigative Units and the
Civilian Supervisor’s retirement caused management to attempt to reorganize to maximize the
supervisory span of control. That structure has been outgrown. Further, the SO increasingly finds itself at
the whim of DPS and APD laboratories to conduct even the simplest analysis. The SO needs to expand
its role in the forensic field to better serve the Citizens and Courts. Currently, the Crime Lab laboratory
only has the capability of latent print recovery and analysis and photography. All other forensic tests must
be outsourced. The SO needs to expand its capabilities in a logical and progressive manner. That ability
will only be realized with professional technology/science management, like those required of other
technology based endeavors, including analysis of agency needs, long-term planning, design, and
project implementation. The first step is identifying the resources needed to implement a certifiable
laboratory. Then equipment and training must be identified. The Crime Lab currently lacks very basic
specialization and equipment necessary to perform ballistic comparison and substance analysis
(spectrometry). Waiting for DPS and APD to process these items can take years. The increased

William Derryberry, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 14 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



capabilities would have a positive effect on the judicial process by shortening delays in drug analysis and
other evidence processing.

We intend to give the Law Enforcement Technology/Science Manger oversight in the Computer Forensic
Unit. Currently one Detective is assigned this task, but the increase in forensic requests from other
Detectives caused by permeation of computers and devices in our everyday lives has forced the SO to
train other Detectives in the forensic field. Eventually this demand will require additional full-time staff
dedicated to computer forensics, since each of these devices potentially contains evidence requiring the
same warrant, equipment, and expertise.

This proposal would increase the efficiency of the SO and create a layer of accountability over the
expensive technologies being implemented. It would also provide unified professional management to
the technology laden Crime Lab, Evidence Warehouse, Computer Forensics, and Technology Unit.

2 — Deputy Sheriffs Law Enforcement (PG 72) - Currently, Travis County has 240 registered sex
offenders reporting where they live in the unincorporated areas of the County. The task of registering
these offenders and maintaining records, along with reporting to Texas Department of Public Safety
(DPS), is the responsibility of one Law Enforcement Specialist (LES). The LES is supported by a Major
Crimes Detective when assistance is needed to acquire warrants for offenders out of compliance.

Many of the offenders have varying reporting requirements mandated by state law. Some may be
required to report in person once a year, twice a year and four times a year. For the purposes of this
proposal, registrants will be referred to by their reporting requirements - Once a year = Tier 1, Twice a
year = Tier 2 and Four times a year = Tier 3.

During the reporting process the offender reports information such as residence, place of work and
vehicle owned or operated. This information is often taken at face value. In an effort to verify at least the
residential address and vehicles owned or operated the SO currently uses Reserve Deputies. It takes
Reserve Deputies approximately one year to verify limited information once on the 240 registered
offenders as verification checks are only conducted once a month, usually a Saturday.

In 2009, 26 warrants were obtained for offenders who failed to comply with registration mandates. 11
offenders failed to register in the time allotted for initial registration or did not schedule their annual
registration, 1 1 offenders were out of compliance - failure to report change of address and did not re
register. 4 offenders were found out of compliance by Reserve Deputies conducting yearly verifications.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriff’s Office
7/19/2010 Page 15 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Sex offenders often discuss reporting and verification efforts of jurisdictions in an effort to find areas
where verification of information is done on an infrequent and less than thorough basis. Offenders then
may move to such jurisdictions in order to have more freedom to conduct illicit activities.

As some sex offenders have violent tendencies and often other criminal history it is necessary for the
verification process to be conducted by a two Deputy team to ensure safety of the offender, community
and Deputies involved.

Addition of two Deputies whose primary duty is verification of ALL information reported by a registrant on
a more frequent basis will result in more accurate up to date information regarding sex offenders regist
ered in Travis County. The result of more accurate and up to date information is a higher compliance
rate and more efficient investigations regarding sex crimes and those of missing or abducted children.

PBO Recommendations & Comments: Due to current economic conditions and under the criteria in the FY 11 Budget
Guidelines approved by Commissioners Court on February 23, 2010, PBO recommends funding of the Project Management Div
Mgr FTE position by elimination of a long-time (10 Months) vacant Certified Nursing Assistant Slot 1,336 in Medical Services and
reductions in overtime and personnel savings. This will result in a FY 11 one-time net cost of $6,067, due to one-time capital costs
of $6,174 and an ongoing savings beginning in FY 12 of ($107) with no net change in FTE positions.

Finally P80 recognizes the program need for the 2 Deputy Sheriff FTE positions but due to FY 11 funding constraints requests that
the Sheriff look within existing resources to meet this need.

Budget Request Performance Measures:
Actual Revised Projected FY 11 Revised FY 11
FY 09 FY 10 Projected Measure at Target Measure with

Description Measure Measure Budget Level Additional Resources
Verification of Tier 1 residential

6 6 6 12address, vehicle owned or operated
Verification of Tier 2 residential

44 44 44 88address, vehicle owned or operated
verification of Tier 3 residential

187 187 187 374address, vehicle owned or operated
Verification of Tier 1 work address 0 0 0 12
Verification of Tier 2 work address 0 0 0 44
Verification of Tier 3 work address 0 0 0 374
Offenders found out of compliance

4 4 4 20through proactive verification

William Derryberry, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010 Sheriffs Office

Page 16 of36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Request 5: CTECC Security Staff

FY 11 Request PBO Recommendation FY12 Cost
FTEs 1.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ 54,288 $ - $ -

Operating 2,523 Pending Approval of the 0
Subtotal $ 56,811 CTECC MOU Partners
Capital 2,757 - -

Total Request $ 59,5681 $ -I $ -

Dept. Summary of Request: The Sheriff’s Office requested addition of Certified Peace Officer to meet the requirements of the
scope of work under Attachment I of Amendment No. 7 of the Combined Transportation & Emergency Communications Center
(CTECC) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for Security Services.

PBO Recommendations & Comments: The Sheriff’s Office has provided 24/7 security services for CTECC under the MOU since
2004. Travis County is a 25% participant in the funding for this MOU for CTECC. When the participants have amended the MOU
to allow the additional funding for this request, then this position should be created. It is likely that this requirement will be
completed by the end of September.

Budget Request Performance Measures: The Sheriff’s Office did not submit performance measures for this request.

William Derryberry, F’Y2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriff’s Office
7/19/2010 Page 17 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Request 15: Maintenance of Current Effort Operating Line-Items

FY 11 Request PBO Recommendation FY12 Cost
FTEs 0.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ $ - $ -

Operating 1,662,674 468,708 468,708
Subtotal $ 1,662,674 $ 468,708 $ 468,708
Capital - -

Total Request $ 1,662,6741 $ 468,7081 $ 468,708

Dept. Summary of Request: The Sheriff’s Office requested $1,662,674 of Maintenance of Current Effort for 13 Operating Line
Items. $1,100,000, 66.16% of this request was for the Medical Services line-item in the Inmate Medical Services (3749) division.

The Sheriff’s Office provided the following information in support of this request.

Medical Services - This account pays for physician services, and inmate out-patient/in-patient hospital
services.

Within a historical context, a review of the last four fiscal years shows the inherent variability of expenditures
and the differences between the Adopted Budget and Actual Expenses for medical services as follows:

Fiscal Year Adopted BudQet Actual Expense Difference
FY2006 $ 1,548,430 $2,361,941.03 $ 813,511.03
FY2007 $ 1,332,713 $ 1,667,396.40 $ 334,683.40
FY2008 $ 1,332,713 $ 1,434.050.24 $ 101,337.24
FY2009 $ 1,317,964 $2,364,369.09 $1,046,405.09

On July 25, 2006, Travis County, the Travis County Sheriff’s Office and Indigent Healthcare Solutions (IHS)
entered into an agreement to use IHS software for calculating medical service payment rates as a cost
containment strategy. Physicians, dentists, and lab claims are paid based on Medicaid rates. Hospital in
patient and out-patient bills are paid based on the hospital’s documented inpatient and outpatient
percentage rate or standard dollar allowance from the Texas Indigent Healthcare Handbook (Chapter 61).

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

Sheriffs Office
Page 18 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Despite the cost containment strategy implemented in the summer of 2006, in FY 2009, there were two
primary reasons for the higher level of expenditures experienced as compared to FY 2008.

The first reason is a 57.9% increase in the number of hospital utilization days used as a result of treatments
required and the medical condition of inmates. The second reason is an 11.8% increase in the number of
inmates receiving these medical services.

10/01/08 — 09/30/09 10/01/07 -09/30/08
Hospital Utilization Days 910 576
Inmate Receiving Medical Services 841 752

In FY 2009, an internal budget transfer in the amount of $1.1 million was required in order to allocate
sufficient funds for expenditures of physician services, and out-patient/in-patient hospital services for
inmates. The Travis County Sheriff’s Office was able to absorb these increased expenditures primarily
through the use of available salary savings, most of which were realized as a result of the delayed opening
of Building 12 at the Travis County Correctional Complex. However, as a result of budget reductions
required to balance the FY 2010 budget, the Travis County Sheriff’s Office deleted several vacant positions,
and now most of positions assigned to Building 12 are now filled thereby reducing salary savings available
to offset increased expenditures of physician services and out-patient/in-patient inmate hospital services.

Other Various Operating Accounts —

Based on FY 2009 actual expenditure patterns, medical supplies, equipment and services accounts require
additional funding above original FY 2009 budget allocations in order to provide for inmate medical needs.

Based on FY 2009 actual expenditure patterns, building and equipment maintenance and repairs accounts
require added funding above original FY 2009 budget allocations in order to maintain aging buildings and
equipment.

Based on FY 2009 actual expenditure patterns, the investigation and extradition accounts require added
funding above original FY 2009 budget allocations in order to meet demand for these services and
associated increased costs.

Based on FY 2009 actual expenditure patterns, the pre-employment testing and advertising/public notice
accounts require additional funding above original FY 2009 budget allocations in order to meet demand for
these services and associated increased costs.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 19 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Community Outreach Unit Supplies - The purchase of the educational materials, equipment, and uniform
items will enhance, increase agency visibility, as well as readily identify staff during various outreach
presentations, events, and meetings.

Consulting - The Travis County Sheriff’s Office is providing vocational training for inmates to assist them
with their job searches and improve their likelihood of being employed upon release. Historically, vocational
training for inmates had been funded through the General Fund.

During budget negotiations for FY 2008, it was agreed that this specific contract would be funded through
the Inmate Welfare Fund (IWF) and a review of the ability of the IWF to continue sustain this expense would
be made annually. Funding for this service can no longer be maintained on an ongoing basis by the IWF.

PBO Recommendations & Comments: PBO recommends a total $468,708 for this request from the Sheriff’s Office. A
discussion on various aspects of this request follows.

Medical Services - $292~625 Recommended

Due to the size and volatility of the Medical Services line-item a further review was made. The recent actual history of this line item,
since 2001, is as follows:

Budget and Actual 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Inmate ADP (Annualized) 2,645 2,721 2,263 2,333 2,535 2,583 2,646 2,511 2,365 2,440
MedicalServices Budget $ 935,112$ 935,112 $1,958,404 $1,515,000 $1,291,750 $1,548,430 $1,332,713 $1,332,713 $1,317,964 $1,594,544
Medical Services Actual $ 1,626,643 $2,467,147 $1,047,027 $1,189,527 $1,913,664 $2,361,941 $1,667,396 $1,434,050 $2,364,369 $1,892,337

Actual Cost per Inmate $614.99 $906.71 $462.67 $509.87 $754.89 $914.42 $630.16 $571.11 $999.73 $775.55

As can be seen from the preceding chart, the average annual cost per inmate for Medical Services has been highly variable over
the nine years, from FY 01 through FY 09 ranging from $999.73 in FY 09 to $462.67 in FY 03. The average annual cost for the
nine years was $707.17 per inmate. The average annual cost per inmate for the past two fiscal years (FY 08 and FY 09) was
$785.42.

Thus far, based on experience through June ~ in FY 10, Medical Services costs are conservatively projected to be $1,892,337,
which is $775.55 per inmate based on a projected ADP of 2,440. This is $224.18 less than experienced in FY 09 but $9.87 less
than the average of the past two fiscal years. It is $68.38, or 9.67% more than average annual cost of the past nine years.

William Deriyberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 20 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



If the two high/low years of the past nine years are eliminated, that annual average cost per inmate would be $700.31, which is
$75.24, or 10.74% less than the FY 10 projection. The difference between the nine-year annual average cost per inmate and the
high/low eliminated seven-year annual average cost per inmate was $6.86, or 0.98%.

Based on this historical analysis and current year experience, PBO recommends that Medical Services be budgeted at the average
of the past two fiscal years of $785.42 per inmate or $1,951 769 for assumed inmate ADP of 2,485. This would require an increase
above the Target Budget amount of $292,625.

Other Line Items - $176~O83 Recommended

PBO recommends returning the historic funding of $44,000 for the inmate vocational training contract that has been funded in the
IWF for the past 3 fiscal years to the General Fund.

Additionally, the food and groceries line-item based on the Inmate ADP of 2,485 at an average daily cost of $2.44 per inmate it is
necessary to increase this line-item $39,083 above the Target Budget amount of $2,174,058 to $2,213,141.

Finally, over the past seven fiscal years at least $93,000 of internal funding, primarily from salary savings, has been required to
maintain an appropriate level of funding for the various maintenance line items in the Corrections Bureau. With the FY 10 FTE
reductions and the current very low vacancy levels in the Sheriff’s of about 1 .5% it is unlikely that this internal funding for essential
routine Corrections maintenance can be achieved going forward. Thus PBO recommends $93,000 of funding or about a 9.4%
increase be added to these line-items. There has not been a material ongoing increase to these line items since 1999.

As indicated below, there is no material impact on performance related to the Community Outreach Supplies request.

Budget Request Performance Measures: The Sheriff’s Office provided the following performance measure for this request.

Actual Revised Projected FY 11 Revised FY 11
FY 09 FY 10 Projected Measure at Target Measure with

Description Measure Measure Budget Level Additional Resources
Presentations/Events 300 400 400 400

William Derryberry. FY 2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 21 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Requests 6, 8, 9 & 10: Corrections Life Safety & Security

FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost
FTEs 0.0 OM 0~0
Personnel $ - $ - $ -

Operating 0 0 0
Subtotal $ - $ - $ -

Capital 810,007 736,570 -

Total Request $ 810,0071 $ 736,5701 $ -

Dept. Summary of Request: The Sheriff’s Office requested funding for 9 Corrections Life Safety and Security Projects and
Equipment at a cost of $810,007.

PBO Recommendations & Comments: PBO recommends $736,570 for these requests.

Corrections Life Safety & Security Proiects & Equipment are summarized and recommended as follows.

Note: $56,875 of the Security Camera Upgrade was funded in FY10 by Commissioner’s Couri on July 6, 201i) in Central Booking.

Budget Request Performance Measures: The Sheriff’s Office did not submit performance measures for this request.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

Dvsn Description Unit Cost ~ Request Recommend Comments
35 Disturbance Resolution Suits 1 ,042 25 26,042 26,042 Complete FY 10 Phased Funding
35 Remote Fire Alarm Monitoring System 75,000 1~ 75,000 75,000 Fire Monitoring non 24/7 Buildings
35 Academy Smoke Detection System Replacement 40,000 1 40,000 0 Defer One Year
35 TCJ Interior Cell Window Replacement 40,000 1~ 40,000 40,000 TCJS Life & Safety Project
35 TCJ & TCCC Visitation X-Ray Machines 22,400 2 44,800 44,800 New & Replace Security Equipment
35 TCJ & TCCC Visitation Metal Detectors 8,430 2 16,860 16,860 New & Replace Security Equipment
35 Gun Lockers 297 32 9,500 9,500 Security Upgrade at TCCC
35 Jail System Security Camera Upgrade* 571 243 1 571 243 514,368 Analog Upgrade of System to same

level as Camera System in Bldg. 12
35 Activity Building Safety & Security Upgrade 10,000 1 10,000 10,000 Fiscal Office Need from Security Audit

Total Request and Recommendation $810,007 $736,570

Sheriffs Office
Page 22 of36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Requests 11, 13 & 14: Corrections Projects & Equipment

FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost
FTE5 0.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ - $ - $ -

Operating 0 0 0
Subtotal $ - $ - $ -

Capital 2,591,974 996,974 -

Total Request $ 2,591,9741 $ 996,9741 $ -

Dept. Summary of Request: The Sheriff requested funding for 21 Corrections projects and equipment at cost of $2,591,974
PBO Recommendations & Comments: PBO recommends $989,974 for these requests.
Corrections Projects & Equipment are summarized and recommended as follows.
Dvsn Description Unit Cost ~ Request Recommend Comments

35 TCCC Pressure Reducing Valves (PRVs) 50,000 1 50,000 50,000 Completion of Internal PRVs at TCCC
35 Buildings 2 Hot Water Return Loop 30,000 1 30,000 0 FY 10 Budget Savings
35 Bldng 1 & 3 Building Automation System Computrols 450,000 1~ 450,000 300,000 BAS Mntnance Ntfctn - Bldg 1 in FY 1 1
35 Building 12 Brine Tank Relocation 1 5,000 1~ 15,000 0 FY 10 Budget Savings
35 TCCC Kitchen Condensor Refurbishment 100,000 1 100,000 100,000 Crucial Kitchen System Repair! Backup
35 HSB Chiller Bundle Replacement 115,000 1~ 115,000 115,000 Replacement of 1 1 Year Old Egpmnt
35 Buildings 5-8 HVAC Replacement 185,000 4 740,000 0 FY10 Funding Used on Building 9
35 Building 9 HVAC Replacement 220,000 1 220,000 0 FY 10 Budget Savings
35 Building 1 Hydroponic Boiler Replacement 180,000 1 - 180,000 180,000 23 Year Old Unit with a 20 Year Life
35 CCC Perimeter Fence Replacement 500,000 1 500,000 150,000 Initial Funding for Long-Term Program
35 TCCC Administration Window Replacement 15,000 1 15,000 0 Lower Priority Defer Another Year
35 TCCC Detention Pond Repair 75,000 1 75,000 0 Lower Priority Project
35 Convection Ovens 5,200 4 20,800 20,800 TCJS Life & Safety
35 Food Warmer 22,880 1 22,880 22,880 TCJS Life & Safety
35 Tilt Skillet 17,840 1 17,840 17,840 TCJS Life & Safety
35 Fryers 7,200 2 14,400 14,400 TCJS Life & Safety
35 1 Food Dicer & 1 Food Processor 6,450 NA 6,450 6,450 TCJS Life & Safety
35 Capital Planning Asset Management Software 7,000 1 7,000 7,000 Improve Maintenance Systems
35 Mental Health Services Laptop Computer 3,604 1 3,604 3,604 Enhance Privacy & Court Process
80 Central Booking Facility Money Counter 9,000 1 9,000 9,000 CoA 60% in Interlocal Agreement

Total Request and Recommendation $2,591 ,974 $996,974

Budget Request Performance Measures: The Sheriff’s Office did not submit performance measures for these requests.

William Deriyberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

Sheriffs Office
Page 23 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Requests 6 & 12: Law Enforcement Equipment

FY 11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost
FTEs 0.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ - $ - $ -

Operating 0 0 0
Subtotal $ - $ - $ -

Capital 61,000 61,000
Total Request $ 61,0001 $ 61,0001 $ -

Dept. Summary of Request: The Sheriff requested funding for 3 Law Enforcement equipment items at a cost of $61,000.

PBO Recommendations & Comments: PBO recommends $61,000 for these requests.

Law Enforcement Proiects & Equipment are summarized and recommended as follows.

Budget Request Performance Measures: The Sheriff’s Office did not submit performance measures for these requests.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Dvsn Description Unit Cost - ~ Request Recommend Comments
25 Tactical Body Armor - Replacement 2,600 15 39,000 39,000 SWAT Officer Safety Equipment
25 Wearable Video cameras — New 900 11 9,900 9,900 Digital A/V Equipment for SROs
25 Walk-In Evidence Cooler- Replacement 12,100 1 12,100 12,100 Reliable Long-Term Evidence Storage

Total Request and Recommendation $61 ,000 $61 000

Sheriffs Office
Page 24 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY2OII BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Request 17: TNR Replacement Vehicles & Equipment

FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost
FTEs 0.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ - $ - $ -

Operating 0 0 0
Subtotal $ - $ - $ -

Capital 3,373,100 3,146,100 -

Total Request $ 3,373,1001 $ 3,146,1001 $ -

Dept. Summary of Request: The Sheriff has requested replacement of 89 vehicles and equipment at a cost of $3,373,100 from
the April 2010 TNR Recommended Replacement List for FY 11.

PBO Recommendations & Comments: PBO recommends funding $3,146,100 of this request, pending Vehicle User Committee
(VUC) review, and funding availability.

Dvsn Description Unit Cost Quantity Request
25 Law Enforcement (LE) Patrol Vehicle $ 38,500 70 2,695,000
25 LE Patrol Vehicle — SUV 36,500 2 73,000
25 LE Patrol Vehicle —4 Dr Wagon 48,000 2 96,000
25 Motorcycle for Traffic Patrol 28,500 3 85,500
05 Forklift-5,000 lbs 32,000 1 32,000
05 3/4 Ton Pickup 4WD crew Cab Long Bed 35,000 1 - 35,000
05 % Ton Pickup 2WD crew Cab Long Bed 35,000 1 - 35,000
35 15-Passenger Prisoner Van 46,000 4 184,000
35 1 2-Passenger Prisoner Van 46,000 1 - 46,000
05 Personnel Carrier 23,400 3 70,200
05 Riding Mower, Rotary 60” 21 400 1 21 ,400

Total TCSO Request 89 $3,373,100

A review of the 89 vehicles on the list shows:
• 74 Primary (patrol) vehicles meet the criteria of both mileage and age under current County Policy for vehicle replacement.
• 3 Traffic Patrol Motorcycles meet the criteria of both mileage and age under current County Policy for vehicle replacement.
• 9 other vehicles and equipment also meet the criteria of both mileage and age under County Policy for vehicle replacement.
• The Fleet Manager also recommended for replacement 3 15-Passenger Prisoner Vans propane powered vans based on

high maintenance and down time.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 25 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Further, the TNR Fleet Manager recommended replacement of 24 secondary vehicles (Units 1988, 1947,2085, 1940, 1967, 1973,
1958, 2278, 2129, 2117, 2275, 1978, 1970, 1985, 2132,2130, 1980, 1990, 2126,2122, 2131, 2119, 2128, and 2285), which meet
the criteria of both mileage and age established by current County Policy for vehicle replacement with a used primary vehicle. PBO
continues to concur with the TNR fleet manager on these replacements from among the primary vehicles funded for replacement
the criteria of current County Policy.

Finally, the TNR Fleet Manager recommended replacement of 9 secondary vehicles (Units S658, 972, 2146, 2163, 2166, 2170,
2177, 2186 and 2504 based on the criteria of high maintenance and down time. PBO concurs with replacement of these vehicles if
there are available primary vehicles for this purpose.

PBO Recommendations

PBO recommends that replacement vehicles be included using only age and mileage (along with available resources), as has been
done in previous years and in accordance with the Commissioners Court adopted policy.

A request has been made of the Vehicle Users Committee (VUC) for eligible vehicles and equipment that could be deferred for FY
11 replacement due to available funding.

PBO’s vehicle replacement recommendation, pending the VUC review, depending on funding availability is as follows:

Dvsn - Description Unit Cost Quantity Request
25 Law Enforcement (LE) Patrol Vehicle $ 38,500 72 2,772,000
25 LE Patrol Vehicle — SUV 36,500 2 73,000
25 Patrol Vehicle —4 Dr Wagon 48,000 0 0
25 Motorcycle for Traffic Patrol 28,500 3 85,500
05 Forklift-5,000 lbs 32,000 1 32,000
05 % Ton Pickup 4WD crew Cab Long Bed 35,000 0 0
05 % Ton Pickup 2WD Crew Cab Long Bed 35,000 0 0
35 15-Passenger Prisoner Van 46,000 1 46,000
35 12-Passenger Prisoner Van 46,000 1 46,000
05 Personnel Carrier 23,400 3 70,200
05 Riding Mower, Rotary 60” 21 ,400 1 21 ,400

Total TCSO Request 84 $3,146,100

Budget Request Performance Measures: None Available.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 26 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Request 18: TCJ Extended Life Projects

FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost
FTEs 0.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ - $ - $ -

Operating 0 0 0
Subtotal $ - $ - $ -

Capital 1,365~000 1~365,000 -

Total Request [ $ 1,365,0001 $ 1,365,0001 $ -

Dept. Summary of Request: The Sheriff requested funding for the second year projects of this three-year program to extend the
life of the 29 year old Travis County Jail another 10-15 years. This program was reviewed by Commissioner’s Court at their
regular June 10, 2010 work session and the first year cost of $2,130,000 was approved by the Court on June 15, 2010.

PBO Recommendations & Comments: PBO recommends $1,365,000 for these requests.

Travis County Jail Extended Life Projects are summarized and recommended as follows.

Budget Request Performance Measures: The Sheriff’s Office did not submit performance measures for these requests.

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary ~udget
7/19/2010

Dvsn Description Unit Cost ~ Request Recommend Comments
35 General Building Exhaust Systems 1,000,000 1 1 000,000 1 000,000 2NU Year of 3 Year Program
35 Sanitary System Piping 200,000 1 200,000 200,000 2~ Year of 3 Year Program
35 Pipe Chase Penetrations 100,000 1 100,000 100,000 2NU Year of 3 Year Program
38 Kitchen Exhaust System 65,000 1 65,000 65,000 2~d Year of 3 Year Program

Total Request and Recommendation $1 365,000 $1 365,000

Sheriffs Office
Page 27 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 Budget Reduction Options

William Derryberry, PY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 28 of36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REDUCTION ANALYSIS

Reductions I - 18: Summary of PBO Options

FY 11 Proposal PBO Recommendation FY 12 Cost
FTEs (35.5) 0.0 0.0
Personnel $ (4,261,232) $ - $ -

Operating (18,200) 0 0
Subtotal $ (4,279,432) $ - $ -

Capital - - -

Total Request $ (4,279,432)1 $ -I $ -

Dept. Summary of Reduction: The PBO Budget Reductions for the Sheriff’s Office are as foflows in priority order.

Budget Reduction Proposal FY 10 Cost FTE Positions andlor Peace Officer Pay Scale Impact Option
Inmate Medical Services Staff $ (123,692) (2.00) 2 LVNs would require Contract Services Replacement 1
Human Resources Staff (86,403) (2.00) 1 Human Resources Asst II & 1 Office Specialist Sr 2
Cold Case Unit (LE) (174,829) (2.00) 2 Law Enforcement Detectives (1 Used to part fund FTE - Page 16) 3
Training Academy Staff (126,838) (2.00) 1 Deputy Sheriff& 1 Sr Corrections Officer 4
Trans/CHS Staff-Inmate ADP Constant (189,214) (3.00) 3 Certified Peace Officers (PG 84) 5
Research & Planning Staff (65,544) (1.00) 1 Planner 6
Finance Section Staff (46,613) (2.00) 2 Account Clerks 7
Community Service Program Staff (244,624) (4.00) 1 Community Liaison & 3 Deputy Sheriffs 8
LE Administrative Support (124,746) (3.00) 1 Law Enforcement Specialist & 2 Office Specialist Seniors 9
LE Lake Patrol (342,272) (5.00) 1 Law Enforcement Sergeant & 4 Deputy Sheriffs 10

~ Medical Services Psychiatrist (120,244) (0.50) 0.5 Psychiatrist (PG 98) 11
Inmate Services Staff (113,812) (2.00) 1 Paralegal & 1 Counselor Sr 12
LE Estray Unit Staff (62,614) (1.00) 1 Deputy Sheriff (PG 72) 13
Central Records & Warrants Staff (161,812) (3.00) 3 Records Analysts (PG 17) 14
Crisis Intervention Team Staff (63,271) (1.00) 1 Certified Peace Officer (PG 84) 15
Victim/Witness Section (LE) (101,844) (2.00) 2 Victim/Witness Counselors Sr
TCSO POPS Add Pay Savings (199,918) 0.00 Savings from Peace Officer Pay Scale (POPS) position reductions. 17
TCSO POPS 2.77% Pay Scale Reduction (2,017,814) 0.00 Across the Board TCSO Peace Officer Pay Scale (POPS) Reduction 18
Total Reduction Options 1 — 18 $(4,279,432) (35.50)

Budget Reduction Performance Measures: Sheriff’s Office did not submit performance measures for these reduction proposals.

William Derryber,y, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 29 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Appendix I: Additional Program Information

Performance Measures listed in the Adopted Budget:

Actual FY Actual FY Revised Projected
Measure 08 09 FY10 FY11

Law Enforcement
Response Time (Urgent) 21:12 9:30 NA NA
% of Priority 1 Calls within 9 Minutes NA 72.4% 76% 82%
% of Priority I Calls greater than 15 Minutes NA 8.7% 6% 4%
Response Time (Routine) 32:15 10:30 NA NA
Number of Calls for Service 113,567 120,074 119,300 120,500
Number of Citations Issued 48,661 50,542 41,899 42,000

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

Sheriff
General Fund Budget (excludes CAR) & FTE

$125,000,000 1,500.0

$120,000,000 1,475.0

$115,000,000
1450.0

C’s I—
~ $110,000,000

1,425.0
$105,000,000

$100,000,000 1,400.0

$95,000,000 1,375.0
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Prelim

Budget —±— FTE

Sheriffs Office
Page 30 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Actual FY Actual FY Revised Projected
Measure 08 09 FY10 FY11

Number of Accidents 5,145 4,353 4,358 4,000
Number of Patrol Arrests 4,091 4,554 5,501 5,791
NumberofDWlsandBWls 676 481 514 386
Number of Speed Related Accidents 1,638 1,154 1,423 1,268
Mental Health Calls Generating Case Number 3,048 3,308 2,906 3,664

Corrections
Average Daily Inmate Population (Custody Total) 2,511 2,365 2,435 2,485
Jail Bookings 60,402 61,909 57,715 58,324
Number of Inmates Classified 32,243 33,200 31,099 31,841
Number of Meals Prepared 2,989,562 2,8745 2,791,030 2,770,664
Food & Groceries — Daily Inmate Cost $2.27 $2.36 $2.41 $2.44
Number of Prescriptions Filled 53,260 58,090 59,254 57,346
Annual Prescription Cost per Inmate $789.42 $664.76 $551 $665
Medical Services Line Item Cost per Inmate $571.11 $999.73 $742.69 $785.42
Amount of Laundry Processed (Ibs) 1,328,630 1,700,545 1,891,944 2,630,236
Corrections Maintenance Work Orders (All) 16,741 14,696 14,726 15,574
Jail Standards Certification No Yes Yes Yes
Administration
Number of Inmates Transported to Court 41,502 41,795 43,145 42,399
Number of Training Academy Classroom Hours 94,133 93,695 77,174 77,528
Records Processed (Central Records—All) 58,084 66,601 42,219 50,934

Law Enforcement Urgent Response Time Performance Measure Change:

In October 2008, the Court created a committee to analyze and recommend a staffing plan for the Law Enforcement Bureau, as
part of this process the committee looked at performance measures. It was determined that Response time, as previously tracked,
was not appropriate for a Law Enforcement Agency such as the Travis County Sheriff’s Office. Instead a minimum goal of 90% of
response to all Priority I Calls for service responses within 9 minutes along with having no Priority I Call for service response of
greater than 15 minutes are more appropriate goals for the future. The Sheriff’s Office has started tracking these measures as
shown above with current staffing levels.

William Derryberry, P1’ 2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriff’s Office
7/19/201 0 Page 31 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Summary of Departmental Status Reports

PACKAGE APPROVED
NOTESNAME AMOUNT

First approved in FY 2009

Building 12 $1,691,519 Building 12 opened successfully with inmates on November 1, 2009. Staff moves havecoincided with inmates on average every two weeks since the opening. Results have metStaff Annualized expectations. All funded FTEs have been put in place.
This second half-time psychiatrist position is still being actively recruited due to a lack ofHalf-Ti me

$1 14,630 applicants. MHMR has expressed an interest in supplying a 0.5 FTE equivalent on aPsychiatrist contract basis for a select group of mentally ill inmates in the jail.

Central $92,137Command Position is filled.AnnualizedSecurity_Sgt

County Court $193,291 All four positions have been filled to provide support for County Court-at-Law #8.
at Law Staff

Corrections Internally funded for Complex Security Control Room. Security Coordinator was filled in
$ -0- November 2008, however has been used as relief for the Visitation Receptionist desk due toSupport Staff more urgent workload in that area.

First approved in FY 2009

Building 12 $648,945 I Captain, I Lieutenant, 3 Sergeants, 3 Security Coordinators, and 1 Building MaintenanceWorker have been hired and functioning as assigned to complete the staffing of this newStaff Annualized building,_which was_opened_on_November_1,_2009.
Internal 2 Detectives in lieu of I Corrections Officer and 2 Deputy Sheriffs. This package has beenAffairs Staff ($4,696)

Conversion fully implemented and is performing as expected.

William Derryber,y, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 32 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Appendix II: CAR UPDATE

Descrintion April 26th Status Deoartmental UDdate

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

Approved
Security Control Panels Buildings 2 & 3
Property Warehouse Shelving
HVAC Replacement Buildings 5 - 8
Automated External Defibrillators
SCBA Replacements
Food Warmers — Replacement
TCCC Grills — Replacement
Tilt Skillets — Replacement
Dishwasher — Replacement
Clothes Washers — Replacement
Clothes Dryers — Replacement
West Command Security Remodel
Central Booking Facility Master Control Panel
Complex Security Vests
Building 10 HVAC
TCJ Kitchen Refrigeration Replacement
Activities Building HVAC
Central Booking Facility Master Control, UPS Upgrade
TCCC Employee Parking Lot — SCAAP Funding
Property Warehouse Shelving

Total Sheriff’s Office

$ 800,000
100,000
100,000

31,738
30,000
25,000
18,480
37,500

133,000
60,000
22,000
55,000

100,000
33,495
42,000
70,000

123,200
34,700

300,000
150,000

$2,266,113

Expended w/ Savings
Cancelled

Will Be Expended
Expended

Expended w/ Savings
Will Be Expended
Will Be Expended
Will Be Expended

Expended
Will Be Expended
Will Be Expended
Will Be Expended
Will Be Expended

Expended w/ Savings
Will Not Be Expended

Will Be Expended
Will Be Expended
Will Be Expended
Will Be Expended

Expended

PO# 443303
Project transferred to SCAAP funding Jan 19, 2010

Pending CO Issuance
Completed PO# 434551 & 440421

Completed PO# 440335
Pending CO Issuance
Pending CO Issuance
Pending CO Issuance

Specifications in Purchase Requisition# 496805
Pending CO Issuance
Pending CO Issuance

Facilities Management Project
Engineer to Coordinate w/ Central Booking Captain

PO# 440544
Project on hold due to shortage of funding

Pending Engineering Design-Purchase Requisition# 497112
Purchase Requisition# 497197

Project Design By June 2010-Submitted to Purchasing
PO# 442587
PO# 438568

Sheriffs Office
Page 33 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Department: Sheriff’s Office (37)
Fund: Courthouse Security Fund (031)

FY 2011 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

Operating_Budget Total with Pg
On-going One-time Total Capital Capital FTE PBO Comments

FY 11 Target Budget Submitted at the Target
Submission $2,676,653 $ - $2,676,653 $ - $2,676,653 35.0 Budget Funding Level.

~ .. ~ ~~ ~

~ None - - f - I - - o.o
Recommended Requests
Overtime to tie to the
3rd Revenue Estimate $2,799 - $2,799 - $2,799 0.0 —

Recommended Reductions

None I - - - - -f 00

Total FY11

Preliminary Budget $2,679,452 $ - $2,679,452 $ - $2,679,452 35.0 —

PBO Recommended
lncreasel(Decrease) $ 2,799 $ 0 $ 2,799 $ 0 $ 2,799 0.0 —

William Derryberry, FY2OII Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 34 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Budget and Programmatic Issue Analysis

The Sheriff’s Office submitted its budget for the Courthouse Security (OHS) Fund at the Target Budget Funding Level of $2,676,653
which is $12,349 above the FY 10 Adopted Budget of $2,664,304. The $12,349 is due to various personnel actions in the Sheriff’s
Office during FY 10.

Outstanding/Pending Programmatic Issues:

The Courthouse Security Fund is used to account for revenue and expenditures associated with the security services in buildings
housing a District or County Court. Revenue is collected as a part of the court cost fees. In FY 10 expenses are budgeted to cover
the cost 35 TCSO personnel assigned to these buildings, including the addition of $2,799 to overtime to tie to the third revenue
estimate. This results in a total FY 11 requirement for the OHS of $2,679,452.

Revenue is not sufficient to cover the entire cost of these security services. For FY 11, $2,199,009 was proposed by the Sheriff for
a transfer from the General Fund inside the target budget amount for the Sheriff’s Office General Fund budget submission. This is
an increase of $28,743. However, based on the ~ revenue estimate from the County Auditor, the proposed $2,199,009 is
increased by $11,627 to $2,210,626 in order to fund OHS Fund expenses of $2,679,452.

William Der,yberry, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget Sheriffs Office
7/19/2010 Page 35 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Appendix I: Additional Program Information

William Derryberry, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

Sheriff
Courthouse Security Fund Budget & FTE

$2,800,000 T

$2,600,000

V.
L..

~ $2,400,000
cI

$2,200,000

$2,000,000
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Prelim

Budget —.-- FTE

Sheriffs Office
Page 36 of 36

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



EMERGENCY SERVICES
DANNY HOBBY, EXECUTIVE MANAGER

P. 0. Box 1748
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78767

(512) 854-4416, FAX (512) 854-4786
Eme,~gency Management

Pete Baldwin, Emergency
Mgmt. Coordina~or

MEMORANDUM
Interim Fire Marshal

Hershel Lee

ChiefMedical Examiner
Dr David DolinakTo: Rodney Rhoades, Executive Manager

Planning and Budget Office STAR Eli ht
Casey Ping, ~rogra1n

— ivianager
From: Danny Hobby, Executive Manager

Emergency Services

Date: July 15, 2010

Subject: FY11 Budget Hearing Request

Please consider this written memorandum as my request to have a half hour budget hearing with
the Commissioners Court on the afternoon of August 12, 2010. The hearing will present my
EMS enhancement package covering two new county EMS operating units — a full time
ambulance (24/7) and staffing in the southwest area of Travis County, and a demand unit (12/7)
and staffing in the northeast area of Travis County. Please find the back-up materials for this
presentation attached to this memorandum.

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



1.

4

A

EMS Deployment Plan

March -2010

. o
C’0

z
-I

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Austin-Travis County EMS
EMS ~cyment S

Overview
During the first quarter of fiscal year 109..10 the 2urban Priority 1 response time compliance was ~91.13%. A
total of 1,262 Priority I incidents occurred in the 376 sq. mile urban service area and ATCEMS units arrived
within 9 minutes 59 seconds on 1,151 of the incidents. This was an improvement over fiscal year 08-09 where
the overall urban Priority 1 response time compliance for the year was 88.83%.

The suburban PrIonty 1 response time compliance for the same period was 49.17%. A total of 120 Priority I
incidents occurred in the 730 sq. mile suburban service area and ATCEMS units arrived within 11 minutes 59
seconds on 59 of the incidents. This reflected only a minor improvement over fiscal year 08-09 where the
overall suburban Priority I response time compliance for the year was 49.16%.

A number of efficiency initiatives were implemented during fiscal year 08-09 and during the first quarter of 09-
10, that resulted in an improvement in urban Priority I response time compliance. The initiatives only helped to
maintain existing service levels in the suburban service area due to 475 sq. miles of the 730 sq. mile
suburban area not having an EMS unit positioned to arrive within the 11 minute 59 second goal. In addition,
only portions of one suburban service area has a 4unit depth greater than one.

The 5temporal analysis of the suburban service area reflects no discemable call patterns that would allow
shifting units from one suburban service area to another.

This three year ATCEMS deployment plan combined with the continuing use of 6Deccan® Live MUM in the
Emergency Communications Center to dynamically pre-position units will increase the suburban drive time
coverage area by 151 sq. miles and is projected to increase the ATCEMS suburban Priority I compliance from
49.17% to near 90% and maintain the urban Priority I compliance at 90%.

Covera e ma rior to recommendations Coverage map after recommendations

‘ M

i~O

+ G
+ L.J ,~ C

C

C

Tr vi 0 C

C

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Response lime Methodology and Goals
Although the definition urban and suburban vanes widely acioss the country, the most popular approach in
EMS utilizes a demand for EMS service model. Each EMS incident is plotted on a map for a month with
average incident volume. If two or more incidents occur in the same square kilometer and an adjacent square
kilometer also has two or more incidents both areas ate considered to be urban, for the purpose of EMS
deployment.

Urban Service Area — 376 Sq. Miles

The measurement of response time also varies widely across the country and even between public safety
agencies within the City of Austin and Travis County. ATCEMS response time is measured from when the
911 call is answered by ATCEMS to the first ATCEMS unit on the scene.

Urban Incidents (376 Sq. Miles)
Priority 1 (09:59/90%)
Priority 2 (10:59/90%)
Priority 3 (12:59/90%)

Suburban Incidents (730 Sq. Miles)

‘141 U,~ian vs. SJbudmn Res~cnse Areas
NTCEUS Station
U,bari Respori~a Area (1 km x 63 tim)

C~tyOfAustti~ C~an*y-~eat

Cedar Park County - Nontiweat
Jottyv$lta County-South
Round Rock — County - Weet

+

+

+

+

•

Priority 1 (11:59/90%)
Priority 2 (13:59/90%)
Priority 3(15:59/90%)

3

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 09-10 Deployment Inilialives
ATCEMS is currently in the process of repositioning three existing Travis County EMS units to alternative
locations to improve geographical drive time coverage. The moves will result in 90.3 sq. miles of added
suburban coverage and is expected to yield a 12% improvement in compliance to the suburban Priority I
goal.

Medic 23
Medic 23 will be repositioned from 11205 Hams Branch Pkwy to 400 West Parsons Street in east Travis
County. This will improve the drive time suburban coverage area by 48.2 sq miles and in the first quarter of
FY 09-10 would have improved suburban Priority I compliance 2.50%.

Coverage map prior to move Coverage map after move (Purple)

33 a
I

- a

~ ———. ...—..—...—. ~ I
ms4aoun”

.~ Tra~Iu
I • County

a

• / 1
•~‘• ‘~;_7 S~\/ / fl3 /

/ _____)~—.—--—‘~
a /

/

Medic 29
Medic 29 will be repositioned from 12711 Hams Glen to 5412 South US Hwy 183 in southeast Travis County.
This will improve the drive time suburban coverage area by 38.2 sq miles and in the first quarter of FY 09-10
would have improved suburban Priority I compliance 8.48%.

Coverage map prior to move Coverage map after move (Purple)

a ~ 7

~~Trav~p County a - Tt~vIG~Ceu
A / — ‘°°°‘

/1

1/

00 ____4, 00-~

I

_______ ~-•~ ~

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Medic 9
Medic 9 should be repositioned from 1211 Lohmans Crossing Road to FM 620 near General Williamson drive.
This will improve the drive time suburban coverage area by 3.9 sq miles and in the first quarter of FY 09-10
would have improved suburban Priority 1 compliance 1%.

Coverage map prior to move Coverage map after move (Purple)

-.--..

ç3V_ /

~

— Travis Co TY~VI8 County~

I
F

-~

j 1~

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 10-11 Deployment Inifiatives
In addition to optimizing the location of existing units to improve response time compliance, additional units
will need to be added in three suburban service areas to complete the suburban coverage build out and
added in five urban service areas to increase 4unit depth and keep up with urban growth.

Medic 35 Southwest Travis County
A coverage gap exists between Pedemales, Lake Travis, Westlake and Oak Hill. This area is becoming
one of the most densely populated areas in the suburban service area. One 6full time unit should be added
in the State Highway 71 I Bee Caves road area. This will improve the drive time coverage area of Travis
County by 21.7 sq miles and in the first quarter of FY 09-10 would have improved suburban compliance
4.24%. This addition will also increase the unit depth in the south FM 620 corridor resulting in improved
response times to all adjacent areas if the primary unit is already assigned to an incident.

Coverage map prior to the addition Covera e ma after the addition Pu le

ii,
1*. nViF

D

r I
+1 —

otrnty
Ti

k_i ~ i~*

/
F

• •

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Medic 34 Avery Ranch
In July of 2010, construction will be complete on the new C.l.P. EMS Station 34 on West Parmer Lane.
Located just inside Williamson County, this station will provide EMS service to the Avery Ranch annexation
areas. Residential growth in these areas is occurring at a significant rate and staffing this station is
necessary to meet response time goals. This will improve the drive time coverage area within the City of
Austin and northern Travis County by 5.8 sq miles and in the first quarter of FY 09-10 would have improved
suburban compliance 4.24%.

Covera e map prior to the addition Coverage map after the addition (Green)

• I
A

~r ~ K

a K

Harris Branch EMS Coverage
Over ten years ago Travis County funded a unit to place it in east Travis County, but was unable to find a
station location. The City allowed Travis County to locate their unit in the Hams Branch Fire station, which of
the available options provided the best access to east Hwy 290 at the time.

In July of 2005, the Hams Glen C.I.P. Annexation Station 29 construction was completed. Because Travis
County did not have a suitable station for their southeast unit the City allowed Travis County to locate this unit
in the Hams Glen station.

In March of 2010 Travis County found suitable station locations in east and southeast Travis County and was
able to relocate both units as described in the FY 09-10 section of this document. Subsequently, the City
purchased two new ambulances and approved overtime to staff the two stations until the 2011 budget
process. Staffing these stations is necessary to meet response time goals in the Hams Branch annexation and
other areas in northeast Austin.

Medic 29 Harris Glen
During the first quarter of 2010, 216 Priority I incidents occurred within range of Medic 29’s drive time
coverage area and Medic 29 responded to 44 of these Priority I incidents. Medic 29 responded to a total of
961 incidents (Priority 1-5) during the first quarter of 2010

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Demand 4 Harris Branch
During the first quarter of 2010, 42 Priority 1 inckients occurred within range of Medic 23’s drive time coverage
area and Medic 23 responded to 23 of these Priority I incidents. Medic 23 responded to a total of 487
incidents (Priority 1-5) during the first quarter of 2010

Medic 29’s drive time coverage (red)
• - ‘V

0, ~ -

I
Lw 4, 3

/

it

a 3,~$~’

Medic 23’s drive time coverage (red)

/ %~

‘! €&,~b, \

.4

‘IlL

‘U

‘F
/

‘4

I

‘F.

GD

101*

•0

b

/
/

/ /

GD ‘.

+

C
fj

I
1~

“I
S

r

8

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Demand 5— Downtown Austin
During the first quarter of 2010, 328 Priority 1 incidents occurred in the downtown Austin coverage area. A total
of 6,175 incidents (Priority 1-5) occurred in this same area during the firstquarterof 2010

Medic 6 & 3’s drive time covera e red

; 7 1
(~L~

L~.

:‘~~ j~~!k
!

H.~.

Demand 6 Northeast Travis County
During the first quarter of 2010, 44 Priority 1 incidents occurred within range of Medic 20’s drive time coverage
area in northeast Travis County. A total of 912 incidents (Priority 1-5) occurred in this same area during the first
quarter of 2010

Medic 20’s drive time coverage (red)

T I A A

/
~r

q

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 11-12 Deployment Iniliatives
Medic 33 Mueller
In November 2012, construction is scheduled to be completed on the new C.I.P. EMS Station 33 in the
Mueller redevelopment area. This station will provide EMS service to the re-populated Mueller Airport area.
Business growth in this area is already occurring at a significant rate and residential construction is
scheduled to occur this year. Staffing this station is necessary to meet response time goals in the Mueller
service area.

I

~ ~ “~bz~~ ‘~

A
It’

V~Ou,1ty

1:2.0 1

1) ‘&~i1,~~ ~,i≤
lii ~

Medic 36 Southeast Travis County
A coverage gap exists between Manor, Del Valle and Austin. This area is becoming more densely
populated with residential construction. One full time unit should be added in the FM 969 Austin Colony
area. This will improve the drive time coverage area of Travis County by 40 sq miles and in the first quarter
of FY 09-10 would have improved suburban Priority I compliance 15.1%.

Medic 36’s drive time covers e red

là

I~ ~

-i

/
/

/

10

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Convert Demand 6 to Medic 37-In Northeast Travis County.
The demand for service in the northeast Travis County is currently at an urban level and continues to grow
with the addition SH 130 and Texas 45 in northeast Travis County. Business, residential and multi-family
residential construction will require Demand 6 to be converted to a 24-hour unit to meet response time goals
in the northeast Travis County service area.

Demand 6’s drive time coverage (red)

Ro~

4

18km 4

K
4

K

31 Tx

11

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Budget Impact
FY 2010-2011 — City of Austin
Medic 29- Hams Glen

One Time Expenses: $14,712
Reoccurring Expenses: $997,908

Demand 4- Hams Branch
One Time Expenses: $103,670
Reoccumng Expenses: $526,548

Medic 34- Parmer Lane at Avery Ranch (annexation station coverage)
6 Sq. miles of additional drive time coverage
One Time Expenses: $552,964
Reoccumng Expenses: $1,013,558

Demand 5— Downtown Austin
One Time Expenses: $541,922
Reoccurring Expenses: $542,198

Communications Support
Three Communications Medics to handle the dynamic deployment and radio support of new and existing
units.

Reoccurring Expenses: $228,365

Employee Supervision
Three Field Operations Supervisors, equipment and vehicle to staff a 12-hour 7-day a week Command unit to
supervise and support new and existing units.

One Time Expenses: $169,532
Reoccuning Expenses: $320,693

Logistics Support
One Supply Specialist to clean, stock and deploy new and existing demand units and event stand-by units.

Reoccumng Expenses: $41,753

Total $1,382,800 $3,671,023

FY 2010-2011 — Travis County
Medic 35 on Hwy. 71 West in Southwest Travis County (does not include facility)

22 Sq. miles of additional drive time coverage
One Time Expenses: $279,712
Reoccurring Expenses: $997,908

Demand 6 Northeast Travis County (does not include facility)
One Time Expenses: $268,670
Reoccurring Expenses: $526,548

Total $548382 $1,524,456

12

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011-2012 — City of Austin
Medic 33 on Airport Blvd. at new Mueller Station

One Time Expenses: $279,712
Reoccurring Expenses: $997,908

Total $279,712 $997,908

FY2OII-2012 —Travis County
Medic 36 on F. M. 969 in East Travis County

40 Sq. miles of additional drive time coverage
One Time Expenses: $279,712
Reoccur-ring Expenses: $997,908

Convert Demand 6 to Medic 37- 2417 Unit- Northeast Travis County
One Time Expenses: $ 8,521
Reoccuning Expenses: $474,280

Total $288,233 $1,472,188

Reference
1 Fiscal year 09-10 began October 1, 2009 and ends September 30, 2010.

2. Urban I suburban designation is based on EMS demand for service. Urban is determined by dividing the service are into one square kilometer grids, if
two adjoining grids each have two or more EMS incidents in a typical month, both grids are designated urban. A boundary is drawn around the outermost
urban grids to create a single urban service area. Urban / suburban designation is re-evaluated annually.

3 EMS response time goals measures time from ATCEMS call pick-up to ATCEMS arrival on-scene.

4. Unit depth is the number of units that can meet a response time goal in a geographic area.

5. A temporal analysis assesses each hour of the day for each day of the week during a particular period of time, to determine the number of resources
needed during each hour to meet the demand for service.

6. Deccan8 Live MUM is real-time deployment management software that works in conjunction with the Tnech® Computer Aided Dispatch System (CAD)
to dynamically recommend the repositioning of on-duty units based on real-time (GPS-based) geographical coverage information and next-call probability.

7. A full time unit is an ambulance vehicle, paramedics and equipment deployed to a fixed station location on-duty 24/7-365.

8. A demand unit is an ambulance vehicle, paramedics and equipment dynamically deployed (location and schedule) based on system demand for service.

Ma~ Leqend
FYO9-1 0 First Quarter Data
o Blue Push-Pins Priority 1 Incident - Met response time Goal
o Red Push-Pins Priority 1 Incident — Did not meet response time goal
Green 9:59 Coverage
Purple 11:59 Coverage
Yellow >11:59 Coverage

13

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET SUBMISSION
BUDGET REQUEST PROPOSAL

Name of Budget Request & Priority #:
Fund/Department/Division:
Total Amount Requested:
Collaborating Departments/Agencies:

Contact Information (Name/Phone):

EMS Ground Interlocal
001/59/15
$2,072,838
ESDs, AFD, City EMS, Small Cities & Villages,
Office of the Medical Director, STAR Flight and
local hospitals
Danny Hobby/854-441 6

1. Summary Statement: Include one or two sentences to be included in Commissioners
Court materials.

Funding is requested for an increase in the payment to the City of Austin for the EMS Interlocal
Agreement with Travis County. The increase of $2,072,838 covers two new county EMS
operating units — a full time ambulance in the Southwest Area of Travis County, and a Demand
Unit in the Northeast Area ofTravis County.
2. Description of Request: Describe the request, including current issues and how the

request relates to the mission and services provided by the department. Include
historical information related to the request where relevant.

The request has two components: $1,277,620 for the cost of personnel and equipment to operate
a full time EMS unit in Southwest Travis County; and $795,218 for the cost of personnel and
equipment to fund a Demand Unit in Northeast Travis County.

Full Time Unit in Southwest Travis County:
The request is for a full-time 24-7 EMS unit. The cost covers 12 paramedics, which is the
amount of FTE’s needed to cover a full-time unit; along with all operating costs and one-time
equipment expenses.

A coverage gap exists between Pedemales, Lake Travis, Westlake and Oak Hill. This area is
becoming one of the most densely populated areas in the suburban service area. One full time
unit should be added in the State Highway 71 / Bee Caves road area. This will improve the drive
time coverage area of Travis County by 21.7 sq miles and in the first quarter of FY 09-10 would
have improved suburban compliance 4.24%. This addition will also increase the unit depth in the
south FM 620 corridor resulting in improved response times to all adjacent areas if the primary
unit is already assigned to an incident.

Demand Unit in Northeast Travis County:
During the first quarter of 2010, 44 Priority 1 incidents occurred within range of Medic 20’s
drive time coverage area in northeast Travis County. A total of 912 incidents (Priority 1-5)
occurred in this same area during the first quarter of 2010. An EMS Demand Unit would provide
improved response time for the Northeast Travis County area, including the Pflugerville area.

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



The request would fund the cost of 6 FTE’s and one time equipment costs. The 6 FTE’s are
needed in order to allow the unit to work on average 12 hours per day seven days a week, or 84
hours of additional EMS unit coverage in the area.
3a. Pros: Describe the arguments in favor of this proposal.
This proposal would improve response times in the Southwest and Northeast County areas,
which would lead to improved patient outcomes. Population continues to rise in these areas and
development continues to expand service delivery demands.
3b. Cons: Describe the arguments against this proposaL
Lack of funding available to fund this proposal.
4. Anticipated Outcome of Request and Proposed Thneline: Timeline should include

the expected dates of results and may extend past FY 11.
Outcome will be improved response times and improved patient outcomes. Proposed timeline
will be starting in October 2010 with full measurements provided in each quarter ofFY11.
5. Description of Program Measurement and Evaluation: Describe how the proposal

wifi be measured and. evaluated and if this includes an independent evaluation
component. In addition, indicate whether a comparative analysis of similar local
programs is available.

This proposal will be in line with other like units throughout Travis County in performance
measurement and analysis. The Computer Aided Dispatch System provides data that produces
response times, resource allocations, and medical supplies. The best indicator of performance
for the addition of new units in the county is Priority 1 Response Compliance. This measure will
show the percentage of Priority 1 responses in the Suburban areas of the county when a unit
arrives within 11:59 minutes.
6a. Performance Measures: List applicable current and new performance measures

related to the request and note the changes for FY 11 should this request be
implemented.

Actual FY 09
Measure

Projected FY 11
Measure at

Target Level

Projected FY 11
Measure with

Added Funding

6b. Impact on Performance: Describe the impact of funding the request on departmental
performance measures, service levels, and program outcomes:

Impact will be improved response times which will lead to improved patient outcomes. The best
indicator of the impact of new units in the county is Priority 1 Response Time Compliance.
Currently, the projected compliance rate is 60.00%, but the addition of the two new units will
improve the compliance to 70.00%.
7. Impact of Not Funding: Describe the impact of not funding the request in FY 11.

Measure Name

Priority 1 Response Time in Suburban
Areas
Percent of Cardiac Arrest Patients
delivered to medical facility with a pulse
(ATCEMS System)

3 1.41%

Revised FY
10 Measure

60.00%

29.50%

60.00%

29.00%

70.00%

30.00%

Impact will be longer response times which will lead to patient care concerns and outcomes.

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



11. If requesting a new position(s), is office space currently available? Y/N
If no, attach plan from Facilities Mgmt. explaining how to acquire space for this
proposal. Identify proposed position location below:

Building Address N/A Floor #
Suite/Office # Workstation #

8. Leveraged Resources: If proposal leverages other resources such as existing internal
resources or grant funding, list and describe impact. If resources from similar
existing program(s) will not be reallocated, give reasons and include analysis.

We are currently leveraging all available resources (City of Austin, Small Cities and Villages,
Emergency Services Districts, hospitals, Office of the Medical Director, etc.) to assist with this
delivery of service, but the fact is there are not enough ambulance resources in the affected areas
described in this proposal.
9. Additional Revenue: If this proposal generates additional revenue, list the amount

and the assumptions used for the estimate. (Attach a copy of the form submitted to
the Auditor’s Office).

New EMS units do not generate any additional revenue, as no additional patients are seen due to
new units. New units provide improved response time and patient outcomes, but do not
necessarily increase revenue through additional patients.
10. Collaboration: If this proposal was discussed with other departments/agencies that

provide similar or supporting services that could be impacted, describe impact and
list the other departments/agencies and their points of contact. Suggest ways all
departments/agencies can collaborate to ensure success of the proposal.

This proposal was discussed with other agencies and they support improved response times in
these areas of the county. Small Cities and Villages, along with First Responders (ESDs)
provide support in the delivery of emergency medical response, so this proposal will assist them
in that continued effort.

Budget Request Proposal (PB-4)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET SUBMISSION
Budget Request Details

IName of Budget Request: EMS Ground Interlocal
IBudget Request Priority #: I I Dept #: 59 IName:I Emergency Medical Services

A. Personnel
Emp
Type

Regu Jar
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

Annual Cost
Benefits

$
S
$
$
$
$
S
s
$
$
$
s
$

Total
s
$
s
$
s
$
$
$
$
$
S
s
s

Salary
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Act
602

B. Operating

Line
6002

Position Title

TOTAL PERSONNEL

Description
Ambulance Service

TOTAL OPERATING

Pay
Grade

Fund
001

FTE

Dpt
59

Fund

Div
15

Div
Fund

%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

One-Time
Cost

5 108,722

$
$ 108,722

Ongoing
Cost

S 1,524,456

S
1,524,456$

$
Total

1,633,178
$
$
S
S
$
$
$
$
$
$
S
$
5 1,633,178

C. Computer/Telecommunication and Capital Related to This Request
TOTAL COMPUTER/TELECOMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT FROM ITS FORMS $ -

TOTAL CAPITAL EQUIPMENT FROM CAPITAL BUDGET REQUEST (PB-6) $ 439,660
TOTAL ALL CAPITAL $ 439,660
TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST One-Time S Ongoing S Total FY10
TOTAL REQUESTED NON-CAPITAL (A + B) 5 108,722 5 1,524,456 5 1,633,178
TOTAL REQUESTED (A + B + C) 5 548,382 S 1,524,456 S 2,072,838

Form Completed By: C. Lego

Budget Request Details (PB-5)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET SUBMISSION
CAPITAL BUDGET REQUEST

Do Not Include Computer or Telecommunication Equipment on this Form - Use Appropriate ITS Form

Department # 59 I
Department Name Emergency Medical Services LegoC: [_1

Request Name New Changed from 3 Unit Extended Cost Line
Dept. Div. (Must match name on PB-4) Rep? Description ~~Cost Qty. New j Replace. Item

59 10 STAR Flight Maintenance Vehicle Replacemen Rep F 40 Crew Cab Vehicle 2 38 00 l~ 0 38 DOO 8020
59 15 EMS Ground Interlocal New Ambulance LegoC 2 219 8.0 2~ 439 660 0
59 15 Replacement Ambulance base interlocal Rep Changed from 2 2 I 6D 000 u 0 0 8020
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59~ 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0

0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0

0 0
59~ 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0
59 0 0

0 0
0 o

59 0 0
59 0 0

CAPITAL BUDGET REQUEST GR4ND TOTAL 439,660 38,500.

Capital Budget Request (PB-6)

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



One Time Recurring Total Cost

Full Time Unit With a Spare 552,964 1,013,558 1,566,5~J
Full Time Unit - No Spare 279,712 997,908 1277,620
Demand Unit-With a Spare 541,922 542,198 1,084,120
Demand Unit - No Spare 268,670 526,548 795,218

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Cost of a New Unit

Icapital 1,500 $ 1,500
35,000 $ 35,000

‘SN LogoC~
Flgoms coed to calcoicto
one tnt and on going

2,200
12,720
10,150
46,082

13,082
600

7,200
12,000

1,500
3,000

165,000
8,000
1,500

35,000

New
ExpenseCategort, . , “ Item ‘ ‘ QuantIty~ UnltCost TotalCost ]

Field Medic wages, benefits (mci. health ins and 9% retirement) and
rccrnrrnnel anheduied CIT 17 77,CCO 930,720

15, 15,650
Ambulance cell phone service 1 1,170 1,170
Medic Station - pager service 2 108 716
Station Maintenance 1 2,200 2,200
Ambulance commodities (fuel) 1 12,720 ‘12,720
Medic Station Supplies, Minor Equipment, minor furniture 1 10,150 lo,iso
Field Medic Uniforms and Equipment 12 3,840 46,052
Ambulance medical supplies and equipment- commodities,

commodities drugs/supplies 1 13,082 13,082
commodities Knox Box 1 600 — 600
capital - radio Ambulance radio capital coSts - mobile radios for ambulances I 7,200 — .200
capital - radio Medic Station - handheld radios for paramedics, riot ambulance 3 4,000 12,000

One lime Expensetni Recurrlna’Exoenses

930.720 S 930720

2,20

w Furniture
capital Ambulance medical equipment- new cardiac monitor
capital Ambulance medical equipment- new stretchers

12,000
1 CflO
3.000

165.000
8,uuo
1 500

12,720 ________

10,150 _______

12,0C0 ________

13,082 _______

- 11.830
997,908 1,277,620

35,000

LegoC~
Highthghted OniOont in coot
of ambulance

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



New

Cost of a New Unit

600
r,200
f,000
.500

1,000
165,000

8,000

boo
7,200

12,000
1.500
3,000

165,000
8,000
1,500

35.000

• Expense Category ‘ item Quantity’ Unit Cost Total Cost’
Field Medic wages, benefits (md. health ins and 9% retirement) and

personnel scheduled OT 6 $ 77,560 $ 465,360
contract Ambulance contractuals- Fleet Maintenance 15.650 $ 15.650
contract Ambulance cell phone service 1,170 $ 1,170
contract Medic Station - pager service 108 S 216
contract Station Maintenance 2,200 $ 2,200
commodities Ambulance commodities (fuel) 12,720 $ 12,720
commodities Medic Station Supplies, Minor Equipment, miriorfurniture 10,150 $ 10,150
commodities Field Medic Uniforms and Equipment ‘ 3,840 $ 23 041

Ambulance medical supplies and equipment- commodities
commodities drugs/supplies 13,082 $ 13,082
commodities Knox Box 600 S 600
capital - radio Ambulance radio capital costs - mobile radios for ambulances 7,200 7,200
capital - radio Medic Station - handfleld radios for paramedics, not ambulance 4,000 12 000
capital Medic Station-Alerting 1,500 1,500
capital Stair Chair 3,000 3,000
capital Ambulance - new vehicle $ 165,000 5 165,000
capital Ambulance equipment - Mobile Data Computer (MDC) 8,000 8.000
capital Station Equipment- New Furniture 1,500 1.500
capital Ambulance medical equipment- new cardiac monitor 35,000 35,000
capital Ambulance medical equipment- new stretchers 11,830 11,830

GRAND TOTAL $ 789,219

One Time Expenses Recurrtng Ex~5enses ‘ TOTAL

- 465,360 465,360
- 15,650 15,650
- 1,170 1,170
- 216 216
- 2,200 2,200
- 12720 12.720
- 10,150 10,150

23,040 6,000 29,040

- 13,082 13,082

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Austin — Travis County EMS Advisory Board
15 Wailer Street, Austin, Texas 78702

Members May 22, 201 0

B. L. Taylor,
Chair Dear Mayor Leffingwell, Judge Biscoe, Council Members and Commissioners:

Susan Pascoe,
Vice Chair

The ATCEMS Advisory Board is composed of members appointed by the Austin
Paula l3arr City Council and the Travis County Commissioners Court. The Board’s charge

is to make recommendations to City Council and Commissioners Court on
Or. Carlos Brown matters related to our community’s EMS system. Following are several

recommendations for your consideration.
Paul Carrozza

At our May 5, 201 0 meeting the Board reviewed the EMS Deployment Plan the
Dr. Patrick Cracker .

City and County staff have jointly developed. The plan lays out a logical three
Hector Gonzalez (3) year EMS transport unit reposition and deployment schedule and defines the

associated equipment and staffing needs to implement those permanently. The
Dr. Donald Patrick plan is designed to maintain the improved response in urban areas (including the

need to meet service requirements for the newly annexed Avery Ranch area and
Dr. Stephen Wilson the Mueller development) and to substantially improve the unacceptable

response in certain suburban Travis County areas. Portions of the plan were
tested and implemented with overtime and spare equipment in FY9/l 0 and have
already demonstrated substantially improved both urban and suburban area
response. The plan is attached for your review. It is based on sound analytics.
In February the Board recommended to the Council and Court that an EMS
System Strategy be developed. That work is in~process by City and County
staff. This Deployment Plan is an excellent interim operational strategy.
Board recommends the Deployment Plan be implemented as proposed by the
City and County staff.

The Board also reviewed a presentation by the Austin EMS Department of its
preliminary budget forecast for FYI 0/Il. It included a base budget to maintain
current levels of service, the additions needed to implement the jointly developed
Deployment Plan and some additional unmet needs. The Board supports the
fundamental elements of the proposed budget. The Board recognizes that
during the budget process City and County staff may need to adjust some of the
details and that the current fiscal realities must be dealt with. But to forestall a
decline in service, the Board recommends funding the equipment and personnel
proposed by the City and County staff necessary to implement the Deployment
Plan and that other necessary current equipment replacements be included in the
approved budget.

Last year the Board recommended that the EMS Department benchmark its
transport fee structure with those of similar systems and that the fee schedules be

1 of 2

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



adjusted accordingly. That was completed and the Council and Court approved
and implemented the revised schedules mid 2009. The substantial added
revenues from that adjustment are now being realized. Whether by a Clinical
Improvement Fund as proposed by City and County staff, or another mechanism,
the Board recommends the Council and Court dedicate EMS transport revenues
to improved level of EMS service system-wide.

We look forward to any discussions that you would like to have regarding these
important needs for the Austin-Travis County EMS System. Please feel free to
contact me if you have any questions. I can be reached at 512-809-7173.

Sincerely,

~ /
/2 1

R. L Taylor, Chair
Austin-Travis County EMS Advisory Board

CC: Marc Ott
Mike McDonald
Ernie Rodriguez
Danny Hobby
ATCEM S Advisory Board Members

Attachment: EMS Deployment Plan

2 of 2

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



ESDI
12:59 90%

ESD3
9:29 90% ~

p/I

*
T~’~ jiO:299e

+. . p

/

P1

ESD 12
14:29 90%

P1

h.

ESD5
10:29 .%

SDII
15 5990°o

P1

ESDB
-59 90%

P1
+,

+

r ~
rw

P1 ESI4
12:59 90%

0 P1

, ~—.

D6.
11:299~ P

P1

•1
+

0

2 ~/

C

ESD2
9:29 90%

+

ESD 13
19:59 90%

P1

D 9
‘9 900/ /!

I

/
/ ~

-~~‘~1~

I’
/0

P1

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



First Agency On Scene (EMS - ESD)
October 2009 - June 2010

ESD [First Agency Arrived Count - Incidents Percen~J

City of Austin EMS 26,621 56.09%

Other 20,844 43.91%

City of Austin 47,465 100.00%

ESDO1 EMS 163 28.50%

Other 409 71.50%

ESDO1 572 100.00%

ESDO2 EMS 820 27.63%

Other 2,148 72.37%

ESDO2 2,968 100.OO%

ESDO3 EMS 48 11.11%

Other 384 88.89%

ESDO3 432 100.00%

ESDO4 EMS 163 36.47%

Other 284 63.53°k

ESDO4 447 100.00%

ESDO5 EMS 41 15.95%

Other 216 84.05%

ESDO5 257 100.00%

ESDO6 EMS 336 26.71%

Other 922 73.29%

ESDO6 1,258 100.00%

ESDO8 EMS 45 25.14%

Other 134 74.86%

ESDO8 179 100.O0%

ESDO9 EMS 129 31.54%

Other 280 68,46%

ESDO9 409 100.00%

ESD1O EMS 7 7.45%

Other 87 92.55%

ESD1O 94 100.00%

ESD11 EMS 325 36.56%

Other 564 63.44%

ESD11 889 100.00%

ESD12 EMS 234 28.43%

Other 589 71.57%

ESD12 823 100.00%

ESD13 EMS 52 96.30%

Other 2: 3.70%

ESD13 54 100.00%

ESD14 EMS 23 33.82%

Other 45 66.18°h ~

ESD14 68 100.00%

Jul 15, 2010 - 1 - 3:20:57 PM

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



First Agency On Scene (EMS - ESD)
October 2009 - June 2010

Percent

97.76%

6 2.24%

268 100.00%

J ESD Ffrst AgencyArr~ved J Count- Incidents j
Other EMS 262

Other

Other

Summary 56,183

Jul 15, 2010 2- 3:20:57 PM

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



MOLLVGMELN1~~IOJ3II

ofid

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Req. 2: EMS Ground lnterlocal - 2 new stations
FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY12 Cost

FTEs 0.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $0 $0 $0
Operating $1,627,179 $0 $0
Subtotal $1,627,179 $0 $0
Capital $439,660 $0 $0
Total Request ] $2,066,8391 $01 $0

Dept. Summary of Request:
Funding is requested for two new county EMS ambulance units for FY 11 (personnel and equipment) — a Demand Unit (12/7,
6 FTE, 1 ambulance and associated operating expenses) in the Northeast Area of Travis County, and one Full-Time Unit
(24/7, 12 FTE, 1 ambulance and associated operating expenses) in the Southwest Area of Travis County. EMS is basing
this programmatic expansion request on the result of findings from the Austin-Travis County Emergency Medical Services
EMS Deployment Plan published in March 2010 that addressed improving coverage and response times across the
ATCEMS area of responsibility. These additional operating funds would be made part of the FY 11 EMS Ground Interlocal.

Northeast Travis County Demand Unit ($789,219)
Personnel: Six (6) FTE, $465,360 (salary, benefits and overtime)
Operating/commodities funds: $104,029
Capital: $219,830 (ambulance)

Southwest Travis County Full-Time Unit ($1,277,620)
Personnel: Twelve (12) FTE, $930,720 (salary, benefits and overtime)
Operating funds: $127,070
Capital: $219,830 (ambulance)

year cost: $2,066,839 ($1,524,456 ongoing, $542,383 one-time)

2~’ year cost: $1,524,456 ongoing

Randy Loft, Pr’ 2011 Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

EMS
Page 1 of2

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



PBO Recommendations & Comments:
EMS is able to internally fund contract increases for “Meet and Confer” and Pay for Performance that are part of the base
EMS contract for FY 11. The department has also informed PBO that replacement schedule for ambulances has changed
due to new criteria for EMS vehicles and funds are not required in FY 11 for replacements. PBO concurs with the
department’s actions.

PBO does not recommend the two new units (Southwest Travis County/Northeast Travis County) for two reasons: 1) It is
PBO’s understanding that though the City of Austin Budget Office has informed ATCEMS that it will fund a certain level of
program expansion, the scope of that expansion is not known at this time nor is any potential Travis County obligation; and
2) the Travis County Executive Manager for Emergency Services is about to undertake his own EMS Ground Transport
Study to be completed early in FY 11 that he wants to use to validate the COA EMS Deployment Plan findings. PBO
believes, based on these two pieces of information, that allocating scarce resources for an expansion at this time would be
premature. The Executive Manager for Emergency Services has informed PBO that he will be requesting a budget hearing
to discuss these matters, and provide an update on the COA EMS budget process, with the Commissioners Court in early
August. In anticipation of this discussion, for the capital portion of this request, PBO reminds the Commissioners Court that
an Earmark for $439,660 could be placed on FY 11 Certificates of Obligation (which will be finalized in December 2010) for
the two ambulances if the Court directs the Executive Manager of Emergency Services to proceed..

Budget Request Performance Measures:

Randy Lott, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010

Actual Revised Projected FY 11 Revised FY 11
FY09 FY 10 Projected Measure at Target Measure with

Description Measure Measure Budget Level Additional Resources
Priority 1 Response Time in 60.00% 60.00% 70.00%
Suburban Areas
Percent of Cardiac Arrest Patients
delivered to medical facility with a 31.41% 29.50% 29.00% 30.00%
pulse (ATCEMS System)

EMS
Page 2 of 2

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



ADAN BALLESTEROS 4~
TRAVIS COUNTY CONSTABLE PRECINCT 2

10409 Burnet Road, Suite 150 Austin, TX. 78758-4418
Phone: (512) 854-9697 Fax : (512) 854-9196 OF -~

To: Travis County Commissioners

From: Constable Adan Ballesteros

Re: 2011 Budget Request Items for Review

Commissioners,

I respectfully request funding in the FY20 1 1 budget to cover a couple of serious issues
concerning this office. I refer specifically to the need for additional Skill based and
career ladder pay. Therefore I request that you please consider these items for funding as
they are critical for Deputy Retention and overall morale. As you are well aware the need
for a skilled and diverse workforce can make the difference between a shining success
story and dismal failure, I believe we have been the former up until this point. I went out
and hired the best people from various branches of Law Enforcement, many of whom
took pay cuts because they wanted to be a part of the vision and potential that working
with such a highly skilled, dream team of Deputies could provide. I am asking you to
provide a means so that they can advance their careers within Travis County. This Office
and Travis County will be much better off ifwe are able to keep these highly skilled,
experienced and motivated employees by allowing them to advance their careers within
the confmes of Travis County. I thank you for your time and consideration on this matter.

Respectfully,

Adan Ballesteros
Travis County Constable Precinct 2
Austin, Texas

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Travis County Constable Pct.2
Budget Request

Skill Based Pay Request
Summary and Supporting

Documentation

Adan Ballesteros
Constable

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Skill Based Pay Facts

• Pct.2 has the second highest Deputy
staffing level of all the Constables
Offices.

• Pct.2 has the second highest revenue
level of the Constables offices.

• Pct.2 has the fourth lowest Skill
Based Pay budgeted per Deputy!

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Skill Based Pay Facts

• Several of the other offices have double
the Skill Based Pay budgeted per Deputy.

• Even with the requested adjustment Pct.2
will still have the fourth lowest skill based
pay per Deputy.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Skill Based Pay Facts

• Deputies work hard to achieve these
Certifications and Deserve to be
compensated for the knowledge they
provide to Travis County.

• It is unjust to say that if you worked in
another Pct. you would be compensated
for your knowledge. However at this Pct.
we are unable to do so because the funds
are not provided.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Skill Based Pay Facts

o We used a three year projection model for the
Skill Based Pay Request. This means the money
we requested should be able to handle most of
the additional increases in Peace Officer Level
and Skill Based Pay for the foreseeable future.

• The previous administration was under classified
pay structure. We are now under POPS which
has additional focus on Skill Based Pay as a
means of compensation.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



$4,500.00

$4,000.00

$3,500.00

$3,000.00
U)
~ $2,500.00
~ $2,000.00

$1,500.00

$1,000.00

$500.00
$0.00

Average Per Deputy

Average Per Deputy

-J

Pct.1 Pct.2 Pct.3 Pct.4 Pct.5

Precinct

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Average Per Deputy After
Adjustment

Average Per DeputyAfterAdjusment

$4,500.00

$4,000.00

$3,500.00

$3,000.00

$2,500.00
~ $2,000.00

$1,500.00

$1,000.00

$500.00

$0.00
Pct.1 Pct.2 Pct.3 Pct.4 Pct.5

Precinct

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Skill Based Pay Numbers
Before Adjustment

AD PAY RANK # DEP AD CIV pay Amount AD CRIM pay Amount TOTAL AD PAY AVG PER DEP RANK

Pct.1

Pct.2

Pct. 3

Pct.4

15

21

17

12

$17,480.00

$33,546.00

$27,009.00

$30,460.00

$5,700.00

$3,373.00

$36,324.00

$8,284.00

$23,180.00

$36,919.00

$63,333.00

$38,744.00

$1,545.33

$1,758.05

$3,725.47

$3,228.67

5

4

2

3

Pct.5 30 $120,729.00 $6,309.00 $127,038.00 $4,234.60 1

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Skill Based Pay Numbers
After Adjustment

AD PAY RANK # DEP AD CIV pay Amount AD CRIM pay Amount TOTAL AD PAY AVG PER DEP RANK

Pct. 1

Pct.2

Pct.3

Pct.4

Pct.5

15

21

17

12

30

$17,480.00

$33,546.00

$27,009.00

$30,460.00

$120,729.00

$5,700.00

$27,073.00

$36,324.00

$8,284.00

$6,309.00

$23,180.00

$60,619.00

$63,333.00

$38,744.00

$127,038.00

$1,545.33

$2,886.62

$3,725.47

$3,228.67

$4,234.60

5

4

3

2

1

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Travis County Constable Pct.2
Budget Request

Career Ladder Pay Request
Summary and Supporting

Documentation

Adan Ballesteros
Constable

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Career Ladder Pay Facts

• Pct.2 Constables office switched from
classified pay to the POPS scale when
Constable Ballesteros was elected, this
was recommended by PBO and HR.

• PBO had to request additional funding for
the Pct.2 salary line items in order to
correctly compensate and place at their
correct step the Pct.2 Deputies.
Attached.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Career Ladder Pay Facts
• The switch from classified pay to POPS left our

salary line items maxed out, leaving no room for
advancement or promotions.

• Pct.2 Deputies are currently being denied
opportunities to advance due to the lack of
funding available.

• PBO is asking that we find the funding for
advancement internally. We cannot continue to
cannibalize from other line items and continue to
function effectively.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Career Ladder Pay Facts

• Deputies work hard and Deserve to be
compensated for the time in service that
they have provided to Travis County.

• Properly compensating the Pct.2 Deputies
is critical for retention of the highly skilled
individuals we currently employ.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Career Ladder Pay Facts

• We used a three year projection for the Career
Ladder Pay Request. This means the money we
requested should be able to handle the
additional increases in Career Ladder Pay for
the foreseeable future.

• The previous administration was under classified
pay structure. We are now under POPS which
has an additional focus on Career Ladder Pay
as a means of compensation.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Pay Per Deputy Prior to Increase

PCT CIVIL CRIM TOTAL DEPUTIES AVG PER DEP RANK

1 $569,007 $324,181 $893,188 15 $59,545.87 5

2 $682,204 $778,270 $1,460,474 21 $69,546.38 3

3 $168,567 $1,188,171 $1,356,738 17 $79,808.12 2

4 $461,874 $325,014 $786,888 12 $65,574.00 4

5 $2,229,302 $362,897 $2,592,199 30 $86,406.63 1

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Pay Per Deputy After Increase

PCT CIVIL CRIM TOTAL DEPUTIES AVG PER DEP RANK

1 $569,007 $324,181 $893,188 15 $59,545.87 5

2 $698,209 $794,274 $1,492,483 21 $71,070.62 3

3 $168,567 $1,188,171 $1,356,738 17 $79,808.12 2

4 $461,874 $325,014 $786,888 12 $65,574.00 4

5 $2,229,302 $362,897 $2,592,199 30 $86,406.63 1

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



PBO

RECOMMENDATION

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Req. #9: AD Pay Funding
FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY12 Cost

FTEs 0.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $23,700 $0 $0
Operating $0 $0 $0
Subtotal $23,700 $0 $0
Capital $0 $0 $0
Total Request $23,7001 $oJ $0

Dept. Summary of Request:
This request is for additional funds for add pay for deputies that have earned certificates or passed exams and have become
eligible for various add pays.

PBO Recommendations & Comments:
PBO does not recommend inclusion of this request in the Preliminary Budget. For the FY 11 Budget Process, the
Commissioners Court directed departments to redirect savings from position vacancies, other permanent salary
savings and any other resources within their target budget to internally fund department pay increases. Like Career
Ladders, these add pays should continue to be funded through internal departmental reallocations. Additionally, the
Travis County Code for All Travis County Employees states in section 10.0295 (1) that “Employees who are in
positions that are subject to POPS are eligible for the skill based pay programs in this subsection if the
department has the ability to pay based on its approved budget.” PBO is unable to make any exceptions to
that guidance at this time.

Budget Request Performance Measures:
The department did not submit performance measures for this request.

Randy Lott, FY 2011 Preliminary Budget Constable, Precinct 2
7/19/2010 Page 1 of 2

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



FY 2011 BUDGET REQUEST ANALYSIS

Req. # 14: Career Ladders
FY11 Request PBO Recommendation FY12 Cost

FTEs 0.0 0.0 0.0
Personnel $32,009 $0 $0
Operating $0 $0 $0
Subtotal $32,009 $0 $0
Capital $0 $0 $0
Total Request f $32,0091 $01 $0

Dept. Summary of Request:
CN2 is requesting funding for Career Ladder increases. They would like to provide pay increases to CN2 deputies that meet
or exceed requirements for advancement. This funding would be for CN2 Deputies that have met all qualifications set forth
by Travis County POPS Policy.

PBO Recommendations & Comments:
PBO does not recommend inclusion of this request in the Preliminary Budget. The Commissioners Court-approved
FY 11 Budget Manual states “Career ladders should continue to be funded through internal departmental
reallocations.” PBO is unable to make any exceptions to that guidance at this time.

Budget Request Performance Measures:
The department did not submit performance measures for this request.

Randy Lott, FY2011 Preliminary Budget
7/19/2010 Constable, Precinct 2

Page 2 of 2

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



PLANNING AND BUDGET OFFICE
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

314W. 11thS~reet
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

MEMORANDUM

TO: Rodney Rhoades, Executive Manager, Planning and Budget

FROM: Bill Derryberry, Senior Planning and Budget Analyst i~g.~

DATE: July 22, 2010

SUBJECT: Legislative Amendment Necessary to Continue Current Travis County
Management of Sheriffs Office Overtime on a 28 Day Cycle beyond FY 11

There is a future fmancial issue in the Local Government Code, under Title 5. Matters Affecting
Public Officers and Employees Chapter 157. Assistance, Benefits, and Working Condition of
County Officers and Employees in the following bracketed law, which wifi impact Travis County
after the 2010 census is reported on/or about April 2011. The cite is as follows.

§ 157.022. OURS OF WI’ OF PEACE OFFICERS IN C UNTIES OF M RE T AN ONE
MILLI N.

(a) A peace officer employed by a county with a population of more than one million may
not be required to work more hours during a calendar week than the number of hours in the
normal work week of the majority of other county employees.

(b) A sheriff or constable may require a peace officer to work more hours than allowed by
Subsection (a) if the sheriff or constable determines an emergency exists that requires the officer to
work extra hours.

(c) A peace officer who elects to work extra hours during a calendar week shall be
compensated on a basis consistent with overtime provisions of the county personnel policy.

Acts 1987, 70th Leg., ch. 149, § 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1987. Amended by Acts 1991, 72nd Leg., ch. 597, §
91, eff. Sept. 1, 1991.

U.S.C. 207 (k) cites: This exemption allows “qualifying” employees to “work a period of time”
before they are entitled to overtime.

29 C.F.R. 553.201 cites: To avail itself for the 207(k) exemption the city must establish a “work
period”. A work period does not have to coincide with a pay period.

WHY IS THIS A CONCERN?

Since October 1999, Peace Officer Pay Scale (POPS) employees in the Sheriffs Office (SO) have
been paid overtime on a 28-day cycle which allows the cost of overtime pay to be minimized as
opposed to a 7-day cycle, which would be required under Section 157.022. This means that there

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



160 hours available to flex-out (eliminate) through judicious schedule management, overtime in a
single week instead of only 40 hours.

An analysis on the impact of such a change was prepared during the FY 07 budget process which
showed there would be an added annual cost of $876,162 to Travis County. That analysis was as
follows.

THE FY 0728 DAY OVERTIME CYCLE ANALYSIS for the COMMISSIONERS COURT

Some of you have made a request on the estimated cost of returning the Sheriff’s Office (SO) Peace
Officer Pay Scale (POPS) staff to the 7-Day Pay Cycle from the 28-Day Pay Cycle for overtime. This
proposal was discussed by the Travis County Sheriff’s Officer Association (TCSOA) and the Travis County
Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Association (TCSLEA) at the August 9th budget hearing for the Sheriff’s Office.
The estimated annual cost of this proposal is over $800,000.

The 28-Day Pay Cycle for Peace Officer Pay Scale (POPS) positions in the Sheriff’s Office was initiated in
the FY 00 Adopted Budget. At that time, the Sheriff’s overtime was conservatively reduced by $50,000.
However, it is likely that savings estimate was not reasonable at the time and any extrapolation from that
assumption would be similarly unreasonable.

In order to provide a timely sense of scale of the likely cost of returning to the 7-Day Pay Cycle another
more accurate and reliable method has been developed using a sample of real overtime data from the
Sheriff’s Office for the latest 28-Day Pay Cycle from July 2nd through July 29th~

The sample is 23 POPS corrections staff and 25 POPS law enforcement staff for the time period. The
pool the sample was drawn from consisted of any POPS officer that incurred overtime during the 28-Day
Pay Cycle, whether it was flexed out or not, was paid out as overtime, or was accrued as comp time at the
overtime cost for future payment. From that group, the first 23 and 25 individuals alphabetically were
taken to form the sample for the analysis.

The analysis simply reviewed the number of overtime hours remaining at the end of the 28-Day Pay Cycle
for the sample group, and compared those hours to the number of overtime hours that would have had to
been paid under a 7-Day Pay Cycle for the same sample group for the same time frame.

The difference between these two sets of hours would be the number of overtime hours avoided over the
28 day cycle due to the ability to manage staffing more effectively and efficiently. The results were as
follows.

Projected 7 - Day Actual 28 — Day
Sheriffs Office Cycle Paid Cycle Paid Overtime Hours Paid Percent

Bureau Overtime Hours Overtime Hours Increase wI 7 Days Increase
Corrections 140.64 103.00 37.64 36.5° o

Law Enforcement 96.50 57.50 39.00 67.8° o

Totals 237.14 161 76.14 47.3°o

Using the 47.3° o increase in hours noted in the sample, the likely increased overtime cost of returning to
the 7 day cycle system is indicated in the following analysis using actual FY 2005 overtime costs.

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Actual FY05 Less: Non- Net POPS Net POPS
Overtime POPS OT Overtime OT X 47.3%

Administrative Bureau $ 68,773 (S 6,878) $ 61,895 $ 29,276
L. E. Bureau

Law Enforcement $ 396,814 ($ 39,681) $ 357,133 $168,924
Mental Health Unit 12,428 -0- 12,428 5,878

CTECC Security 7,146 -0- 7,146 3,380

Law Enforcement Bureau S 416,388 (5 39,681) 5 376.707 $ 178.182
Corrections Bureau

Corrections $1,039,690 ($103,969) $935,721 $ 442,596
Central Booking 72,181 (7.218) 64,963 30,727

Corrections Bureau $1,179,408 ($178,724) $1,000,684 $ 473,323

Total Sheriff’s Office Overtime 5L664.569 (S 225.283) 51 .439.286 $ 680,781

Add: Fringe Benefit Costs of 20.28% 138,062

Total Increased Overtime Cost

Further, the FY 05 numbers are at the Peace Officer Pay Scale (POPS) rate before the 5 percent
adjustment and the step increase approved by Commissioners Court for FY 06. With those POPS
adjustments, the total increased overtime cost extrapolated to FY 07 would be $876,162.

We also looked at FY 06 experience through June, and the result was a very similar impact.

It should be noted that in order to be timely with a costing for this proposal in the FY 07 budget process, it
was necessary to use a sample drawn from the paper records of the most recent 28-Day Pay Cycle. The
sample that was used represented about 20 percent of the persons who actually received overtime after this
cycle. We believe the costing that came from this data when applied to actual overtime experience is
reasonable and sufficient to provide a sense of scale of the magnitude of this request by the TCSOA and
the TCSLEA.

In conclusion, the likely annualized FY 07 cost of this request is $876,162 based on recent POPS overtime.

CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION

It is likely the annualized cost beginning in mid-FY 11 would now be in the range of about $1
miffion due to subsequent changes to the Sheriffs Officer Peace Officer Pay Scale (SO POPS) and
concomitant fringe benefits, based on current FY 10 experience through mid-July.

This adverse fmancial impact can probably be cured by amending the population number in Title
5, § 157.022 of the Local Government Code to 1,500,000. This change would not impact the four
Texas Counties (Harris, Dallas, Tarrant and Bexar) covered under the current bracket. It would
remove the near-term exposure of Travis County, since the current population estimate for Travis

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



County as of January 1, 2008 from the Texas State Data Center, in San Antonio, was 956,901,
which is an increase of 144,621 above the 2000 U. S. Census count of 812,280.

Cc: Sheriff Greg Hamilton

Attachment: Sheriff’s Overtime Information on Harris, Dallas, Tarrant & Bexar Counties

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Sheriff’s Overtime Information on Harris, Dallas, Tarrant & Bexar Counties

Information has been gathered on the four Counties currently covered under the terms of Title 5 ~ 157.022
of the Local Government Code, along with comparable information for Travis County that was available in
March 2009.

Harris County with a 2007 County Population* of 3,935,855

Harris County’s policies on overtime are based on a 40 hour workweek. (7 Days)

Overtime is not budgeted and not allowed for non-exempt employees without an Order from
Commissioners Court.

County Personnel Regulations in Section 8 Overtime Compensation and Compensatory Time is
summarized as follows for Compensatory Time, since Overtime is not budgeted.

• Non-Exempt employees, in lieu ofbudgeted overtime, accrue Compensatory Time at the rate of
1 ‘/2 hours per hour actually worked more than 40 hours in one workweek.

• Compensatory Time balances must not exceed 240 hours and are carried forward indefinitely.
Department Heads may limit Compensatory Time by ensuring an employee does not work more
than 40 hours in one work week.

• Upon separation from employment, Non-exempt employees receive full pay for any
Compensatory Balance, while Exempt employees receive ‘/2 of their balance, all from the
department where the time was earned.

In FY 09, Harris County is estimating Corrections Overtime in Harris County Sheriff’s Office (HCSO) of
$40,000,000 with an average Overtime Cost per Inmate of $3,700. This estimate is in addition to the 240
hours of Compensatory Time balances allowed in Section 8 of the County Personnel Regulations.

Inmate ADP: 10,750 Estimate based on meals served per year from HCSO website.
10,564 Texas Commission on Jail Standards Report (February 1, 2009)

Corrections Relief Factor: 1.73
* 2007 Population Source: U. S. Census Bureau and Texas A&M University Real Estate Center

Dallas County with a 2007 County Population* of 2,366,511

Dallas County’s policies on overtime are based on a 7 Day Pay Cycle.

Overtime is not allowed outside the Sheriffs Office with the exception of Juvenile Detention.

Dallas County FY 08 Corrections Overtime and Average Cost per Inmate
Corrections $ 4,594,544
Central Booking 956.422

Total Dallas County $ 5,550,966 Overtime Cost per Inmate averaged $900.84

Inmate ADP: 6,162 in FY 08
5,928 Texas Commission on Jail Standards Report (February 1, 2009)

Corrections Relief Factor: 1.67
* 2007 Population Source: U. S. Census Bureau and Texas A&M University Real Estate Center

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Tarrant County with a 2007 County Population* of 1,717,435

Tarrant County’s policies on overtime are based on a 7 Day Pay Cycle.

Overtime is allowed for Non-exempt employees in accordance with the United States Code.

Tarrant County FY 08 Corrections Overtime was $8,847, however Custody staff was budgeted for an
Inmate ADP of 3,600 resulting in regular wages & salaries above actual ADP needs of $1.3 million.

Inmate ADP: 3,350 in FY 08
3,239 Texas Commission on Jail Standards Report (February 1, 2009)

Corrections Relief Factor: 1.76, Budgeted at 1.89 relative to actual ADP
* 2007 Population Source: U. S. Census Bureau and Texas A&M University Real Estate Center

Bexar County with a 2007 County Population* of 1,594,493

Bexar County’s policies are based on a 40 hour workweek (7 Days), and are governed by County Policy
7.2.02 and for Sheriff’s Office employees, the Collective Bargaining Agreement Between The Deputy
Sheriffs Association ofBexar Count and The Sheriffof Bexar Count and The Count of Bexar Texas
(the Agreement). Generally, paid overtime is not allowed in the Sheriff’s Office with the exception of a
declared emergency by the Commissioners Court. The County compensates non exempt employees who
work overtime with compensatory time.

Article 9, Section 10 Compensatory Time of the Agreement is as follows.

“The County’s current policy of compensating non exempt employees of the Sheriffs
Office, who work overtime with compensatory time, shall continue in effect for the
duration of this Agreement. At any time overtime is worked, such employees will
receive compensatory time at the ratio of one and one half (1 Y2) hours of compensatory
time for one (1) hour of overtime worked, unless the County agrees to pay (in money)
said overtime hours. Accrual of compensatory time may not exceed four hundred and
eighty (480) hours (three hundred and twenty (320) overtime hours worked). Any
additional compensatory time in excess of the four hundred and eighty (480) hour limit
will be paid. Employees will be granted the opportunity to use accrued compensatory
time subject to the units estimated manpower needs and may be scheduled from time to
time to take compensatory time, depending on manpower needs within a reasonable
period of time of their request, if the use does not unduly disrupt the operations of the
Sheriffs Office.”

Bexar County FY 08 Corrections Overtime: NA

Inmate ADP: 4,213 in FY 08.
4,150 Texas Commission on Jail Standards Report (February 1, 2009)

Corrections Relief Factor: 1.79
~ 2007 Population Source: U. S. Census Bureau and Texas A&M University Real Estate Center

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Travis County with a 2007 County Population* of 974,265

Travis County’s policies on Sheriffs POPS overtime are based on a 28 Day Pay Cycle.

Travis County FY 08 Corrections Overtime and Average Cost per Inmate
Corrections $ 567,148
Central Booking 67,374

Total Travis County $ 634,552 Overtime Cost per Inmate averaged $252.71

Inmate ADP: 2,511 in FY 08
2,196 Texas Commission on Jail Standards Report (February 1, 2009)

Corrections Relief Factor: 1.72
* 2007 Population Source: U. S. Census Bureau and Texas A&M University Real Estate Center

Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.



Updated 7/23/2010, 11:03 a.m.


	Item 01
	Item 03
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 13-001
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 15-001
	Item 15-002
	Item 15-003
	Item 15-004
	Item 15-005
	Item 15-006
	Item15-007
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 22
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item 27
	Item 28
	Item 29
	Item 30
	Item 31
	Item 34
	Item C3
	Item C4
	Item C5
	TC BEE CAVE RD ITEM 01
	TC HOUSING FIN CORP ITEM 01



